MANCHESTER UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Tuesday, February 14, 2023 Manchester School Library 4:00 p.m.
Public may attend this meeting via Zoom at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83839280769 / Meeting ID: 838 3928 0769

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

* Members of the School Board and the community have an opportunity to review Agenda information prior to the meeting. Audience participation is welcome
and encouraged. The Chair will recognize those members of the audience who wish to speak and may set a time limit on each person’s remarks if he/she feels it
necessary. Each person wishing to speak will be asked to identify himself/herself prior to speaking. Generally the Chair will ask the public for their remarks after
individual Board Members have had an opportunity to speak. At the President’s discretion, Agenda items may be considered in other than numerical order.

* Written materials distributed to the Board and the public within 72 hours of the Board meeting are available for public inspection immediately upon
distribution at the Manchester School District Office, 19550 S. Hwy 1, Manchester.

* In compliance with Government Code 54954.2(a), the Manchester School Board of Education, will, on request make this agenda available in appropriate
alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12132), and the federal rules
and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or
accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact Kristin Larson Balliet, Board Secretary, Manchester Union Elementary School, 19550 S. Hwy
1, Manchester, CA 95459. Telephone (707) 882-2374

AGENDA
*Acronyms used in this agenda:
AB Assembly Bill MCOE Mendocino County Office of Education
AR Administrative Regulations MUTA Manchester Union Teachers Association
BP Board Policy SARC School Accountability Report Card
1.0 Call to order ACTION
1.1 Establishment of a quorum
1.2 Pledge to the Flag
2.0 Approval of Agenda ACTION
3.0 Public comment on non-agenda items INFORMATION

Items not on the Agenda may be introduced by members of the audience: however, no discussion or formal action will be taken by the Board at this time.

4.0 Consent Calendar

The following items presented under the consent calendar are considered by the Board to be routine and will be enacted upon by the board in one motion.
There will be no discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes on the motion unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific items
to be discussed and/or removed from the consent calendar. This must be done prior to the approval of the agenda.

4.1 Approval of the Minutes of the Regular meeting of January 24, 2023

4.2 Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Mendocino Unified School District
4.3 Payroll and Expenditures

4.4 Mendocino County County Investment Report, December 31, 2022

INFORMATION ITEMS

5.0 Communications INFORMATION
5.1 Reminder to Board/Admin staff members: Form 700 due by April 3, 2023
5.2 Message from Cindy Gonzalez regarding updates to BP and AR

6.0 REPORTS INFORMATION
6.1 Board:
6.2 Business Manager:
6.3 Staff

Board of Trustees
Frances Robbings, President
Erin Piper, Diana Weston-Williams



7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

6.4 Superintendent / Principal
ACTION ITEMS

Approval of the ongoing adherence to AB 361 Rules for Board Meetings

Annual Hearing and Ratification of Comprehensive School Safety Plan,

2022-2023

Approve Resolution # 2223-3: Staywell Health Plan JPA for fiscal year

2023-2024

First Reading BP and AR 5131.4: Student Disturbances

First Reading BP and AR 5131: Conduct

First Reading BP and AR 5141.4: Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting

First Reading BP and AR 5144.1: Suspension & Expulsion

DISCUSSION ITEMS

14.0

15.0

16.0

17.0

18.0

19.0

Development of District Calendar

School Accountability Card: Update

Budget Committee Update: Proposed Dates & Structure

3rd-5th Grade 2-Night Trip to Pacific Environmental Education Center

MUESD Meal Count Collection Procedures: Updated

Survey of MUESD for Parents and Community

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION
ACTION

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION
ACTION

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION
ACTION

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION
ACTION

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION
ACTION

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION
ACTION
INFORMATION

DISCUSSION
ACTION

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION

INFORMATION

INFORMATION

DISCUSSION

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION

INFORMATION

INFORMATION
DISCUSSION

Board of Trustees
Frances Robbings, President
Erin Piper, Diana Weston-Williams



20.0

20.1

20.2

20.3

21.0

22.0

Public Comments on item to be heard in Closed Session

Recess to Closed Session at:
With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Section 54957

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
MUTA Negotiator: Kristin Larson Balliet

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Title: Superintendent/Principal: Goals & Evaluation

Reconvene to Open Session at:
Report from Closed Session:
Next agenda items:

Continue development of district budget

Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP ) update

Approve second interim report

Review planning to date for promotion

Superintendent’s evaluation & contract

Adoption of new English Language Arts / English Language Development curriculum, K-5
Board Policy review and update

Adjournment

Next Regular Meeting of the Board
Tuesday, March 14, 2023

Board of Trustees
Frances Robbings, President
Erin Piper, Diana Weston-Williams



MANCHESTER UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Tuesday, January 24, 2023 Manchester School Library 4:00 p.m.

MINUTES

*Acronyms used in this agenda:

AB Assembly Bill MCOE Mendocino County Office of Education
AR Administrative Regulations SARC School Accountability Report Card
BP Board Policy

1.0 Call to order
Board Cleri, Erin Piper, called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m.
1.1 Establishment of a quorum
Board attendees: Erin Piper, Diana Weston Wllliams
Board absent: Frances Robbings
Administration: Kristin Larson Balliet, Elsie Piper
Others present: Rick Barton
1.2 Pledge to the Flag

2.0 Approval of Agenda
MSP Diana, Erin to approve. Passed 2-0.

3.0 Public comment on non-agenda items
None

4.0 Consent Calendar

MSP Diana, Erin to approve as amended. Passed 2-0.

4.1 Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board meeting of December 13, 2022
4.2 Payroll and Expenditures

4.3 2nd Quarter Report on Williams Uniform Complaints

4.4 Accept $100 donation from Maxine Stornetta-Smith / Class of 1964

4.5 Accept $6000 donation from Manchester School Alumni Association

4.6 Approval of Mendocino County Investment Reports, October 31, 2022 and November
30,2022

INFORMATION ITEMS

5.0

Communications

6.0

5.1 Reminder to Board/Admin staff members to complete Form 700

Kristin Larson Balliet reminded Board members and administration staff to complete Form 700.

Elsie Piper explained that an email, containing the forms, will be coming.

REPORTS

6.1 Board: None

6.2 Business Manager: None

6.3 Staff: None

d of
et AGENDA ITEM # 4 - |

Erin Piper, Diana Weston-Williams

—



6.4 Superintendent / Principal

Kristin Larson Balliet shared the following: She is working on the J-13 waiver; 8 days of instruction
were lost, due to the storms/state of emergency. MUESD has begun using an electronic student
information system and it is going well. The end of the semester is 1/20; parent teacher
conferences for specific students will be 2/1-2/3. Kristin skipped the January new superintendent
seminar, due to so many days of work compromised by the storms. Kristin is performing Qualitative
Reading Inventories to determine how much progress students have made in reading during the _
first semester. Negotiations will be starting soon; teachers have sunshined items. Kristin has Iea'rh:éd
about California Uniform Procedures for Construction Cost Accounting (CUPCCA) and will
commence this process as soon as possible. The 6-8 grade may go to the De Young Museum in San
Francisco to see the Rameses exhibit.

ACTION ITEMS

7.0 Approval of the ongoing adherence to AB 361 Rules for Board Meetings
Kristin explained, per Schools and College Legal, AB 361 will be in effect through 2024. MSP Diana, Erin.
Passed 2-0.

8.0 Third Reading: BP & AR 6158: Independent Study
MSP Diana, Erin. Passed 2-0.

9.0 Second Reading: Updated BP & AR # 5141.21: Administering Medication and Monitoring Health
Conditions MSP Diana, Erin. Passed 2-0.

10.0  Approval of 2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

Kristin explained that some data is missing, due to it not being available to our SARC card company yet and
provided documentation about this from the California Dept. of Education. Updates will also be made to
the section regarding the facilities inspection. The Board may approve the document now and Kristin will
bring the updated version to the next meeting, if available. MSP Diana, Erin to approve as amended.
Passed 2-0.

11.0  Approval of Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Block Discretionary Block Grant Plan
MSP Diana, Erin. Passed 2-0.

12.0  Review and Accept the 2021-2022 Audit Report
MSP Diana, Erin. Passed 2-0.

13.0  Increase certificated substitute pay to $195 per day; $210 per day for 11-20 consecutive days; $225
per day for 21 or more consecutive days, $100 for a half day (less than 4 hours).
MSP Diana, Erin. Passed 2-0.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

14.0  Development of District Calendar
Kristin shared she will be working with Point Arena personnel to ensure general alignment with their
calendar, if possible.

15.0  Board Goals: Quarterly Update
Kristin shared updated data and narrative information with regard to the established metrics.

16.0 Begin development of 2023-2024 budget: Superintendent Budget Committee members and
meeting dates

Board of Trustees
Frances Robbings, President
Erin Piper, Diana Weston-Williams



It was determined there will be two meetings: one in March and one in April, both on Wednesdays. Erin
Piper will serve as the Board member on this committee. All staff and Board members who are interested
are welcome.

17.0 Public Comments on item to be heard in Closed Session
None

17.1 _ Recess to Closed Session at: 5:21
With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Section 54957
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE

17.2 Reconvene to Open Session at: 5:50

17.3 Report from Closed Session: Personnel matters discussed; no action taken.

18.0 Next agenda items:

Continue district budget development

Board decision to send layoff notices if necessary
Approve Safety Plan

Board Policy review and update

195.0 __Adjournment
MSP Diana, Erin to adjourn at 5:50; passed 2-0.

Next Regular Meeting of the Board
Tuesday, February 14, 2023

Board of Trustees
Frances Robbings, President
Erin Piper, Diana Weston-Williams



Mendocino (Unified School District
\)ason Morse, Supcrintcndcnt

44141 Littic Lakc Road == FO Box 1154 Mcndocino, CA 95460
Fhonc: 707.95].5868 [Fax: 707.9%7.07 14 11ttP://www‘rncnc{ocinousd.org

Memorandum of Understanding
Manchester Elementary School and Mendocino Unified School District

It is agreed that Manchester Elementary will reimburse Mendocino Unified School District for the time
needed to asscss a 3-year old preschool student. The student attends Greenwood Preschool in Elk, but
resides within the Manchester Elementary school district boundary.

The daily rate of pay for the SLP conducting the assessment is $383.07 and the hourly rate is $47.88.

Upon completion, the SLP will provide the hours and an invoice will be created by Mendocino Unified
and scnt to Manchester Elementary to be paid.

AGENDA ITEM # 1 2~



Fiscal07a Cash Transaction Detail

PAYReLL

76 - WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH Fiscal Year 2022/23
Running
JE# Description Debits Credits Balance
**Balance Forward 9,866.56
01/10/23 CT23-00578 20230110-REG 2,019.52 7,847.04
01/10/23 PR23-00035 20230110-REG 10,136.40 6,329.62 11,653.82
01/10/23 PR23-00036 20230110-REG 197.68 11,456.14
01/31/23 CT23-00622 20230131-REG 17,488.44 6,032.30-
01/31/23 PR23-00038 20230131-REG 54,699.74 24,054.97 24,612.47
01/31/23 PR23-00039 20230131-REG 1,306.68 23,305.79
Total for 1/2023 64,836.14 51,396.91
Net Change 13,439.23

Recap by Resource

Credit Ending Bal Resource Description

Rsrc-PY Bal Forward Debit
- 9,866.56 64,836.14 51,396.91 23,305.79
0000-0 .00 .00 NO REPORTING REQUIREN
9,866.56 64,836.14 51,396.91 23,305.79
See last page for selection criteria ;é;_%_i

Page 6 of 7
042 - Manchester Union Elementary Generated for Elsie Piper (EPIPER), Feb 8 2023 12:42PM




Nd0Z:€ €202 8 dod (43did3) 4edid ais|3 Jo} pajessuss) Kieyuawa|3 uolun Jaysayauely - Zyo

| jo | ebed

‘panoidde aq syoay) Buipsssid
84} Jey] pspuswiwiodal si | 's88)snd| JO pieog 8y} Jo uohezuoyine pue Ajjod $,101M3sId 8Y) Y)im 8dUBPIODIE Ul panss| usaq aAey s3osy) Buipsosid sy

9.'v6£'C : (3unowy x29y9) 10N
00" Ajiiqer xeL predun ssa
9/.'¥6€'2 L SH308YQ J0 Jaquin [ejo L
§.'s€C 3 (Wwlesy) IONVHNSNI-A13S 19
L0'6SL2 9 aNNd TVH3INTO L0
junowy pasuadxy uno) Yosymn uonduoasag pun4
deoay puny
9.L76€C L S)28YQ jo Jequiny [ejol
Gg.'6¢ee gWI3d HLV3H 0000-0009-0000-000-0085-0-0000-29
VaNV1NIMY3  €202/60/20 65100000-HOA
05°29L°L ‘ ONIT3ISNNOD 0000-0L L€-0L L L-100-008S-0-171L2€E-L0
NVNNY ‘NOSY3ILVd €202/60/20 1G92S.
£€6°¢9 9e’Le S3ITddNS SSY10 +100-000L-04 L L-L00-00€4-0-001 L-1O
VAR 4 S3ITddNS SSVYT1O 0000-000L-04 L L-100-00€4-0-001 L-10
077 SNOILNTOS SSANISNG dA0  €202/60/20 099¢S.
06'SClL S3NddNS SSV10 0000-0004L-0L 1 L-L00-00€#-0-00} 1-LO
ASNVL "Y3SIFT €202/60/20 61925/
00°0€9 ONILTNSNOD T¥YNOILYDNA3 0000-00}2-0000-100-0085-0-0000-10
"9 VIHLNAD ‘ZITVZNOD  £202/60/20 8Y9¢GL
G629 334 ONIHOLINOW 0000-04 18-0000-100-008S-0-0000-10
ONI ALIINO3S AITIVA 4330 €202/60/20 L¥92SL
eLvLL S1HOI7 SNg 0000-009€-0000-100-00€1-0-0%,0-10
1S3IMSNEg €20¢/60/20 9¥9¢S.
unowy unowy juswwoy 1SI0-ONNJ-TVO09-HOS-1rE0-A-0S3y-04 8jed 4ogiunn
3oayo pasuadxgy 40 J9p4Q 9y} 03 Aed }oayo }oayo

€202/60/20 P3jeq s323yd

SRYNLIANTY X7
uoday pieog ~

pzlAedbay



NdSSZL €202 8 9o ‘(H3dId3) Jedid ais{3 o} pajetsusn Arejuawis|3 uoiun Jeyseysuep - Zi0

| jJo | abey

‘panoidde aq sxyoay) Buipadaid

IdV 053 w 8y} Jey) pspuswiwiodal si}| "sas)sni Jo pJeog 8y} jo uonezioyine pue Adljod S,10UisIg U} UM 80UBpIOdd. Ul panss] uaaq aAey soay) Buipsoaid ay
€8°292°L (junowy x29y9) 1oN
00’ Aynger xeL predun sse1
£€8°292'L 6 SH28YQ Jo Jaquinp [Bjo]
05'985°C b NIATY WIOIdS VI¥ILIVO oy
£€'189'y 8 aNNd TvHaANIO 10
junowy pasuadx3] uno ¥299yo uonduosag pung
desay pung
€8292°L 6 303y Jo Joquiny [ejoL
09'1€S 180y AYVNNYI 0000-0028-0000-100-0+55-0-1 18010
6.°06% AHVNNYT 0000-0028-0000-}00-0¥55-0-0000-10
"ONI SLITTIM 40 S3LSYM aITOS  €202/20/20 Lzzest
00'GL¥'E SIS 0000-004.-0000-100-0085-0-29.29-L0
ONI SIIDOTONHOIL ISIMTOOHIS  €202/20/20 022esL
66'9 S3IMddNS SSVTO 0000-0004-04 b b-100-00€7-0-004 b-40
LIIMUVN 8% S €202/20/20 6L2eSL
89°0S ve'se Y3dVd AdOD 0000-0004-01 L 1-L00-00E¥-0-004 1-L0
09'L ¥3dVd AdOD 0000-00Z£-0000-100-00€+-0-0000-L0
vLLL ¥3dVd AdOO 0000-00.2-0000-+00-00€¥-0-0000-40
NOILVHOdHOD TIIND  £€202/20/20 8122SL
05'985°C HONNT 8 Y348 AON 0000-00£€-0000-}00-00L7-0-0LES-EL
HOS HOIH "NN LNIOr YNIYY INIOd  €202/20/20 L12esL
8101 AHVNNYI 0000-0028-0000-100-04$5-0-0000-40
389d €202/20/20 9Lzess
00'¥8€ 334 NOILOF13 0000-004£-0000-+00-0085-0-0000-40
3a4003Y-HYITO
ALNNOD ONIDOANIW  €£202/20/20 sizess
88'2CL L9 LOVHINOD 3OIAYIS 0000-000L-0L L 4-L00-0085-0-0000-L0
ev'8lL LOVHLINOD 3OIAYIS 0000-0022-0000-100-0085-0-0000-L0
Lo'ey 1OVHLNOD 30IAY3S 0000-0042-0000-100-0085-0-0000-L0
ONI VO NY3HL HON
SNOLLNTOS LINIWND0A YHIOOAN  £202/20/20 vizess
00°001 1S31 ¥31VM 0000-0} 18-0000-+00-0085-0-0000-10
S3IMOLVHOEY 1 IVOLLATYNY VHA TV €202/20/20 €12ess
junowy junowy jusluwiod 1SIG-ONNJ-TVOD-HOS-LrE0-A-0STN-04 ejeg dequinN
¥o9yo pesuadx3y 30 J9puQ 8y} 0} Aed ¥o8yo }oayo

€202/20/20 P3jeqd S123Y)

poday pJeog pZlAedbay



NdSSZ1 €202 8 994 ‘(¥3did3) Jedid ais|3 Joj pajesouss Arejuawal3g uolun Jsysaysuei - zyo

| Jo | abeyq

‘panoidde aq syosy) Buipeseud

Id %.w.m ER 84} 1Bl pepusWILIOOs] S|} "S88)SNI JO pieOg Y} JO UoezZloyine pue A91jod SJOLISIQ By} Yiim 80UBPIOIJE Ul panss| ussq aAey s)oay) Buipads.d ey
91'¢8.C (3unowy ¥28y9) JoN
00’ Aiqer xe| predun sse
9,'€8.'C 6 $3409YD Jo JaquinN |BjoL
62'v€Z L (Wesy) IONVHENSNI-413S L9
18'8¥5'C 8 ANN4 TYHINID L0
junowly pasuadxg juno) yoaayon uonduasaqg pung
deosay pung
91'€8lz 6 S99y jo Jaquinp |ejoL
8.'20lL SZT'LL IOVITIN S3IddNS VIA0LSND 0000-0022-0000-100-002S-0-0000-10
sz'9z IOV S3ITddNS TVIAOLSND 0000-002Z-0000-100-0025-0-0000-10
62°59 IOVITIN $31TddNS TVIAOLSND 0000-0028-0000-L00-00+-0-0000-10
3IST3 "Y3dId  €202/92/L0  85100000-HOA
62'veC 8WIZd HLTVYIH 0000-0009-0000-000-008S5-0-0000-29
SIAV ‘NOSYIANY €202/92/L0 2GL00000-HOA
0L'6¥2 AYYNYHE34 0000-0000-0000-000-+156-0-0000-L0
NY1d 30IAY3S NOISIA  £202/92/10 80915/
vZLL S3MddNS SN8 0000-009€-0000- 1 00-00E€¥-0-0%L0-10
1IMHVYNE®'S  £202/92/L0 L09LS.
g8°0e GZ'6 8604 LOOV ANV 159 LOOV 0000-00Z.-0000-+00-0085-0-0000-10
09’12 8604 LOOV ANV 1159 LOOV 0000-00.£2-0000-100-0085-0-0000-10
MHOMLIN ALINNIAWOD ONIDOANINW  €202/92/10 90916/
00'06 NOILV.LHOdSNYYH.L 0000-009€-0000-100-0085-0-0%20-10
NITIV ‘NIMYT  €202/92/1.0 G09LS.
G8'G9G L AYVNYg34 0000-0000-0000-000-7L56-0-0000-10
'41ITY0 40 NV1d TVIN3A VL13d  £202/92/10 ¥091LG.
v6'6. ONITTIE €2 Z1 L 0000-0028-0000-100-€065-0-0000-10
181V €202/9Z/L0 €091L5.
0SCLy NOILO3JSNI AVA S+ 0000-009€-0000-100-0085-0-0%20-10
AY3S HOIW ITI90N ST139 JILNY  €202/92/10 20916/
junowy junowy juewoy 1S10-ONN4-TV09-HOS-Lr80-A-0S3y-ad 8jeq 48quinN
¥oayon pesuadxy 40 18pIQ ayj o3 Aed ¥oayn }o8yo

€202/92/10 p3jeq s¥29yo

Hoday pieog

pzZiAedbay



NV 85°CS:6 £20T/0T/T 3WiL Uo(INdax3 T 9884 IVILNIAIINOD - JusWaseuBlA 19SSy Jajpuey)

¥

4

ENDA ITEM #

(siA) Aameyy %10 Tu PN Aauo
L9T) Wy e (%8'€7) UN +5 S*v  v-€ €T -1 1-§ §-S5T ST-0

% %71'0 usodag swnyy

AG

%' T -mm._a:m
(%2'8) v %0T ysey
%0'ET . 3e10dio)
%027 .
%0€
%8'8T Aouagy
- (%8°25) W — : ,
%8'8¢€
(d'8S) ALITVND LIQ3¥D NOILNGNMLSIO ALINLYW NOILVI0TIV 40133S
%5°S8 jeiol S61°890°Z0S 0€£S'928'SSY aN[DA 150D SIAE€0'T 9417 98eJany
. £78°799'20% 76291655 an|op yoog
%E'T Jueg UeOT SLIOH |etapad s o s €0'T Auniep [eury aSeiany
%ET 20ssy a8e81OW [eUOHIEN |eiopa TE0er6'v0Ss £86°9¥0°8SY 4bd
%19 dio) 28e81I0|A UBOT SWOH |esapad am/uod Tev/+vv Buney Apooly/d'gs a8esany
e 7 m
%28 jueg 1pai) wieq esspsy  £8F OVS t0s'8Ly patiby awoul %€8'€ LA 323JBIN 38esany
‘L’ ran 3N[DA 13)IDIN |DI0
%e's UN029y BUPBYD [eIPOISN) L8TLYE'T6Y eV LZT VY IDA 19)4D|A [BIO] o WLk seuping afesany
IPP's6TT 677901 158433uf pantady °
%TET dAIVD e ey
9vLTST 061 LY6' 790y SN[DA 13IDIN %99°T uodno) a8elany
%E ST pung Juswisanu] Aaus8y |edoT
ez/1e/en o se tz/og/1T 40 se i 5
%867 $3JB1S PaLIUN JO JUDWUIBADD sanjep pug sanjep ‘Sag 860 uopieing paljipoN adelany
SHINSSI dOL AYYIAIAINS LNNOJDY SJLLSIHILOVYEYHD O1104140d
2202 ‘T€ 4aqiazaq Jo sy 9000L# 1UN0Y

Atewwing 01]0J110d paiepijosuo) Aluno) oupopusp




sajdwo) 41v1 Aq unowe papiwsad wnuwixep (41%7) pund 1uawisaAu| Asuasy [eao]
pung [eninjA Jad xew %01 spund [eninp
Ul XBW 9%0¢ ‘pund [eninAl 1334\ ASUoy Jad Xew 90z ‘spund [eninpy pue spung [enin|A 13)Jel\ ASUO PauIqUIOD Xew %07
saydwo) ‘uol||iw 00SS< NNV Y3IM Spuny [eninw 39xJew Asuow SuiSeuew aduaiiadxa sieah
S < Yum uoneJssiSal D35 wouy 1dwiaxa Jo pasalsiSal JSIADE JUSLLISIAUI e pauielay (1) Jo 'SQUSYN om3 Aq Sunes 1saySiH (1)
‘el4a1Ld BUIMO||04 B} JO JBYUD 133W pue OYET 4O 1OV Auedwo) Juawisaauj Japun H3g Yum pasaisiday
‘PUOQ A321ns € 10 “UPaID JO SIB1IB| ‘UONEZI[BIDIE||0IIBA0 ‘O3 PAIILI 10U ING
‘Buipnjoul Juswadueyus paJd apim-wessold aaey 1snw S$31314NJ8s 3y} uay) ‘uonesodiod Ayjiqer| pajiwi Jo “IsnJy ‘uonesodiod
sandwo) asod.nd [e1aads e se 'S'n ay3 ulyum paziuesio s Janssi 3y3 §| ‘Uol(|IL OOSS JO SSBIXD U] SIASSE YIM 'S'N ay1 ui Sunnesado Jaded |elosawwo)
pue pazjuedio uoijesod.iod e sy 4anss| ‘Aliniew xew shep 0zz ‘4onssiiad xew %G ‘xew %0y ‘Aue 41 ‘suonesijqo wusy-Suo|
104 SOUSYN om31 Aq Jaydiy Jo AsoSaled Supes vy, pue ‘suones||qo wudl-1oys oy SOYSYN om3 Aq Jaysiy Jo Aio8a3ed 8unes 1-v,

spuny
[enin|A 39xJeN ASUOIA pue spun4 jeniny

Ajniew xew sAep 08T ‘anssi 1ad Xew %S ‘Xew %Qp ‘suonesi|qo 199p wWia1-3uo| 104 SOYSHN

om1 Aq JayBiy o AloSajed Bupes v, pue ‘suoi1es1|qo 1Gap W3-1oys 10) SOHSYN oM3 Aq 43y81y 4o AsoSazed Suned ,1-v,
Janss| Jad xew %5 ‘Q1/aD pazijesaie|jo)

sajjdwo) '8 2104 PAUIQUIOD XBW %07 ‘ME| BILIOJIED Y1M SIUBPIOIIE Ul SIIIINIBS YIIM pazijeJa1e||0d Ajjny a4e Y2Iym syunowe paJnsul
30 SS30X3 Ul suolun 1Ipaud Jo ‘sueo| pue SBUIAES ‘Syueq palalieyd Ajjelapay Jo a1ess ul ysodag 40 S31B2141343)) 3|qenosaN-uoN

saldwo) saoueldaody s Jayueg

(aL/a> 3|qenosau
-UoN) susodag awi| pazjjesaie||o)

sayduwon Jianss| Jad Xew %S ‘q1/ad pazijesaie|od 3 J1d4 paulquiod xew %0z ‘D]@d 4apun paJan0d WNWIXeW o3 pajiwi| st uoian3iisu Jad (aL/ao siqenosau
i junowe ay] ‘suoiun JIpasd 4o ‘sueo| pue sduines ‘syueq paJaueyd Ajjesapay 4o a3e3s Ul 1sodaq o sa3edlyia) 9|qeljo8aN-uoN -UoN) susodag awi] painsuj Hia4
(syvad)

saydwo) (S¥v@D Buipnpu yisodaq Jo sareayiua) s|qeinodaN paulquwod) xew %0¢ 39115 UBWIATE|d 150 40 B1EILIT
sayduion Jansst sad xew %S {(SYvad Buipnpui) xew %0¢ ‘suonedigo 193p WJ3)-1oys 1oy (GON) a1s0dag 40 se1eouIa3 3qenosaN

SOYSHYN om1 Aq Jaysiy Jo AsoSaied Sunes ,T-v, Jo/pue ‘suopiesdi|qo wial-3uo| 10} SOYSYN oM Aq Jay8iy Jo AsoSazes Sunes v,
359/Aduasy |eidpa4 4o Aunseaus] ‘S’ sI Janss| Y3 aJaym

saldwo) Auindas a8eS1io|A Aue uo uopelwi| Janss| oN "19nss| A3INJas 38e81I0 | [B[2IaWWO) 10 padoeg 19SSy ul Janssi Jad xew %5
* (sanunoag paxoeg-1assy pue ydnouy]-sseq agedpop PauIquiod) Xew %0z ‘SOYSYN OM1 Aq 19333q Jo A10Fa3ed Sunjes YV,

S91314n23S y8nouy|-ssed afeSiiop
pue (Sgv) $31111nJ3s paydeg-1assy

'S'N 3Y3 ulyHm Bunelado pue aels Aue Jo 's'n ay1 Ag pasuady) suoiniIsul Aloysodap Aq 40 s n uiyam

saldwo S9JON WLI3] whnipaj 21etod.io
4 2 Sunesado pue pazjuesio suopesodiod Aq panss| lanss) Jad xew %S ‘xew 90¢ ‘SOYSYN omi Aq 1anaq o AioSs3ed Sunes WVa 1eN L WNIPSIN 21 J
‘Bluioji[e) 01 uonippe Ul s31e3s 61 Jay10 ay o Aue jo Aydoyine Jo ‘“AduaSe ‘pieoq “uawiedsp e Aq Jo 33els e Aq pejesado
f < n - ’
sapduwion 40 ’pa)|0.43u02 ‘paumo Apiadoud BuPnpold-anuaAal e Wouy SanusAR. By} Jo1no Ajsjos ajqeAed spuoq Suipnjous ‘ejuioyed sanunaes [edioiLnp |
03 Uoiippe ui s33els g JaY10 ay) jo Aue jo suonedi|qQ ‘ejuioyie) Jo alels 3y ulysm Aouasde jedoj Aue pue ‘eluloyije) '
40 31835 81 ‘Aquno) ay3 o suonesiqo apnjou| ‘anssi Jad xew %S ‘XeW %0E ‘OYSHN e Aq sayBiy Jo AsoSa3ed Sunel WV
aavi 40 24|
saljdwo; suones euoijeuesdn
' 9 ‘aygl Aq panss suonesijqo pajeuipiognsun Janss|Jad Xew %0T ‘XBW %0E ‘SOYSYN OM3 Aq 4ay8iy Jo Aso8aiea Sunes vy, HESIA0 [euon S
$95140J93U3 paJosuOds-JUBWUIBA0S 'S’ JO SIDUBSE |RISpay
saldwo) Aq 3sa.33u pue |ediduid 03 se pasjuesens Aliny 10 Aq panssi asoy) Buipnjaul ‘sjusawinuisul Jay3o Jo ‘suonediiyed ‘suoiiesijqo S910Ud8y |eJapa4
9siudJajus palosuods-3uawuIianos 's'n Jo sajouage |elapa sa111in2as Asuase 3|qe|jes xew %0z ‘aansst AouaBy Jad xew 940€
sajjdwo) isa.33ul pue [ediound Jo JuswAed ay3 1oy paspa|d aJe ' 3y JO 1PaD pue yyeq |In4 ‘uonejiwij oN saunseal] 's'n
juswwo) plepuels AoSaie)

‘JUaWa}p)s 3ouvljdwios sy3 bupnpoad pup
s39ssp bujiiodau 10f uoiowioful 33040230 apino.d 03 3u3j|D UO s3jal J3jpuby) “JU3lD Aq Ajjpuiau) paboupw s3assp pup Juawaboupyy 1255y Jajpupy) Aq paboupw 533550 o UOLILPIOSUOD D S| Oljof1i0d SIy L

Pa31epIjosuo) ouopualy o Ajuno)

220Z ‘T€ 18qWiazaq fo sy
dsueljdwo) jo juswalels




saldwo) Aunjew wnwixew sieah §
Adtjod siy3 ui paiyiaads asimiayio

$S3JUN JO ‘spuny |eninui 3a3Jew Asuow pue ‘sjeuoieueldns ‘sd19 ‘S311INDIS JUBWUIBAOY *S'() 404 3d39x3 “Janss) Jad xew %S
'9SUSJap |BUOIIBU JNO U} Pasnh J0u

sayduon suodeam Jo ‘swueauly ‘s1onpoud 022eqoy Jo J2injoeinueLl 8y} Woly sanUaAaJ JIay) 4o uoiod JuedIHIUSIS B BA[I. JBY] SINUS Ul
’ paSeinodsip aJe syuswisaAU| "sadndeld Joge 418} puB punos AjjejuawuoliAu a2130e.1d Jey) SA1IUB BSOY) SE ||aM Se ‘uoniejuao
[enxas 1o ‘Ayljiqesip ‘a8e ‘a2e4 ‘Xas o ssa|p.eSal 1481 4o Ajjenba 1ioddns jeys saus Ul pa8einoous aJe suaWwisaAu|

saldwo)

S9NLINJ3S pajeulwouap Aaua.ind uslalog ‘Bulpus| sanINdas ‘sjuawsaaJ8y aseyounday asiaAsy (uiSiew uo S3IUINI3S

Buy|jas 4o Buiseyaung ‘sajes 3sa491ul 40 UoRd3UIP 34n3ny 33 uo Buiie|ndads Jo asodind 8|0s 2y 40} S3IINIDS Buipes] ‘panwiad

sajdwoy 3Je Ajunjew 03 pjay J [enJode 1sa.33ul SAIESPU JO 0432 U| 3|nsaJ pnoJ 1ey] JUSWIUIBA0Y °S' 3Y) AQ paydeq SaiINIas
‘9207 ‘T Adenuer Buiasuns uoisinoud e Japun ‘Ajniew o3 pjay Ji [enJode isaaiul 0497 :(s4osiniadns Jo pieog ayy Aq panoidde

$s3jun) siedh g ueyy JaBuo| Ajuniew yum saindes ‘sdiys Ajuo-1sa131u1 paaLIap a8eSuiow ‘saj0u agues ‘S19)B0}} 9SJ9AU|

saydwo) 19SIApE JUBWISAAUL AQ Pasn JON ‘Pazi|eta1e]|0d %Z0T ‘Aluniew Xew Jeah | ‘uofiejjwi| oN

sajjdwo)

Alaniew wnwixepy

Janss| Jad wnwixep]

SUJBJUOD [BIUSWILOIIAUT PUE [BIDOS

pauqiyo.d

sjuawaaJdy aseydinday

(d191) |00d UBWISBAU] JUBWUISA0D |e207



INV 85:75°6 €20Z/0T/T :9WIL UOIINIaX3 € 9zeq VILNIAIINOD - JUsWaBeURIA 195SY Jajpuey)
€40 A (£8'0£0'65T) 8LLLET %00°S 16'808°866°E %¥T0 €202/2/0T 30 %20
SL0 +YV /eRY  %6L°0 v0'8LL°658°E 67°96 00'0vZ'S66'E 070Z/87/60 00°000°000't 910N 9244 0SAWIEETE
190 vy (£8'17812T) 0TvLT'E %LV TOTTIT'SHO'Y %SC'0 €202/8/6 @nA %S0 '

+VV /BRY %080 vT'687'€T6'E 66'96 ST'I9Y'SYoy snouep 00'000°SV0'v 930N JATHA SMIVILETE

190 vy {z€'066'S2T) 2T9LT %861 00000666 %920 €202/8/6 @nQ %220
69°0 +VV /eeY  %6L0 89°600°€/8°¢ €896 00°'879°566°¢€ 0z0Z/¥1/60 00°000°000"Y 930N €244 8I9TIEETE
€90 vy (€€'6816€T) 8£'SSTY %L8'Y 8E'E0L'ET8Y %6C°0 €£202/¥7/8 9NA %S0
590 VYV /EBY  %S6°0 SOYIS Y89y 60'L6 05'896'818'Y SNolEA 00°000°528'y 9ION JTH4 LAIVILETE
090 AA (65°T552TT) Py ros %6y 61°782'866'E %L2°0 €207/¥1/89nA %C°0
790 +VV /BBY %610 09'0££°688'C vT'L6 00'0v9'T66°E 0z0Z/T1/80 00°000°000'Y 310N €244 PAETIEETE
09°0 vy (58'898°99) £9'997°8T %LLY PT'06£°666'C %E9'T £202/¥1/83nA %9'T
790 +VV/eeY %090 6C°TTS V6T 80°86 00'0¥0°966°C 6102/60/80 00°000°000°€ 930N €244 SIIIEETE
150 Yy {€8°€6108) 95921y %ES'V C9E0LELY'E %CE0 €202/0T/L9NQ %ST°0
S0 +VV /BBY %690 6L'605'€6€'E S9'/6 SL°8TS'L9V'E 020¢/80/L0 00°000°SLY'E 910N VIAINS POS0DGETE
80 vvvy (€9'6£599) 8S¥1T %657 0Z'ISY'86T'S %SE0 £207/92/9 @nQ %SZ°0
87'0 YV /e.y %990 LS TL8TET'E ¥6°L6 00'79€°062° 0z0z/vZ/90 00°000°00€€ 310N DNTHS vSAVILETE
870 vyv (L€TL6'TE) 85'¥19 %8Sy 65'665'86Y7 %68'T £207/97/99NA %LL'T
8%°0 +YV /EBRY %050 2T'879'99%°C 19°86 00'GLE'88Y'T 6102/12/90 00000005 330N €244 LNSMIEETE
£V UN (85'6502€) 8T'TLSE %TL'Y ¥S'0ZVTSLT %007 €207/6/93nQ %STT'C
90 +VYV/eey %550 96'09€°61TLC 68'86 00'S€0°€9.C 610Z/01/90 00000052 310N g1H4 EOVEBEETE
53 40) vy (09'16%'02) £9°99L %ty T1'£95°666°E %EE0 £202/8/9 ®nA %¢£'0
70 +yV /eey %080 1S'SL0'6T6°E £7'86 00°000°L66°E 0z0Z/20/90 00°000°000'y 910N €244 T8973EETE
8€'0 vV {0z'v0L'6Y) ¥0'9Z8 %65V S8'/18'80°E %SE0 €£202/72/S 3NA %ST0
6£0 +VV /eRY %190 S9'ETT666C ££°'86 0S'6T8°0%0°E 020z/02/S0 00°000°0S0°€ 910N VIAINS £0V09OSETE
14 %0) YvY (TO'PSETY) 00°0S.T %St v S0'LS8'666T %6€°0 €202/S/S N %SLE°0
vE0 +VV /BBY  %09°0 ¥0'€05°856'C 79'86 00'0v.°866C 02Z02/50/50 00°000°000°€ 2I0N DATHA 9YIVILETE
0€0 NAAd (r88rz'es) YT'ZET'E %LSY L TYTISEL Y %9€°0 £202/02/v @nA %SLE°0
0€'0 +YV /eeY %580 8TTLI6T8TY SL'86 08'7ET9ETY snoleA 00°000°SECy 330N JWTHA 80IVILETE
610 UN (9¥'20TTT) 0S'LE¥'ST %Iy 65°€69°700°E %¥T'T €207/0T/€8NnA %SL°T
6T°0 +vv/eey %190 €T 16V T66'C 7066 00'0ZT°L50°€ 6102/827/€0 00°000°000'¢ 310N g1H4 69Y0Y0ETE
P10 vy (eTT6ETT) €€°802'ST %8T'Y 1TL66°666C %SY'T €202/12/T9nA %SY'T
$1°0 +VV/eey %190 609098867 2966 00'0v6°666°C 0z0z/v1/20 00°000°000°€ 910N 9244 OMNTIEETE

AINIOV

2207 ‘T€ 42qwa23Q fo sy
1ioday s8uipjoH

9000L# 1Unodoy

paiepijosuo) Ajuno) ouopua




NV 85:75°6 €Z0Z/0T/T :3Wi] U01INax3 ¥ 9384 TVILNIAIINOD - JUSWIFRUBA 19SSY Jajpuey)
000 N 000 000 %00°0 02'2SZ'0E0TY v/N 02'2S2'0E0"TY ysej |ezo}
000 UN/UN  %Se'8 02'25Z°0€0°TY 02°25Z°0€0'TY
000 N 000 000 %000 88'87LTTOTY %00°0
000 UN/UN  %SE'8 88'82L'7T0'TY 00T 88'82LCT0TY SNOLEA 88'82L'7T0TY 1unoay sueg Jisodaq SupdayD TSHIIHI06
000 N 000 000 %000 TEETSLT %00°0
000 UN/UN %000 TEETSLT 00T TEETSLT snouep TEETSLT 1UN022Y Yse) [eIpoisn) ysed 00$HSY206

HSYD
780 vvy (6T°252°€99'7) 96'19516T %L9'V 12°S8L'SL9'v6 %88°0 00°000°0TL'v6 Asualy jerof
58'0 WY /eey  %//'8T Z0'€052T0°26 0L'v61'899'76
£€7C vy (o€ 15¥'£ST) Yy 60T %6E'Y GE'8SET66Y %L6'T S70t/6/S N0 %6'C
9¢'7 +YV /e.Y %660 S0'L06'VESY 0496 00'052'0667 770T/€0/50 00°000°000°'S 930N 9244 6HMNIEETE
¥6'T AA (65°851'91€) SLEVELT %SS v ¥£'S08°0667 %TT'T S70Z7/9/T 3na %SZT'T
0t +YV /BRY %960 ST LYEVL9Y 67'€6 00'TLE°986'Y SNOLEA 00°000°000's 310N €244 SSINIEETE
16T vy (1£°02¥'0€T) TT°119 %ES'Y 6T°EV8'866'T %EO'T ¥202/02/21 and %1
16T +VV /BBY  %8E'0 85'7T¥'898°T wee 00°0v7'866°T 120Z/12/TT 00°000°000°C 310N g1H4 0P4OVO0ETE
09T dN (Lzevy's) 0S°LE6°SY %9V ZU6TTIv6YE %8Y'Y Y2Z0T/ET/6 9NA %SLE Y
0L'T +VYV /eeY %70 S8'9/9'S8Y'E 6566 00°0TZ'€6Y'E 7202/9t/60 00°000°005‘€ 910N g1H4 EOUAXEETE
T vy {89°'€0.06) 95'109°T %69'Y €9 VYL VY8 T %92°0 ¥2027/92/72anQ %ST'0
9T'T +VYV /BBY  %9€°0 S6'0V0VSLT L0°S6 08'SEEWPY8'T 1202/22/20 00°000°S¥8'T 910N §244 LZYNIEETE
060 VY (6T ¥6T6TT) SLEYS %88’V I¥'9T1668C %820 €202/¥/TT @A %ST'0
€60 +VV /BBY  %/S°0 TTTTLE'6LLT 98'S6 00'621°468C 020Z/20/TtT 00°000°006° 930N JNTHA TV4VILETE
880 Yvy (0Z°58€86T) 950817 %SL'Y 0£'0SET00'S %TT0 €202/42/11 3nA %ST'0
160 +VYV /BBY %860 05596208y 90'96 00°00%'700'S 020¢/91/21 00°000°000°s 910N VIAINS THO09SETE
880 vy (98°18586T) 95°081'T %YLy 9T'TT8'T00'S %IT0 €207/L2/TT @nQ %ST0
160 +YV /eBY %860 0€'622°€08'y 90'96 00'006S00°S 020Z/91/21 00°000°000°S 310N 9244 9YHWIEETE
€80 vy (se'zTe's9T) £8'7/9T %881 SE'/88E8EY %8C°0 €70Z/9/1T ®nQ %SZ'0
580 +YV /BBY %980 00'SLS'8TT'Y 0796 0S'€S0'T8E'Y 0707/€0/11 00°000'S8€'y 330N JWTH4 873VILETE
LL0 vvvY (£5'229'%ET) €9'STO'T %SL'Y ¥6'€L1°968'¢E %ST'0 €207/9T/0T @nQ %STT°0
6.0 +vv/eeY  %//°0 LE'TOSTIL'E 5796 00°€SYS88'E 0z0T/v1/0T 00°000°006'€ 930N JITHA TAIVILETE
AJN3OY

2207 ‘T€ 42qwiazaq Jo sy

1oday s8uip|oH

9000L# Junody

paiepijosuoc) Aluno?) oudopua Al



WY 85:¢S'6 €£C0Z/0T/T :awi] uonnaax3 G 93ed VILNIAIINOD - JusWaseUBRA 135SV Jo|pueyd

$202/ST/L®nA %ST9°0

67T UN (81°05096) L1°000's %ER'Y €L68TVTLT %Y0'T 720T/sT/L
¥S'T /LY %EED SS6ET'8Z9'T ye'e6 OT'€TL9TLT 120Z/L0/21 00°000'SEL'T JU0D BION S[qe(jeD JU| WOI'3II0S3|eS 69V19976/
o't v (80°2ZT0TT) 00°85S %C8' Y 61'£88°8S8‘T %610 ¥20T/L/9 3NA %S
T v/Ty %9€°0 TH'09L8VLT 2076 00'5/9°LS8°T 1202/L0/90 00°000°098'T 910N dio) jende) a493q uyor 6DAITLYYT
veET v {€£¥19'80T) 05'988'T %16 CTT9ELEEE %8Y'C $20T/LT/S 3anA %S0
8E'T V/Tv %990 6Y'LYL'8TT'E €16 LO'EV0'687° snolep 00°000°0E¥'E 310N 2IAI3S [edUBULH JRjjIdIR1RD OTCHETEYT
€ET vy (s€z6082T) STTES'T %881 €TTTLEBYT %E6'0 YT0T/TT/S A %SP'0
9¢€'T YW/IV  %8Y0 88'6T9'SSET we 00°008°0LY'C 120Z/10/2T 00°000°005°C 9JON 2U| WO UoZBWY SMESETEZO
¥202/81/€9nQ %SL°0
8T'T v (15°08Y'V1T) TY'SE6'Y %661 €SP0 T0ET %TL0 ¥20¢/81/T 310D
121 V/I¥  %SY0 20795981 L0°S6 00'0TL20€T snoliep 00°000°00€C 910N 3|qejjed dioD gemyds ssjieyd YNEETS808
vl vy (05'T¥v66) 00°SLS°E %66V 00°'S6€'666'T %850 Y20Z/¥/€ 3nA %550
8T'T V/IV  %6£0 0S'€56'668'T 00'S6 00°025'866'T 120Z/0/%0 00°000°000'C SION ueg uoluiog 0luoJo| 600DYTT68
90T N (95'v¥6'sz) - SZ7'Z8L %66 68'7LL6ES %6E°0 ¥202/7/T7 3nQq %S€°0
60'T +Y/IV %010 €€'8TBETS ST°S6 09'€LE'6ES 1202/8Z/10 00'000°0%S 910N dio3 jeURUL JEIORY PTUYTLERS
w01 v (70'5S6°73) 008107 %8LY LS'Y6V'6S6'T %LY'0 ¥Z0T/L1/13nA %SY°0
S0'T vV/Tv  %8E0 €5'6E5'VL8'T v9'56 078098567 T20Z/10/€0 000000961 310N dio) [ended sueaq uyor 9NAITTYYT
£V'0 +yy {9v'9v6°LE) 68'8€0°T %S1'S ¥6'£20°T00C %ELO €202/6/9 ®nQ %58°0
90 +VV /€8Y  %0¥0 87°T80°€96'T ST1°86 00°0Z¥'€00°7 1202/TT/TT 00°000°000°C 910N 3uipuny [eqo|9 [BNINIA SSEIN ZNOMGBZ9LS
SE0 YN (85°8¥¥'ST) L9'TY0T %18y ¥S'ZE0°T00'T %9Y°0 €20Z/T1/59NA %SL°0
9¢'0 +YV /eeY %070 96'€85'586 9586 00°00€'800°T 0202/92/90 00°000°000°T 310N du| ajddy 6AQEEVLED
€€°0 UN (sT627'L) 19'998°c %8L'Y 64'077'666 %59'Z £702/€/S2nA %b'T
PE0 +YV /BRY %070 79'166'T66 0766 00°'06.°066 6102/02/50 00°000°000'T 930N 2uj 3|ddy IIVEERLED
€202/11/¥ @0 %SS'T
LT0 vy (82°060°6) 00°005'8 %08 09'6TL'66Y'T %T9°C €£202/11/1
820 YV /7eY  %IE0 2€'679°06Y'T 8€'66 00'596'S6Y'T 6102/10/50 00°000°00S'T 1U0D 310N 3|qe|[e) $8403S MEN-|EM EHATYTIEG
9z'0 +Y (6€'689'2) 11199 %S9 16576669 %0 €202/9/v 3nA %v'0
970 +Y/IV  %vT0 7S°9£2°769 6886 00°€E¥'669 120Z/90/+0 00°000°00£ 910N dio) 1pau) 1030 eloAo) 8Qr19€768
oT'0 4N (v6T26'2) 00'009°L %08t v¥'866'666 %06'T €202/L/T3N0 %6'T
0T'0 +V/IV %070 05'9£0°£66 1L°66 00'056'666 6702/1€/0T 00°000°000°T 330N dio) jeioueuld Jeddeq TYOUTLERY
€00 +v (s8°9v7) 00'SZ161 %0Y' ¥ TZ¥10°005T %997 €20Z/T1/13NA %L'C
€00 +W/IV  %IED0 9€'L97'66Y'T S6'66 00'068'T0S°T 6102/02/S0 00°000°005‘T 910N di0) 3paL) 4010 BICAOL S1319€768
LVHO4H0D

2z0Z ‘T€ 1aquiaoa( Jo sy 9000L# UNoddY

Hoday ssuip|oH pa3epijosuo) Ajuno) oupopusiy



IV 85:¢S'6 €¢0¢/0T/T :awil uonnaaxy

g ased

VILNIAIINOD - JUsWasRUBIA 135SV J9|puey)

STOZ/¥T/9 3na %SY8'E

434 vy (€9'L6T'€€E) SL°€88'C %8T°S Z0'8Y€°00S°T %EV'E SZ0Z/¥T/93u0)
Stz V/IV  %0€0 6EDSTL9V'T 18°L6 00'08¥°00ST 7202/80/90 00°000°00ST 910N 3|qe|(eD 02 g dseyD eSO dr €30d/799%

SZOZ/ET/93NA %EV'E

1€ -vv (s6'v20vT) €6'L/8'T %6L'Y 00°000°660'T %EV'E ¥Z0TZ/ET/9 30D
SY'Z v/1iv %0 S0'SZ60L0'T 18°L6 00°000°S60°T 2207/80/90 00°000°S60°T 910N 3|qe|je) dioD UO|[SIAl AN JO jueg £49H90v90

87C YN (80°257'29) 95'0€T's %80°S 8'£96°200C %0L'€E S707/9/9 ®nQ %99L'€
£€9'C V/IV  %0¥0 Ov'STLOV6T y0°'L6 00°099°€00°7 7202/70/90 00°000°000°Z 90N jueg uojujWoQg-03uoIo] 6YZVSTII68

87'C UN (z89v5'sz) 00°SZTE %89t VE'GTEBTE'T %S6°C SZ0Z/TT/S ¥na %SCT'T
9¢'C +VY /BRY  %BE'D T8'8LLTY8T AN4) 000087681 7702/97/%0 00°000°000' SZ0T/TT/v 30D 910N 3jqejie) ouj a|ddy VL1QEERLED

ST0T/ST/v ®Na %SE'E

81'C vy (€L v6Lv8) L1'8789T %8L'Y 86'€0L6ELC %SEE §Z0Z/ST/€ uod
€T V/IV %S0 ST'6067S9T 6896 Ov'9T9°6€LC 2202/61/%0 00°000°0¥£°C 910N B|ge|jeD dlo) UO|BIAl AN JO Yueg 008490%90

81'C v (59°5TEYS) 00°0SLYy %EI'Y 75591001 %01 STOT/ST/v 3NA %ST'T
67'C v/ %6T0 L8'6Y8'8Y6 8816 00°06€V00T 7z0z/Te/T0 00°000°000'T ST/ST/y 0D 310N Bjqejje) dio) 198ie] 679321948

9T'¢C vy (0T°555°TL) 00°000°€T %09y 01682007 %E6'T SZOZ/ET/v ana %E
87'C YV/IV  %0v0 0€'9EETE6T 15796 00'08.°€00C T70T/81/%0 00°000°000°Z 210N JU| WO UOZRWY YIDSETETO

0Tz vy {£9°8tE'8€) £9°99v°L %YLy §9'89€°656 %E]'T SZ0Z/TZ/€9NA %8'T
e VY /€Y %610 88'6£0'T76 ¥6'G6 09°SP1'656 220T/v1/€0 00°000°096 DXGINEHTEIN SMIDLTZES

§Z0Z/9T/7 ®nd %£95°0

S0 vy (98782 TvT) LY9EY'S %eT'S TSYSYTLS T %S0T ¥20Z/91/7 30D
£1'C V/IV %050 99'69162Y' YEV6 00'0£9°895°C snolep 00°000'545C 910N 3jqejjed 0 ¥ aseyd uedion Jf TASdLY99Y

00T N (€9°€T7'69) 00°00S%T %9L'Y 15'S0V'TS6T %66'T ST07/9/73nQ %8'T
) ard +Y/IV  %6ED 88'T6T€88'T 9T'v6 00°025"9€6'T 7202/81/%0 00°000000'C 330N di0) jefpueuly Jedded 99DYTLERT

L6'T vy (z€'087'961) €EEEETT %667 00°'000°000°s %09'T S20Z/17/T N0 %9'T
907 Y/IV %S0 89'6TS°€087 St'E6 00°000°000°€ T20z/21/10 00'000°000°€ 910N epeue) Jo yueg |eAoy €NAIITO8L

VvV (0z'8/6'811) 99'196°1C %66y 0£'909°292°€ %6Y'T SZ0Z/YT/T3nA %SH'T
+VYV /EBY %790 0T'879sv0’s wee 08'ELV'TIT'E T70Z/11/10 00°000'592'¢ 310N [egO|D 3417 YIOA M3N SHIMTSEY

+Y (68°8LT'L1T) LT'SSLTT %YLy ¥9'£82°€88'T %0S'T STOT/ET/T 3NA %SY'T
+V/IV  %9E0 S/'801°99L°T 69°€6 0T'¥Lt'788T 7z0z/01/10 00°000°588'T 330N d10) 1pa.) JOJO BI0AO €1r19€768

98'T vy (68°£98°CTT) 88'T2CT %ST'S St'v86'87ST %6T'T ¥20T/9/21 and %ST'T
€6'T YV /€Y %620 95'9TT'9TH T 9576 0T vZv'875T 1202/10/TT 00°000°0€ST 910N Buipuny [ego[9 20Dl O0DMESTYL

89'T vy (ee'svi'eeT) 95'559° %6T'S SE'TE0'E86'T %0T'T ¥202/L2/6 9NA %L°0
VLT VY /€BY  %BED 20'9v€'6Y8°T L¥'T6 00°009°2L6'T T202/10/CT 00°000°000' EINEHER 0dIDLTZ6S
A1VHOdY¥0D

Z20Z ‘1€ 1aqwiasag Jo sy
Hoday s3uip|oH

9000L# 1Unody

paiepijosuo) AJuno) ouopusiy



IV 85:25:6 £202/0T/T :3WIL UOINIEX] L 93ed TVILNIAIINOD - JusWaBBUB 19SSy Jajpuey)
000 UN 000 000 %LT'Y ZIU'6LL'TOD %LT'Y ZT'6LL'TOV pung 12Jein Asuoy |e10L
000 VvV /eey %800 CU6LL IO TU6LLTON
000 UN 000 000 %LTY ZT'6LL'TOV %LT'Y 178
000 VYV /BeY %800 ZU6LLTOY 00T TT6LL IOV SNOLIEA ZT'6LLTOY 1uswadeue yse) Ad8y/Asi] snjAsig £0T806197
ANNF LINYYIN AINOW
000 UN 000 000 %08y 00°000°000°59 %085y 00°000°000°59 100d JUdWIS3AU| ADH 8207 [BI0]
00'0 VYV /UN  %ETET 00°000°000°59 00°000°000'S9
000 UN 000 000 %05t 00°000°000'S9 %05
000 VYV /YN %ETET 00°000°000s9 00T 00°000°000S9 snoliep 00°000°000°59 dNYD Wweioud JWBIA 1855y elusojijed 005dNVYI06
100d LNIWLSIANI AOD T¥I01
00°0 N 000 LT6LLTCE %ET'T 00°000°000°SZ %EL'T 00°000°000°SL divieiog
00'0 UN/UN  %EE'ST 00°000°000°SL 00°000°000'SL
000 UN 000 LT'6LLTTE %ET'T 00°'000°000°S. %ET'T {ood
000 UN/UN  %EE'ST 00°000°000's2 00T 00°000°000'SL snouep 00°000°000°s£ 93e1§ pun4 Juswiisaauj Aausdy (2007 00541v106
411
LLy vy (e €8s'28%'7)  66°950°00€ %98y 06°260'vE6'S9 %12 00°000°05£99 ajes0dio] je30)
6T W/IV  %L6'CT LS'605'9bP'€9 LS°S98°26L'S9
£202/0T/S and %P
€6'E +y (08'6/0CT) 199992 %Ly TS LOT'ET6'E %6V £T0T/0T/v 0D
9y +Y/2V %080 TLLT0'TIE'S 8L°L6 00°095TZ6'E 7202/87/11T 00°000°000'y 910N 23|qej|e) Aueduwo) 1sn. | LIBYLON TMV658599
9202/9/T 9N %9vL'T
00T vy (95°582°0¢T) STY6E'0T %¥T'S 00'876°0£8°7 %EE'E S202/9/t
or'€e V/IV %550 ¥%°799'00LC €1°€6 00°078's18C snouep 00°000°006'C 1U0D 310N d[qe|{e] Yueg 18335 31e1S €YHLIYLS8
ST0T/ST/6 9nd %
15T v (0z'£6067) £€'€85°C¢ %8Y'Y €0°LT¥'698°C %80'Y SZ0Z/S1/8
14T V/Ttv %850 €8'6TE0V8T 6.'86 0v'0v8'898°C snouea 00°000'5/8°T 1u0D 310N 3|qe|je) 10daQ 3WoH TYI9/0LEY
67'C vy (treesee) 19°992vT %08 022122007 %98°¢€ §20Z/6/6 @nA %6°E
69C YV /.Y  %I¥0 8L 7€9'696'T 87'86 00°09%°200°C 7702/60/60 00°000°000° 910N $3403S HeN-BM 6MITYTTEG
3LV¥04H0D

ZZ0T ‘T€ 49quiaa( Jo sy
1Joday sSuipjoH

9000L# 1Uno22Y

paiepijosuo) Auno) oupopusiy



NV 85:256 £202Z/0T/T :3WlL UORNIAX] 8 93ed TVILNIAIINOD - JuBWaseUEIA 13SSY Jajpuey)
. Z0'T vvvY (z9v€2'08T) 8L'60£C %YLV 79'8L0°S66'€ %YT0 ¥2Z0T/ST/T 9na %SZT°0
¥0'T +VV /BBY %870 00'vY8 V18’ LE'S6 STT8LS86'E 1202/71/T0 00°000°000'y ajoN Aunseau] sn 039228716
€60 vy {0T'0¥8's9T) [4%3Y4 %89t 0T'095°£66°E %61°0 €20Z/ST/2T 3nQ %SZ1°0
96'0 +VV /eRY %80 00°0ZLTERE 64'S6 SLEVETE66'E ozoz/Lit/zT 00°000°000'v 2J0N Aunseall sn 8v4d0Z8716
S8'0 vy (80°06616T) £6'229°T %08 80°008'666' %520 €20Z/ST/11 @nd %SZ'0
(80 +VY /eeY %860 00°018208'y 91'96 90'VIv'666Y 1202/92/%0 00°000°000°s 930N Ainsead) sn TMVDIZ8ZI6
180 vvv (1°79980T) 0'IvL's %0L'Y 16'978°125°E %98°0 €207/TE/0T @nQ %ST9'T
€80 +VV/eRY  %0.°0 0S'Z8T'ETY'E 516 16'879685°¢E snolep 00'000°005'€ 930N Adnseas] sn 161878716
€0 vyv (85°Tv6'99) ST'6£5°0T %EL'Y 85°9T8°766C %TLT £202/0€/6 3nQ %SLE'T
SL0 +YV /eeY %090 00°'5£8926'C 9516 69'755'€96C 610Z/61/21T 00°000°000°€ 310N Alnseal] sn 971878716
LS50 Yvv (st'sv82s) £6°769°ST %0L'Y SY'TRLIE66T %T9'T €T0T/TE/L3nA %STT
850 +VV /BBY %090 00'9€6°0v6'C €0'86 18°L05°096'C 610Z/LZ/TT 00°000°000°¢ ajoN Aunseau} sn 765878716
AYNSYIHL SN
0z'0 UN 00'0 €8°LEL %LY"0 00°000°00S %Ly'0 00'000°00S ysodaq awiy [elo}
610 UN/UN %010 00'000°00S 00°000°005
£202/0T/€ @nQ %6470
7o N 000 9T'1ZE %S0 00°000052 %S0 usodag
[4400) UN /YN %S00 00'000°052 00°00T 00'000°052 2202/07/€0 00°000°0S¢ BUWIL UouN 1PaID 1S4l Alunwiwo) STSANINGG
£20T/€/€ 9N %S0
FAN) UN 000 £9°9T¥ %050 00°000052 %050 usodag
LT°0 IN/YN %S00 00°000°052 00'00T 00000052 7z0z/e0/€0 00'000052 SWI] UNCD OUDOPUBN JO jueg sBuines STSANIINGE
11S0d30 INIL
w0 YV (6v'8E9'82T) 08'08€C %99'Y £7'8VT'T06' %v20 00'000°006‘9 leuogieuesdng jeo)
V0 VvV /eey %ge'l 166052449 087009069
880 Yvv (0€'£89TY) £0°08C %Ly 91°00€'680°T %CE0 €20T/vT/TT 90 %ST°0
060 VYVY /BeY  %TZ0 98'799°L¥0T 7196 05'959°280T 0z0Z/L1T/1T 00°000°060°T 910N JuswdofaAaq 73 UODBY Yueg ‘Ul 9INI8S06SY
6€0 dN (8t7"'96v"eY) Y8t %99'Y €€'T/82058C %LT0 £202/¥7/S 9Na %S0
6€°0 YVV/eBY %050 S8VLEGSYT LE'86 00°00ZSTSC 1202/€7/%0 00°000°005‘C 9JON Nueg ASQ UBdlBWY-191u] LINQOXT8SY
0€°0 vvv (T£v05ey) 10°918 %EY'Y ¥6'926'80€°€E %ET'0 £202/0/v ®na %STT°0
00 VvV /eeY %990 €T°TLY'S9T'E $9'86 0€'8YT'E0E'E TZ0Z/€1/%0 00°000°0TE'E 910N Juawdojaas( 13 uoaaY yueg "y 9AI85065Y
TYNOILYNVYHdNS

Z220Z ‘T€ 4aqwiasag Jo sy
oday s8uipjoH

9000L# 1Uno2dy

pa1epijosuo) AJuno) ouPopuBA



INV 8556 €20Z/0T/T -dWiL uoiniaxy 6 @3ed TVILNIAIANOD - JuswWaseURIA 195SY Jajpuey)
61¢ YvyY (TS'7Ly'S8E) 9¢'£8€9 %IEY 1SLLT 186 %L9°0 SZOT/TE/E9NA %S0
YA VYV /BRY %60 00'50.G65Y 1616 95'T09'996' 1202/50/%0 00°000°000°s 3J0N Ansealt sn 042878716
60°C vYv (8g'15€'0T€) LSZTT'6T %SE Y 88'TSZ'I66V %ITT $202/82/2 9N %STTT
91T +YV /BBY  %S6°0 00°006°0L9°Y tr'es 69'V0EL86'Y NSN\S\S 00°000°000°S 230N Aunsesu) sn 127878216
002 vy ?w.og.mmmv 8€'041'8T xoq.v ww.owﬂho\m %TT'T STOZ/TE/T3NA %SLE'T
60°C +VV /BRY  %96°0 8 8503 S em mo.mmogqm NNonO\S 00°000°000's 310N aamwﬁ m: 157878716
06'T vV ﬁm mg mﬁmv 3 mmm N x@ e B $m Rm « xmo T Eom\mﬁ\ﬁ wsa §
96'T +VV /eRY  %S6°0 00'ST9°Z89Y S9°€E6 8E'V8Y'966'Y TZ0Z/v0/10 00°000°000°s ajoN Aunsesuy sn 8NQJZ8TT6
8T vy (LO"TVP'SOY) r'6TE9 %LY'Y LO'0E8'SLY9 %560 YZOZ/ST/1T @NA %SL°0
88'T +vv/eey  %p7T 00'68€°0L09 6€°€6 ¥6'09%°79%'9 snoleA 00°000°00S‘9 9j0N Anseal) sn THADTZ8ZT6
10T vvv (L6'TEL88T) 9EVIF'ST %67t L6°575°9/8'S %L9'C ¥Z0T/TE/0T 9nQ %S'T
¥8'T +VV /eey  %9T'T 00'¥T8289°S 08'v6 ST'T8L0ER’S 220/LT/v0 00°000°000°9 330N Ainseal} sn SINIASZ8ZTE
VLT vy (8090€CTV) SE'S0L8 %8y v 80°L66'G8Y'9 %SL°0 ¥20Z/ST/01 w:o xmmm 0
64T tvv/eey  %vTT 00'T69°€£09 AT Ly moﬂ 8L’ 9 SnoLieA 00°000°005‘9 2)0N Ansea.] sn 90078716
99°'T A (z9'09g€12) 66’169 %ES'V 2E6EL 067 m %¥S0 YZ0T/ST/6 9nA %SLED
? T +YV /BBY  %E£9°0 0L'8LE'LLOE ST mm w mmm mmN m HSN\E\% 00°000°00£'€ 330N Aunseal] sn LXJ278TT6
S 1 vy (P€'S0LVLT) £V E8Y'ST xwm v <m £e8758" m xmn 4 $202/1€/8 9nQ %S2'T
19T +VV/eey  %9T'T 00'821°€89°S L6 €1'8£0°008°S 7202/87/%0 00°000°0009 910N Aunseal] sn vIABZ8TI6
85T vy (0z'v8s25T) 9/'599's %09°Y 0T'798°066°¢ %750 $20Z/ST/8 9N %SLEO
91T +YV /BBY  %9.°0 00°087'8€L‘s 9Y°'€6 00'0S.‘€86' 120T/vZ/60 00°000°000'% ajoN Ainseauy sn 910078716
0S'T AA/ (ze'616'152) SE'676'9 %S9 CE'TLS000Y %LED 20T/ST/L90A %SLE0
$S'T +VV /BRY  %9/°0 00°765°8VL'E TL'€6 SL'€60°T00Y 1Z0Z/50/80 00'000°000"Y 930N Anseal] sn mduNmNE
wT Yvv (15°€v6'6v1T) 06'T6¢ %9y TS'80C'L6YV'T %EE'0 ¥202/S1/9 3nQ %S0
97T +YV /BBY  %8%°0 oo S9Z° Sm N 68°€6 8TUBEL V6T Som\oimo 00°000°005°C ajoN Aunseal] sn 90078716
PE'T A (£604800T) 0 895 %69y LY'vL9'8vLT %TE0 ¥Z0Z/S1/S 8nd %ST°0
nm T +<<\ mm< %YE'D 0§’ mow ‘Y91 S V6 Hm mNH NE H HSN\R\mo 00°000°0S4'T 310N aamm& m: €22078216
VoY (18°8¥5'292) 98°/10% xmo v S €5/ ooo s %3E°0 qmom\mﬂ\v ang xmnm o
67T +VV /BRBY  %96°0 00'S0Z'EELY 996 18'LSLT00°S 120Z/v1/%0 00°000°000°S ajoN Aunsealt sn TA9DZ8CT6
LTT VvV (58'£00'%02) £V'€86C %ILY S8'665L66°E %0€°0 ¥20Z/ST/€3nNQ %S0
17T +VV /BRY  %LL0 00°765°€6L'E 816 0S'790'v66°¢E 120Z/vT/€0 00°000°000'y ajoN Aunseady sn THE0T8TI6
0T'T vy (s8'2E8°T6T) 85'888'T WLV 58'S80V66°E %920 ¥202/S1/T3na %STT°0
ETT +VV /eRY  %/1°0 00'872'T08'€ £0°66 TO'SLEY86'E SnoLeA 00°000°000'Y 3J0N Ainseal) sn C2INGDZ8TTE
AYNSYIYL SN

zz0Z 'T€ 42quiazag fo sy
1Joday sSuipjoH

90004# 1unodoy

paiepijosuor AJunos) ouPopus



WV 85:¢5'6 £¢0Z/0T/T 3wl uoiINdeX3 0T @3ed TVILNIQIINOD - JUsWaBRURIA 185SY Jo|puey)

86°981'LVE'T6Y . a3aNYIDV SN1d INTYA LDIHVIA TYLOL
860 vyv (6€°9L0°TTS ZT) 89°0VP'S6T'T %ES'E 69°228799°20S %S8'T ZETEO TY6 YOS 0OI104.180d V101
€0'T +VV /IBY  %00°00% 0E'9VL'TST 06V §2'S61'890°20S
66'1 Yvv (8€7z09'1€2'L) €£6'€T68LE %y €8'V6L6TT'EST %¥ST 00°000°050°5ST Ainsesuj sn jelof
L0'C +YV [ eeY  %6L'6T SY'Z61'886'SYT 98'864'89L2ST
£T'Y A SY'098°06 L9°8€S %T0'Y SS'LTS6TL'S %LY'Y L702/0€/9 8nQ %ST'E
0S'v +yv/eey %811 00°88€'018'S ¥8°96 8EVEL'LOL'S 20T/1Z/0T 00°000°000'9 910N Aunseas) sn LM3IDT8TT6
¥8'€ AA (10'992'8T) YTSvL6T %90 10'59t°082's %T6'E £T0T/ST/TanA %ST'T
€Ty +VV /eBY  %/9°0 00'669°T97'€ 61°€6 1€'S69°LLT'€E zz0Z/71/TT 00°000°00S°€ 330N Aunseal sn 86ABT8TT6
LO€ vy (67" ¥SY'TTT) 9. T6Y'vE %ET'Y 6v'780CLL'S %05°€ 970Z/TE/€ aNA %5T'T
sTe +yv /eey %971 00'829099°S PEP6 ST'9ST0SL'S 7202/80/60 00°000°0009 210N Anseau) sn 619828216
£LT AA (S1°692°19) 18°€9.'8 %Iy ST'816°€06C %by'e SZ0T/ST/TT8NQ %ST'T
88'C +VV/eRY %850 00'6YTZY8'T VLV6 18'£05'688°C 7T0z/ET/90 00°000°000'€ 330N Aunseauy sn 9SIN8Z8TTE
99'¢ vy (5£°525'26T) €£°828°0¢ %9 SLTLET66'S %S0°E SZ0Z/TE/0T 3nA %€
¥8'C YV /eey  %6T'T 00'978°66L°S 99'96 8€'658°066'S 2202/60/90 00°000°0009 ajoN Ainseal sn SIS8Z8CT6
85¢C vy (s5'002'207) 10°686'SY %LTY §S'ZEL9009 %96°C S20z/0€/6 @na %E
SLT WV /eeY  %6T'T 00°Z€5708°S 7496 0S'LEY'8009 720T/12/%0 00°000°000'9 330N Ainseauy sn 005828716
09'C vy {08'852212) 88'VE0Y %9C't SSYTE8YY %TY'T ST0T/1E/8 8NQ %ST'0
19'C +VV /BRY  %/8°0 SL'SSSSLT'Y 10°06 6S'EE6TIV Y zzoe/TT/o 00°000°0SL'y 930N Anseal] sn 0rvoz8zie
0S'2 YvvY (9T°092'LLT) VLTLLLE %YTY 91'092206'y %6L°T §70Z/S1/8 3na %L
9T +VV /BRY  %/6°0 00'000°S2Ly 05'v6 TE'S6T'SL8Y 7702/80/%0 00°000°000°s 930N Anseait sn vL)8Z8ZT6
1434 vyy (ev'SEV'LSE) £E9VY'Y %ST'Y €6'065S6TY %SL°0 SZ0Z/T€/L3nA %S2'0
85T YV /BRY  %8L°0 0S'STI'8€8°E 1£06 rT8r69T Yy 1202/90/0T 00°000°0SZ'Y 910N Adnsead) sn LEVYITRTTE
e vvy (58'952vvE) Ty %ETY §8'89EY8L'S %EL'T ST0T/0E/9 3NQ %ST'0
0S'Z +yv/eey  %ITT 00'ZT9'6EY'S 99°06 TE'SYEETL'S snolep 00°000°000'9 9I0N Adnseal] sn EMZ8Z8ZT6
9¢'C YV (€465 2LE) 10686 %8T Y €T LEOTOV'Y %19°0 STOT/TE/S ¥NA %S2'0
(474 +VYV /BBY  %E80 0S'L6Y'880Y 9806 99'L6S'LEV'Y 120Z/91/L0 00°000°005y 230N Ainsealy sn 017878716
LTt A (88°898'7¥E) 90'695C %LEY 88'V0E‘866°E %6E0 ST0T/0€/Y 3nA %SLE0
£€C vV /eeY  %pL0 00°'9€Y'€S9'E vE'T6 00°6/8°966'€ 120Z/€1/10 00°000°000'y 9j0N Ansesl] sn L17878716

AYNSY3IYL SN

zz0z ‘T€ 42quiaag Jo sy 9000L# 1UNODY
}oday mmc:u_OI paiepijosuo) AJuno oudopusA




1T 28ed

7202/50/0T :3nQ %z

000 00'000°000°€ 000 00°000000°€ 000°00T 910N VIANA  00°000°000°€ 8L10DSETE 270t/s0/0T Ajuniey
SNOILISOdSIa
000 TE'SCO'E00°L6  €9'SE0'96  69°686'906°96 00°000°005°L6 SNOLLISINDIY V101
00°0 00°000°000°v8 000 00°000°000'v8 00°000'000v8 jeloigng
uoinguuo)
000 00°000°000'sy  00°0 00'000°000°SY 0001 dINVD WiesSo4d JWBIA 19SSy elUIOMIED  00°000°000°SH 00SdNV306  ZZ0Z/0€/ZT Ajunoag
uonngLiuoy
000 00°000°000°ZT 000 00°000°0002T 000'T 1004 33835 pund JuaWIsaAU] AdusBy €307 00"000°000°ZT 00%41v106 220Z/0€/1T Ayunoag
uoiingliue)
000 00°000°000°2T 000 00°000°000°2T 0007 dIAYD Weidold JWB 19ssy BIUJOJIIED  00'000°000°LT 00SdNVI06  ZZ0Z/0€/1T Aynosg
uoingLIuoD
000 00°000°000°0T 000 00°000°000°0T 000'T 100d 33815 pund uawisaAu| Aousdy [e207  00°000°000°0T 00%41v106 TC0Z/T1E/0T Ayanoag
00'0 TE'STO'E00'ET  €9'SE0'96  69°686'906°7T 00°000°00S‘€T |el03qng
LZOT/ST/20:9NA %ST'T
000 99'v/E'E0E’E SE'6L9'ST  TE'S69'LLTE %16'E 8¥9°€6 910N Ainseal SN 00°000°00S°E 86A8T8TI6 eoz/et/en aseyaund
£20Z/01/50 3na %y
£702/01/Y
000 68'8v7'0€6'E 68'888'8 00°095'TZ6'€ %6Y'y 6£0'86 JU0D 910N 3jgejjeD Auedwio) ISnJ] UIBYHON  00°000°000 PMV658599  ZZ0Z/0€/1T aseyding
£Z0T/0€/90 :9nQ %ST'E
000 LLT0T'69L'S 6€L9V'T9  8EwEL'LOL'S %Ivy 6C1°56 930N AinseasL SN 00°000°000°9 LMIDT8LTE  TZOT/vT/0T aseyaind
SNOLLISINDOY

Zz0Z ‘1€ Jaquiasaq jo sy

90004# 3UN0JJY - pajepijosuo) Ajuno) OUISOpUBAl

J198pa7 uolesuel |

7Z0Z ‘T€ 49quia2aq ybnoiyl zzoz ‘0€ 19qwiardas




7T 98ed

w

00°0 00°000°000°€T  00°0 00°000°000°€T 00°000°000°ET SNOILISOdSIA V104

000 00°000000€T  00°0 00°000°000°€T 00°000°000°€T |e103gng
2207/60/2T :anQ %S548'T

000 00°000°000°€ 00°0 oo.ooo\ooqm 000°00T 910N §7H4  00°000°000°€ ~ SYYTBEETE zeoz/eo/Tt Aaniein
TT0Z/TE/0T :anQ %STT°0

000 00°000°000% 000 00°000°000y 000°00T 910N Ainseas1 SN 00°000°000 Y 74vIT8Z16 270z/1€/01 Ajuniey
2T0Z/81/0T N0 %EE'T

000 00°000°000°€ 000 00°000°000°¢ 000°00T 910N g244  00°000°000°€E 6NHMIEETE  ZZOZ/8T/0T Auniey

Zz0z ‘T€ 42qui0aq ybnolys zzoz ‘D¢ 4aquwiaidas
9000L# 3UN022Y - pajepijosuo) AJuno) oupopuspj

T€ J8quWasaq Jo sy J93pa7 uonoesued |




NV 8S:CS:6 £20Z/0T/T :3WiL UOINIAX3 €T 98ed IVILNIAIINOD - JUBWaBeURIA 195SY J3|puey)
ST0Z/9/T3NA %8'T

00°000°81 00°0008T 000 810N dioD |eppuBUlg JBIOBY  (00°000°000°7 990YTLER9 1saua3u| €202/90/20
v20Z/2/7 9na %S¢0

00°'SY6 00'sv6 000 930N dioD |eueul] Jedded  00°000°0FS YTUUTLERS 152403U] £202/20/70

$S'819°210° $S'8T9°2TS 00°000°00S‘T €202 NV
SZOZ/TE/T anQ %SLE'T

00°GLEVE 00'SLE'vE 000 910N Aunseal sn 00°000°000°S 1SZ878716 152491U] €202/T€/10
SZOZ/TE/L3NA %ST0

0S°ZIE'S 0S°21E’S 000 3loN Ainseas] SN 00°000°0SZY £9Y228216 15343 €202/1¢/10
€T0T/TE/L A %ST'T

0005281 00'0S.'8T 000 910N Aunsess| SN 00°000°000°E 765878716 1s8493u] €20Z/T€/T0
SZ0Z/17/Tena %9'T

00°000'v2 00'000v2 000 910N epeue) joxueg [BAOY  00°000°000°S E€NAIITO8L EREREM] €202/12/10
¥20Z/L1/T 3nQ %SH0

00°0TY'y 0001ty 000 210N dio) eyde) 8483 UYOr  00°000°096°T INAIZZIPT 158.433U] €202/11/10

16'262°02¢ 16'262°0T¢ 000 |00d 33e15 puny Juswisaaul Aously 8307 00°000°000°858'S 00$41V106 puapialig €20Z/91/10
¥202/ST/L 9nA %529°0

88'TZY'S 88'TZY'S 00°0 €T07/ST/L 10D 210N 3|qE|[BD U] W0I'32U0JS3(BS  00"000°SELT 69Y19976/ sadayu| €202/ST1/T0
¥20Z/S1/L3nQ %SLE0

0070052 000052 000 910N AInsead SN 00°000°000'Y €10078716 1s8493u] €20Z/51/10
Y20Z/ST/T 9nA %S21°0

0070057 000057 000 910N AUnseal| SN 00°000°000t 039278216 1s2433U] £20Z/ST/10
SZOZ/YT/T ona %Sy'T

STTL9ET STTLY'EC 000 S10N [BqO|D BJITHIOA MBN  00°000°592°E SHIMTSEY9 1s8J81U| €202/¥1/10
: STOT/€1/T 9nA %SY'T

S7'999°sT ST'999°€T 000 310N dJoJ 11pau) 4010 BICAOL  00°000°S88'T €1119€768 1s8J33u) €Z0Z/€T/10
£20Z/T1/T3NA %L'T

00°052°0258T 00°052°0¢ 00'000°005°T 310N dU0D 1paI) J0I0A BIOAOL  00°000°00S°T §1319£268 Awaniepy €202/T1/10
€¢02/0T/L ®nQ %520

SLEVEY SLEVE'Y 000 910N VIAINA  00°000'SL¥'E P95095ETE 159.31U] €20¢/01/10
SZ0Z/9/T 9NQ %SZT'T

00'6271°82 00'§21'82 000 910N 8244 00°000°000°S 8SINIEETE 53193} €202/90/10

2207 ‘T€ 13quiaza(g fo sy
Joday moj4 yse)

9000L# 1unoday

paiepijosuo3l Ayuno) oupopusiy



AV 85:7S'6 €20Z/0T/T aWi] uoiindexj

¥T @8ed

TVILNIAINOD - JuBWaZeUBIA 135Sy Jajpuey)

€HaLLvLS8

£20T/€/€ anA %50

LY'829°05T L7879 00°000°052 HsodaQ awil] uno) oUPOPUBIA JO yueg SBUIABS  (0°000°0SZ STSANINOG Ayniey £202/€0/€0

£9°S£0°062Y £9'S£0°062 00°000°000"Y , , B £20Z 934
S707/82/7°3nA %STI'T

00°52182 00'521'8¢ 000 910N Ainseasl sn 00°000°000°S 127828716 1s8.91U] £20¢/82/20
¥20Z/1€/8°nQ %ST'T

00°005°LE 00°005°LE 000 9loN Adnseasl SN 00°000°000°9 ¥3A8Z8ITE 1s8491U} £202/82/20
STOT/TE/B 9NA %ST0

0S'£LE6'S 0S°L£6°S 000 9l0N Aunseas SN 00°000°0SLY 0rvoz8eie 159.493U] £202/8¢/20
¥202/92/79nA %ST°0

ST'90E7 ST'90€C 000 910N 8244 00°000°SY8'T LZHINIEETE 1s3493U] £202/92/20
€20Z/¥7/8 @nNQ %ST0

ST'1£09 STTEO9 000 910N DJWTH4  00°000'SZ8'V LAIVILETE 153491U] £€202/¥2/20
€207/12/7anA %SY'T

00'0S.'T20°E 00°054'1T 00°000°000°€ 910N €244  00°000°000°E OMNTIEETE Ajunmep €202/12/20
SZ0T/9T/¢ 9nA %E95°0

€98V, £9'8%C'L 000 ¥20Z/91/2 10D 310N 3|qe|je) 0) g dseyD) UeSlON df  00°000°S45T TAGdLY99Y 3sa433u €20Z/91/20
SZ0Z/ST/8 @nd %t

00°000°0§ 0000005 000 330N Ainseas] SN 00°000°000°S ¥L8T8TT6 satayu) €202/S1/20
£T0Z/ST/T3nQ %ST'T

00'SLE‘6E 00'SLE‘6E 000 930N Adnseasl SN 00°000°00S‘E 86A878TI6 1saJ93u| €207/51/20
$20Z/ST/8 9NA %SLE0

00°0052 00°00S°Z 000 9J0N Ainseas; sn 00°000°000Y 910278216 1s8491U] €20Z/51/20
¥Z0Z/S1/7@nA %STT'0

007005 00°0052 000 330N Anseal] SN 00'000°000'% ZNGIZ8ZT6 1sa433u) €202/51/20
£20Z/¥1/890Q %70

00°000'v 00°000% 000 9JON 244  00°000°000'V PAET1IEETE 1s3431u) £202/¥1/20
£202/¥1/83N0 %9'T

00°000'%¢ 00°000'%¢ 000 910N 8244  00°000°000°S SIZNIEETE RRCIERTH £20¢/v1/20
€202/L/73nA %6'T

00°005'600'T 000056 00°000°000°T 90N dJ0) [BIoUBUL JBIJB4  00°000°000'T TYOUTLERY Anie £202/40/20
9202/9/T8nQ %9vL'T

00°LTE'ST 00°L1€E'ST 000 SZ0Z/9/Z 10D 810N 3|qe|e) jueq 199415 9181S  00°000°006C 1s9493u) €202/90/20

7Z0z ‘T€ 42qwia23( Jo sy
1oday mo|4 yse)

90004# IUN022Y

pa1epijosuo?) AJuno? ouRopUBA



NV 85:¢S:6 €20Z/0T/T*

3wl uonndaxy

ST 98ed

€202/0€/6 9nQ %SLE'T

TVILNIAIINOD - JUsWaseuelA 135Sy Jajpueyd

00'529°0¢ 00°529°02 000 910N AinseasL sn 00°000°000°E 971878716 359.491U) £202/1€/€0
9207/TE/€ 9N %ST'T

0000529 0000529 000 210N Ansea] SN 00°000°000°9 619828216 159493U] £202/1€/€0
SZ0Z/0€/6 @nQ %€

00°000°06 00°000'06 00°0 330N Aunsess] s 00°000°0009 005828716 153433} £207/1€/€0
SZ0Z/1€/€°NQ %S0

00°005CT 00'00S2T 000 910N AdnsealL SN 00°000°000°S 047878716 353491y €20Z/T€/€0
¥Z0Z/L2/6 3 %L'0

00°000°L 00°000°2 000 910N JPIBN 00°000°000°C 043921265 159493U[ €202/12/€0
SZOTZ/TZ/E3NA %]

00°0PY'ET 00°0V¥'€T 000 910N 3JIIBN 00°000°096 SMIDLTTES 158433U] £202/12/€0
€20Z/02/€ @A %6770

LE%95°05T LEY9S 00°000°052 Jisodaq awil] uoun HPaJD IS4 ANUNWWOD  00°000°0ST STSANINGE Ayniep £202/02/€0
¥207/8T/€ 3nA %SL°0

00'579'8 005298 000 ¥20T/81/7 0] 10N 3|qe|je] dio) gemyds sajieyd  00°000°00ET YNIETSB08 153483 £202/81/€0
¥C0T/ST/€ and %ST'0

00°000°S 00°000'S 000 910N Anseas] SN 00°000°000'Y 149078216 1s8491U] €20Z/S1/€0
SZ0Z/S1/6 3nQ %

TTTT9s 7Teee'es 000 SZ0Z/ST/8 3u0D 910N 3|ge||ed Jodag BWOH  00°000°S/8°T THI9L0LEY 158491} €202/ST/€0
¥20Z/S1/6 A %SLEQ

0S°4819 05'£819 000 910N AInseal] SN 00°000'00E‘E £X2218716 1sa193u] €202/ST/€0
¥Z0T/€T/6 3NA %SLEY

052959 05'295'9L 000 810N g1H4  00°000°00S‘E EOUAXEETE 153.431Y] £20Z/€1/€0
€207/0T/€ 9nA %SLT

00°0S2'TY0'E 00°052'TY 00°000°000°€ 310N g1Hd  00°000°000°€ 694AVOETE Ayunie €202/01/€0
SZ07/6/6 0 %6'€

00°000°6¢ 00'000°6€ 000 910N S3401S HEA-EM  00°000°000°7 6M3ITYTIEG 153J91U] £202/60/€0
€207/8/6 A %LT0

00°00%'y 00'00%y 000 910N 8244  00°000000Y 8r97IEETE 159493u] £202/80/€0
£207/8/6 A %ST°0

S7°950°S §7°950°S 000 IONDJWIH4  00°000°SP0'Y SMIVILETE 1s8433U] £207/80/0
¥20Z/v/€ @nQ %550

00°005°S 00°00§'s 000 9]ON djueg uojujwioq 0JU0I0L  §0°000°000°T 1sa191u £202/%0/€0

60001168

220 ‘T€ 4aquiazaq fo sy
1oday mol4 yse)

90004# Junody

paiepijosuor) AJuno) ouopusAl



IV 85:25:6 £20Z/0T/T :2WIL UOIINIAX3 9T @8eq TVILNIAIINOD - JusWaseUR|A 13SSY Jajpuey)

88'T¥L'690°0T 88'TYL'VeE 00'000'SvL‘6 €202 ¥dV
SZ0Z/TE/0T anQ %€

00°000°06 00°000°06 000 910N Ainsesi] SN 00°000°0009 SrS878716 1s9491U] £202/0€/%0
STOT/0E/P ®NA %SLED

0070052 00°00S°£ 000 210N Ainseal] SN 00°000°000Y £17878716 158483 £202/0¢/0
¥Z0Z/TE/0T anQ %S'T

00°000'SP 00'000'SY 000 310N Ainsesi| SN 00°000°000°9 SINABTZ8ZT6 1sa493u] £202/0€/v0
€20Z/1€/0T @NQ %S79°T

0S°LEY']T 0S'LEV'ST 000 910N Ainseas SN 00°000°00S'E 161878716 159491U] €202/0€/¥0
SZ07/SZ/¥ 3nd %sE'
Sz0z/se/e

00°568'SY 00'568'sY 000 U0D 310N 3jqe([e) dio) UO|IBN AN JOYuRg  00"000°0VL'Z 029490790 SEEIEMTT €202/52/%0
£20Z/0Z/¥ @nQ %SZ1°0

SL'890°71EE S1'890'C 00'00001€’E 910N uswdo|aAs( 13 UodaY jueg AUl 00'000'0TE'E 9AI8S06SY Ayniepy £202/02/%0
€207/02/¥ 3NA %SLEO

€9°0V6'ZHT'Y €9°0¥6°L 00'000'SET'Y 910N JTH4  00°000'SEZ'% 803IVILETE Aynien £202/02/¥0
€20Z/91/0T @nQ %ST1°0

0S'LEV'T 0S°LEV'T 000 910N JIANTH4  00°000°006°E TAIVILETE 159491U) €202/91/v0
¥Z0Z/ST/¥ 3nA %SLEO

00'S/£'6 00'SLE6 000 910N Ainseal SN 00°000°000°S TAGDT8TI6 3sa.191u) €202/ST/¥0
§T0Z/ST/¥ 3nd %ST'T

00'0SZ‘TT 00'0SZ'TT 000 SZ/ST/v 0D 210N 3|qe|e) dion 188l 00°000°000°T 6193219/8 158433} €£202/S1/%0
¥20Z/S1/0T 8nQ %5290

0521802 0S'CTE'0C 000 910N Ainseasl SN 00°000°005°9 90778216 1sata3u) €202/S1/v0
SZOT/ET/v @na %€

00°000°0€ 00°'000°0€ 000 910N duj Wod'uozZEWY  00'000°000°C ¥3DSETECO SRCIEMT €20Z/€T1/40
£70Z/TT/¥ 3nQ %SS°T

00'SZT'6TS'T 00'SZT'6T 00°000°005T €20Z/TT/T 1U0D 330N 3|qe|[BD) 534015 WEA-BAM  00°000°005°T EHATZYTIEE Ayniepy €202/11/10
€202/9/v @A %¥'0

00°00%'T0L 00'00%'T 00°000°00L 9]ON dJo) 1paJ) JoJoN B10AOL  00'000°00L 80119€768 Ayuniey £202/90/v0
£202/2/0T @na %Z°0

00°000'% 00000 000 910N 9344  00°000°000"V 0SAWIEETE 158491U) £202/20/v0

TE'T90°096'€ TE'T90°09% 00°000°00S°€ - ‘ £20Z YV

Zz0Z ‘T€ 4aqwiazag fo sy
}oday moj4 yse)

90004# JUnody

paiepijosuo) AJuno) oudopusi



NV 85:75°6 £20Z/0T/T :dWi] Uoindaxy JARCELY TVILN3AIINOD - JusWaseUBIA 135SV Jajpuey)

€202/¥7/S °nQ %S0

00°052°905C 000529 00°000°005°C 910N dueg AsQ ueduBWIY-IBIU|  00°000°005°C LINQOXT8SY Ayuniey £202/v2/s0
€20Z/¥T/TT ®nQ %ST°0 ,

0S'29€T 0S'T9ET 000 210N 3UsWdojaAaq 13 UOY3Y SfUeg "AU  00'000°060°T 9INrgso6Sy 159.433U) €202/v2/S0
£202/22/S8na %ST0

0S'2I8'€50°S 0S'Z18'€ 00°000°050°€ 310N VAIN4  00°000°0S0°E EDVODSETE Ayaniepy £202/T2/50
Y20Z/L1/52nA %Sv°0

0S'LTLL 0S'LTLL 00°0 910N 30IAI3S |eoueUl] Jejidiale)  00'000°0EY'E 012UETEYT 1s3433U] €207/L1/50
¥20Z/ST/TT9nQ %SL0

00'SLEYT 00'SLEYT 00°0 910N Ainseall SN 00°000°005°9 THADZ8ZI6 353133y €£207/51/50
STOT/ST/TT @A %ST'T

00°0S2°€€ 00°0SL°€€ 000 2joN Ainseai1 SN 00°000°000°S 9SINBZ8TI6 1s3433U £207/S1/50
¥20T/ST/S ®nA %ST°0

0S'481°C 0S°£L8TC 000 910N Aunseas| SN 00°000°0SL'T €20078716 158.493U] £202/S1/50
€20Z/ST/TT °nNQ %ST0

000sZ’s 00°0SZ°9 000 310N AInsesiL SN 00°000°000°S TMVDZ8716 15349 €202/ST/50
¥T0Z/TT/S 9na %S0

00'529's 00'529's 000 930N JU] Wod'uozZeWY  00'000°005Z SMESETEZO 1s8493U] €202/21/50
€20Z/TT/S9NA %SL0

00'0S.°€00'T 00°0SL'E 00°000°000°T 310N ouj 2iddy  00°000°000°T 6AQEEBLED Ayame €20Z/11/50
SZOZ/TT/5enA %STI'T

000SZTT 00°0ST'TT 000 S20T/TT/v 40D 310N 3(qejied au| 3jddy 00000000 7LAEEBLED 159.91U] €20¢/11/50
£20t/0T/S ®nq %v
£70Z/0T/Y

00°000°08 00°000°08 000 uo) ®10N 3jqe|jed Auedwo) 1sn] UIBYLON  00°000°000% PMY658599 sa.4a3u) €202/01/50
S20Z/6/S9NA %6'T

00'005°24 00°00S'2L 000 210N €044 00°000°000°S 6HMNIEETE 153493u) £207/60/50
£207/9/TT 3A %SC°0

STI8Y'S STI8Y's 000 SIONDJWTH4  00°000'S8Ew 873ViLETE 159491U] €202/90/50
€202/S/SaNA %SLE0

00'579'S00'€ 00'529's 00°000°000°€ 910N DWTH4  00°000°000°€ QYIVILETE Aynien £202/50/50
€202/€/S 90 %Y'T

00°000°ZT0'T 00°000ZT 00°000°000°T 910N 2uj 9iddy  00°000°000°T PIVEEBLED €202/€0/50

Ajuniey

2207 ‘T€ 13quiaza( fo sy 9000/# 1unoday
Hoday mol4 ysen paiepijosuo) Ayuno) oupopua iy




INV 85:25:6 £20¢/0T/T :dWIL UOANAX3 81 98ed IVILNIAIINOD - JUSWIBRUBIA] 13SSY J3|puey)
¥202/02/2T anQ %1

00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 SION g7H4  00°000°000°C Ov40VOETE 358493 £202/02/90
¥20Z/S1/9 ®nQ %ST'0

00'SZTE 00°'STT'E 000 930N Ainsesil SN 00°000°005‘C ¥92028716 1saI91U] £202/ST/90
€202/ST/2T 9nd %S¢T°0

00°005°C 00°00S°7 000 930N Ainseal] SN 00°000°000Y 8vEl78TI6 159.491U] €207/S1/90
$T0OT/ST/TT anQ %1

00°000'sZ 00'000's¢ 000 910N Alnsess] SN 00°000°000°S 8NQJZ8716 1s8J93u] £207/51/90
SZO0Z/Y1/9 9N %Sv8'E

76'L51'62 76'LS16T 000 ST0Z/YT/9 0D 910N 8|qeje) 0D 13 aseyd ueBIoN df  00°000°005°T £30dL¥99Y 159491U) €202/¥1/90
SZOZ/ET/9 9nQ %EY'E
¥20Z/€1/9

ST6LLST ST6LL'ST 000 1U0D 910N 3jqejjeD dio) UO||IBIA AN JOjueg  00'000°S60°T £49490190 SECIEMT €202/€1/90
£207/6/9 @0 %S8°0

000058002 00'0058 00°000°000C 910N Buipuny [eqo|D [ENINA SSBIN 00°000°000°Z TNOMBT9LS Ayuniey €202/60/90
€20Z/6/99nQ %STT'¢C

SL8TT'6LL'T §L'817'6C 00°000°08L' 910N g1H4  00°000°05L2 E€OVEBEETE Ajnie £207/60/90
£207/8/9 @nQ %E£°0

007000900y 000009 00°000°000'% 910N €244 00°000°000"% 189713€€TE Ajumep £207/80/90
¥202/4/9 @A %S¥'0

00'S8T'Y 00'S8TY 000 910N dJo) feyde) a4eaQ UYor  00°000°098°T 60A3TTIPT 1saJ31u) £202/40/90
$202/9/¢T 8nd %ST'T

0S'£6L'8 0S5°L64'8 000 810N Sulpund [eqo[D BO21d  00°000'0ES‘T 0UIMESTYL 158433u} £202/90/90
ST0Z/9/9 3nQA %99.°€

00°099°LE 00°099'L€ 000 S]ON jueg uojujWOQ-03ucio]  00°000°000°Z 6VZVSTI68 1s2483U] £202/90/90
€202/¥/2T @ %ST0

00°579'¢€ 00'S79°s 000 910N JINTH4  00°000°006°C ZV4VILETE 1s2493u] £207/¥0/90

ST'T90°058°0T SZ'190°00€ 00°000°055°0T €20T AV
STOT/TE/S @A %ST'0

00°529°s 00°529°S 000 910N Ainseadl SN 00°000°00SV 017878716 158493} €202/1¢€/50
€207/42/1T 3nA %520

00°052°9 000529 000 910N VIAN4  00°000°000°S TH909S5ETE SECIEMITH £207/42/50
€20Z/L7/TT 8NQ %ST°0

000529 00'0529 000 910N €244 00°000°000°S 9YHINIEETE 1sa31u) €207/L2/S0

7Z0zZ ‘T€ 42quia2ag Jo sy
1oday moj4 yse)

9000L# JUnoddy

paiepijosuo) AJuno) oupPopusiA




NV 85:256 £20Z/0T/T :3WIL UOIINIaX3 6T 98ed TVILNIAIINOD - JuBWadeURA J9SSY Jajpueyd

€9°S£0°L¥9‘9 €9°SL0°2LT 00°000'SLY°9 €zozne
€20T/TE/L3nA %ST'T

00°0S.°810°E 0005481 00°000°000°€ 930N Ansesi] sn 00°000‘000°E 765878216 Ayanieny £202/1€/L0
ST0T/TE/L ™A %ST0

0S'ZIE’S 0S'ZTIE'S 000 810N Ainseal] SN 00°000°0SZV LEYT8TT6 152433U] £207/1€/L0
SZ0T/TE/T9NA %SLE'T

00°SLE'YE 00'SLEVE 00°0 8j0N Ainseail SN 00°000°000°S 157828216 159491U] €207/1€/40
SZ0Z/1Z/T3NA %9'T

00°000'%Z 00'000%Z 000 310N EpEUED JOJjueg [BAOY  00°000°000°E €NAIOTO8L SRCIER £202/12/L0
Y20Z/LT/T 9nA %SP0

00°0TY'Y 00°0TY'y 000 910N dio) |eyde) 8439Q uyol  00°000°096°T 9NAIZZYYT 158483 £202/L1/L0
¥20Z/ST/L 9nA %5290

88'TTY'S 88 TTY's 000 TTOTZ/ST/L3U0D 210N 9|qe||e) dU] WOD'82I0ISBI_S  00'000'SELT 6DV19976L 1s8493U) €20T/ST/L0
¥20Z/ST/L 900 %SLEQ

00°00S°2 00°005°L 000 930N Anseai] SN 00°000°000'% €10078216 1sala3u| £202/ST/L0
$20T/ST/T 9nA %STT'0

00°0058C 000057 000 9JoN Aunseal; SN 00°000°000'% 039028216 1s8483U] £20Z/ST/L0
’ STOT/YT/T aNa %SY'T

STTL9ET STTL9ET 000 910N [BQO|D BYITOA MBN  00°000°692°E SHIMZS6Y9 3sadsyu) €202/71/L0
STOZ/ET/T aNA %SY'T

SC'999°ET ST'999°ET 000 910N dJoD 1ipas) Joloy e30A0L  00°000'S88‘T €1119€768 158493 £20T/€T/L0
€202/01/L 3nA %SC'0

SL'EVEGLY'E SLEVEY 00°000°SLY'E 910N VAN 00°000°SLY'E ¥DS09GETE Ayanen €20Z/01/L0
ST0Z/9/T 3NA %STT'T

00°821°8C 00'5T1'8¢ 000 810N 244  00°000°000°S 8SANIEETE 1s2493U] £207/90/L0

ZV'86L'L98'VT T'86L'LTE 00°000°0SS‘vT €20Z NN
£20Z/0€/9 ®nQ %ST'€

0000526 00'005°2L6 000 310N Anseas SN 00°000°000°9 LM3IDT8TI6 152J31u] €20T/0£/90
S70Z/0E/9 3nQ %ST'0

000052 00'00S°2 000 930N Aunseas] SN 00°000°000°9 EMZ878716 159491u] €202/0€/90
€207/92/9°9NA %LL'T

00'S21°72S'C 00'sZT'Ce 00°000°005'Z 910N €244 00°000°005°Z LNSYHIEETE Aynieiy £202/92/90
€20Z/97/9 @nQ %S0

00'SZTv0E‘E 00'SZTY 00'000°00€°E 910N JTH4  00°000°00€°E ¥SIVILETE Ajniep €207/97/90

7207 ‘T€ 42quiasaq Jo sy
1oday moj4 yse)

90004# JUNo22Yy

paiepijosuo) AJuno?) oupPopuA



WV 85:¢5°6 £20Z/0T/T :3Wi} uoindax3 0Z @8ed TVILNIAIINOD - 3usiaseueA 135Sy Ja|pueyd

¥T0T/v/€ ¥na %SS 0

00°00S‘S 00°005°S 000 930N ueg uolulwog 0Ju0I0l  00°000°000°Z 60J0DY1168 1sa431u] £202/¥0/60

£9°S8£€80°2T fo'seL'sse 00000°5Z8'TT - - S . £20z onv
YZ0T/TE/89NA %ST'T

00°00S°'LE 00°00S°'LE 000 910N AInseas] S 00°000°000°9 YIABTBLT6 3sat83u £20Z/1€/30
SZ0Z/1€/8 9N %ST0

0S'LE6'S 0S'L£6'S 000 910N Aunseas] SN 00°000°0SL'Y 0rvJz8z16 159493U] €207/T€/80
S207/87/73nA %STT'T

00°52182 00'S21'82 000 9lON Ainsead] SN 00°000°000°S [07818T16 1s83433U] £202/1€/80
¥20T/92/7 9nA %ST'0

ST'90€C §7'90£'C 000 210N €244  00°000'SH8'T LZHINIEETE ERCRCHT £202/92/30
€20T/¥2/8 @nQ %S0

STTEOTER] Y STTE09 00°000'SZ8'Y SONDJWTH4  00°000'SZ8'% LAIVILETE Ayniep €202/¥2/80
SZ0Z/91/ 30 %€95°0

£9°8¥7°L £9'8%7°L 000 ¥20Z/9T/7 1U0D 910N 3jge|e) 03 g aseyd ueSIoN df  00°000'SL5Z TASdLY997 153491U] £202/91/80
¥T0T/ST/8 9NA %SLE0

000052 00°005'L 000 9)0N Aunsess] SN 00°000°000Y 9123078716 SECIEMIT] €202/51/80
¥Z0Z/ST/29nA %STT°0

00°005°C 000057 000 910N Ainseas; sn 00°000°000' ZNEDZBZTE 1s9491U] €202/S1/80
LT0T/ST/T3nA %ST'T

00'S.E6E 00°SLE'6E 000 9loN AInseail SN 00°000°00S‘E 86A8C8T16 SEEEMI €202/51/80
ST0Z/ST/8 3na %¢

00°000°0S 00°000°0S 000 9)0N Adnseal] s 00°000°000°S vIN8T8TI6 159491u] €202/S1/80
£20Z/¥1/8 2nA %20

00°000'Y00'y 00°000Y 00°000°000'Y 910N 8244 00°000°000°% YAETIEETE Ayuniey £202/¥1/80
€20Z/%1/89n0 %9°T

00°000vZ0'E 0000072 00°000°000°€ 910N €244  00°000°000°€ SNZMIEETE Auniep €202/v1/80
9702/9/T3nA %9vL'T

00°LTE'ST 00°LTE'ST 000 §70T/9/7 30D 210N BjgE||ED JuUBY 19815 318 00°000°006°7 €49//Y158 158J491U] €202/90/80
S707/9/T3nA %8'1

00°000'8T 00°000°8T 000 910N dJo) [ejouRUl4 JEIJRd  00°000°000C 99DYUTLEES 15393 £202/90/30
¥20Z/2/T ®nQ %S€°0

00°SY6 00°'SY6 910N dio) [epoueuld JeIJRd  00°000°0¥S YZHYTLERS isalaju)

€202/20/80

2207 ‘1€ 43quiaoaq fo sy 9000/4# 1unoddy
1ioday moj4 yse) paiepijosuo) AJuno) oudopualp




NIV 85°¢S'6 £207/0T/T 3wl uonnaax3

TZ 98eq

SZTOZ/ET/v and %E

TVILNIQIINOD - Juswazeuel 19SSy Jajpuey)

00°000°0€ 00°000°0¢ 000 810N Juj Wod'uozewy  00°000‘000°Z YIISETELO 158483 €20Z/€1/01
€202/7/0T 3nA %Z°0

00'000700v 00'000'7 00°000°000°y 830N 9044 00°000°000Y OSAINIEETE Ajniey €20¢/20/01

ST'968'€9¥'TT §2'968'8TY 00°000'S0°TT €207 43§
€202/0€/6 9nQ %SLE'T

00'S79°020'E 00°'§79°02 00°000°000°s 310N Ainseas; SN 00°000°000°€ 971878716 Aniep €202/0€/60
970Z/TE/€ 3NA %ST'T

00°005£9 00°005°29 000 930N Ainsesi] SN 00°000°0009 619878216 158433 £202/0€/60
§202/0€/6 @na %€

00°000°06 00'000'06 000 910N AUnsesJ| sm 00'000°000°9 005828716 1493y £202/0€/60
SZOTZ/TE/E2NQ %S0

000057t 00°00S°ZT 00°0 910N Anseasl SN 00°000°000°S 042878716 159491U] €207/0€/60
¥202/L2/6 900 %L'0

00°000°2 00°0002 000 910N 3IIBN 00°000°000°T 0d39£1265 158493u] €202/.2/60
ST0T/TZ/€3NA %8'¢C

00°0FP'€T 00'0¥¥'€T 000 910N 333N 00°000°096 SMIDLTZ6S 1s8481U] £202/12/60
¥20Z/8T/€ ®nA %SL°0

00'529°8 00'529°8 000 ¥20T/81/z 10D 910N 2|qej|e) dio) gemyds saleyd  00°000°00€°Z PNEETS808 1s8493U] €202/81/60
¥ZOT/ST/€ 300 %ST'0

00°000'S 00'000‘S 000 910N AInseas  sn 00°000°000Y 144078216 158.491u] €202/51/60
S20Z/ST/6 9nd %¥

00°005°LS 00'00S°LS 000 STOT/ST/8 3u0D 910N 2|qej|e) Joda@ 3WoH  00'000°S/8°Z TYD9L0LEY 15049)U] £207/S1/60
Y20Z/S1/6 9nA %SLE0

054819 05°L8T'9 000 310N AnsesiL SN 00°000°00€’E £X20T8216 Isa.a1u] €202/ST/60
¥20T/€T/6 3NA %SLE Y

05729594 0S'795'9L 000 910N g1H4  00°000°00S’‘E EDANAXEETE 159433u) €207/€1/60
SZ07/6/6 3nQ %6'€

00°000°6€ 00°000°6€ 000 210N $8.401S LEN-[BM  00°000°000°C 6MITYTIES 1s3J491u] £202/60/60
£202/8/6 A %ZZ'0

00°007' 700"y 0000V 00°000°000'% 910N €244  00°000°000Y 8r973EETE Asunie £207/80/60
€20Z/8/6 @nQ %ST°0

S7'950°0S0Y §7'950°s 00°000'S¥0'y 310N DTH4  00°000°SY0Y Ayniepy €207/80/60

SMIVILETE

2z0z ‘I€ 49quiadaq fo sy
1oday moj4 yse)

9000L# 1UNnod2y

pa1epijosuo) AJunos ouPopud




WV 8S:25°6 €£20Z/0T/T :3Wwi] uoinoaxgy

22 98ed

STOT/ST/TT9NA %ST'T

TVILNIQINOD - usWazeUE|A 135Sy J3|puBy)

00°0SL°EE 00°0SL°€€ 000 910N AINses SN 00°000°000°E 9SINBZ8TT6 158433U] £20Z/ST/11T
¥Z0Z/T1/S 2nd %S0

00°529°s 00'529's 000 310N dUj WO UoZEWY  00°000°00S7 SMESETEZO SEEREMT €202/71/T1T
SZ0Z/11/53nQ %STT'T

00°0S2'TT 00°0SZ°TT 000 S70Z/TT/¥ 0D 810N 3jgejed auj 3jddy  00"000°000°T Y1QEERLED 153.491U) €20Z/TT/TT
LT0Z/0T/S ¥na %v
£T0Z/0T/Y

00°000°08 00'00008 000 1u0) B10N 3|qe||e) Auedwio) ISnIL WBYLION  00°000°000Y PMVYE58599 153431U) £202/0T/11
S70Z/6/S3nA %6'C

000052 00°0052L 000 910N 8244 00°000°000°S 6HMNIEETE 183483 £202/60/11
€207/9/11 3NA %S0

STI8Y'06EY SZ'I8Y'S 00°000'S8€'Y 910N JWTH4  00°000'S8E‘V 873viLETE Ayaniey €20Z/90/11

0S°L02'¥69°1T 0S°L02'v62 00'000°00%'TT €202 100
£20Z/T€/0T @nQ %S79'T

0S'LEV'TS'E 0S'LEY'8T 00°000°005°€ 930N Ainseasd) SN 00°000°00S'E 161828716 Anen £202/1€/01T
¥20Z/TE/0T @nA %S'T

00°000°SY 00°000°s¥ 000 joN AinseaiL SN 00°000°000°9 SINABT8TTE 5393 €202/1€/01
SC0Z/TE/OT onQ %E

00°000°06 0000006 000 330N Anses.f SN 00°000°000°9 S[S878TT6 1sa93u) €20Z/1€/01
SZ0Z/0€/¥ @A %SLEO

00°00S°L 000052 000 ajoN Anseasl S 00°000°000'% L17828716 159491U) €202/1€/01T
§Z07/SZ/¥ and %SE'E
sz07/st/e

00°568°SY 00°668'SY 000 1uo) 310N ®jqge|je] dio) UD|iBIAl AN JOdjueg  00°00001L'C 029490790 159483 £202/52/01
£702/91/01T 3nQ %SZT°0

0S'LEV'Z06'E 05'LEYT 00°000°006°€ 910N DITH4  00°000°006°€ TAIVILETE Aunep €202/91/01T
¥20Z/ST/0T 9nQ %S79°0

05'ZTE0T 0S'ZTE0C 000 910N Ainseai] SN 00°000°005°9 80278216 153J91U] €207/ST/01T
ST0T/ST/¥ 2NA %ST'T

00°052TT 00'0SZ'TT 000 SZ/ST/y 1u0] @loN 9jgejje) dio) 1@84el  00°000°000'T 6193219/8 1s8433U] £207/ST/01
¥20Z/ST/v @nQ %SLE°0

00'S/E'6 00'SLE6 000 210N Ainseas; SN 00°000°000°S TAGDT8TI6 153J91U] €207/ST/0T

720z ‘T€ 4aquiara( fo sy
“Joday moj4 yse)

90004# Junody

paiepijosuo) AJuno) ouPOPUBIAl



IV 85256 €20¢/0T/T -dWI1 uonnIaxy

€7 98ed

¥Z0Z/ST/TT @A %T

TVILNIAIINOD - 3UsWaseUelA 195SY Jojpueyd

00°000°ST 00°000°'sT 000 3j0N Alnseai] SN 00°000°000°S 8NQJZ8T1I6 1s2493U] £202/S1/2T
¥20Z/ST/9 9NA %S0 A

00°SZT'E 00°'SZT'E 000 330N Ainseail SN 00°000°00S'T 92228716 159481 €202/S1/21T
SZ0Z/Y1/9 9NQ %SY'E

£1'8TE°6C €1'8TE6T 000 SZOZ/¥T/9 1u0D 10N 3|qe|(e) 03 '3 asey) uedioN df  00°000°00ST €3ad.y99Y 158493Y] €20Z/¥1/TT
STOTZ/ET/9°9NQ %EV'E
¥20T/€T/9

ST6LLST ST6LL°8T 000 1U0D 210N 2|qejje) dio) UOJRIN AN JOuRd  00'000°S60°T £49490%90 158431 €20Z/€1/2T
¥20T/L/9 ™A %SY'0

00°S8TY 00°S8T'V 000 a1oN duo) jeude) a18ag uyor  00°000°098°T 60AATTYYT 1s8481U] £€20Z/L0/TT
¥20Z/9/2T 9nA %ST'T

05'£6L4'8 0S°L6L°8 000 910N Bulpund [eqO|D BOd  00'000°0£S’T ODIMESTYL 1531830} €202/90/¢t
§Z0Z/9/9 anQ %99.L°€

00'099°LE 00°099°L€ 000 9JON >jueg uojulWog-03ucio]  00°000°000°T 6YTVSTI68 159493} £202/90/2T
€207/¥/TT 3A %ST'0

00°GZ9°€06°C 00'5Z9°€ 00°000°006C 810N JINTHd  00°000°006C TVAVILETE Ayaniey £20Z/¥0/T

SLETI'EVL'0T §L'€79'892 00°000°SL1°02 €202 AON
SZ0Z/TE/S 9NA %ST0

00°529°S 00°'529°S 000 310N Ainseall SN 00°000°00S Y 017878716 1saJ33u) €20¢/0€/11T
€207/47/11 90 %ST'0

00052°900'S 00'052'9 00°000°000'S 910N VIWN4  00°000°000°S THY90DSETE Ayuniepy €z0z/LT/TT
€207/47/TT 30 %520

00'052900°S 00°05Z'9 00°000°000°s 90N 8244 00°000°000°S 9YHWIEETE Ayunie £202/LT/11
€20Z/¥7/TT @A %ST0

0S°79€160'T 05'29€T 00°000°060°T 910N Juswdo@Aa(q ' UodaY jued AUl 00°000°060°T 9INr85065Y Ayunie £202/¥2/11
¥Z0Z/L1/S 3na %S0

0S'LTLL 0S'LTLL 000 910N 32|AIS [elouRUL4 Jejjidialed  00°000°0EY'S 0TZYETEYT 158491U] €207/LT/11T
€207/ST/TT9NQ %ST0

00°05Z900°S 00°052°9 00°000°000°S 90N Ainseai] SN 00°000°000°S TMVY2IZ8T16 Avaniepy €207/ST/1T
¥20TZ/ST/S @nA %ST'0

05L81°C 05281°C 000 930N Ainsessl SN 00'000°0SL’T €30078716 1s8483U £20Z/ST/11
¥20Z/ST/TT 9 %SL°0

00°SLEYT 00'SLEYT 000 9joN Ainseadl SN 00°000°005°9 THQDZ8T16 1sa133u] €207/ST/T1

.220Z ‘T€ 42quiazaq fo sy
}ioday moj4 yse)

9000L# 1Unoddy

pajepijosuo) AJuno) ouPopuaAl



NV 85:¢S5°6 €¢0Z/0T/T W] uoindax3 ¥Z 98ed IVILNIAIINOD - JUBWIBRURIA 135SV Ja|pueyd

£9°S68°0E8'STT £9°568G98'€E 00°000°S96'TTT viol

88'686'LYTL 88°686°LYT 00°000°006'9 £20Z 230
LTOT/0E/9 ¥nA %ST'E

00°005°26 00°005°L6 000 310N ANSealL SN 00°000°000'9 LMIDT8TT6 159.431U) £202/1€/TT
$70T/0E/9 3nA %ST0

0070052 00005, 000 8JON Aunsesi} SN 00°000°000°9 £MZ878216 158.491U] €zoz/1e/Tt
¥202/0Z/2T 3nQ %1

00°000°0T 00°000'0T 000 910N g1H4  00°000°000°C Ov40OVOoETE 353433U) geoz/o/er

€202/ST/21T 9nQ %SZT°0

00°00S'700'y 00°00S°T 00°000°000% 810N Ainseall SN 00°000°000% 8vg078C16 Ayunme €20T/ST/TT

2202 ‘I€ 4aquiazag Jo sy 9000/# 1unoddy
Hoday moj4 yse) pa1epI|osuo) AJuno) oUOPUSIA




WV 85:¢S°6 €20¢/0T/1 :dWl] uoindexy 57 98ed TVILNIAIINOD - JU3WasRUBA 135SV J9|pueyd

‘AlaA13dadsas Yoy pue s,ApooN ‘43S Aq Yyy/eey/+YY B saliied pue 3salalul pue jediound yioq o juswAed Ajpwiy pue ||ny ay3 seajueens
AouaBy 's°n Buinssi 3yl "pajed 10U aJe SIA[ISWSY] S3111INIS Y} dsnesaq Builed Janss| aYy 13134 (,SEIA,) SINNIIS payoeg-s8esiiow panssi AouaBy s n 104 sSulied |9A3] AJINaS

‘Adeinaoe sy
99)ueJeNd JOUURD BM JSABMOY ‘JUSLUDIE]S SIU] JO 31ED BY} JO SE J|qRI|3. 3] 0} DABI|3] aM SPa3) e1ep ysnoJyl you4 pue 43S ‘s, Apoojn Aq papinoid uaaq aaey uojewaoul suiiey sSuiey

'Xapul ue uj Aj3oalip
1s3AU| 0] B|qIssod jou S| 3| 'S}Nsa4 ddUewioyad [eallosIy SUISES1I3P JO 199149 BYF SARY PNOM UIIUM 4O 3IUSLINJUI BY] ‘93 JUBWISSEURW JUSWISIAU] UB 10 uoloNnpap ays Jo sadieyo
[BIPOISNI JO/pUe UOIIOBSUBLY JO UONONPSP B3 1933, 10U Op Aj|I3US8 SIXBPUI JUBWISBAU] JOJ S1|NSSI 9IUBWIOMAd [BDLIOISIH 'SUCIINGIISIP ||B JO JUSWISIAUIS SWINSSE SUINID XIPU|

'SIDIAY3S ¥O SLONAOYd SLI 40 ANV HO “YITANVHI ANIWINODIY HO ‘ISHOANT “OSNOdS LON 0Q ALYV QYIHL IAILDIASIY HITHL ANV SILVITI44V SLI ‘V1va

321 MSIY NMO S,33SNIJIT LV SIISN S,33ISNIJIT ANV SISVE SISV, NV NO G3AIAOYd 34V 403HIFHL SININOJINOD T1V ANV V.LVA XIANI ANV SIDIANI IHL ANV ‘40I¥IHL ININOJINOD
ANV ¥O V.LVA X3ANI IHL HO SIDIANI IHL 40 SSINILITAINOD HO SSINITINIL ‘ADVHNIIY ‘ADVNDIAY ‘ALITYND FHL JILNVEVNO SYIAIAOYd ALYV AHIHL JAILDIASTY HIFHL

Y0 SILVITI44V S1I ‘V.LVA 301 ¥IHLIAN "WO¥43¥IHL GIAIYIA HO ‘OL Q3LY13¥ ‘NI IANTONI VLVA ANV ANV V.LVA XIANI ‘SIDIANI FHL ONIANTINI ‘ISN YO 3SOdYNd ¥VINDILYVd V HOA
SSINLI4 HO ALIIEVINVHIOYIN 40 STLLNVHEIVYM ANV DNIANTINI ‘A31TdINI O/ANV SSTHdX3 ‘SNOILY.LNISTHdIH ANV SILLNVHYYM TV ANV ANV NIVIOSIA SHIITddNS ALYV QYIHL
JAILLI3dS3Y Y¥IFHL ANV SILVITIHAV SLI 301 “SISVE ,,SI SV, NV NO V.LVA Q3LV134 ANV $3DIANI 321 FHL 40 3SN SLINYI4 301 "uoissiwiad yum pasn “(,301,) 271 ‘sadipuj ejeq 29| 321n0s

"0ljojHod UNOA 40 s} NsaJ pue dduewIoIRd 3] 43[R Aj|elia1ewW ABW S|EMBIPYHM JO SUOIINGIIUOD ‘S318338.3S JUBWISIAUI Ul S9SUBYD JO SUOIIIPUOD

12)jJeW ‘5103084 21WI0U0DT "$50] J0 1ij04d Joj [eualod Byl aAeY $3I831R.1S JUSWISBAUI ||V 'S|9AD] SduBWIORd Ised 0] [enba Jo 3|qeyo.d aq ||im AS31E.3S JUSWISIAUL JO JUBISIAUI J1y19ads

Aue jo @3uew.oad 213Ny 1BY] SWINSSE J0U PINOYS SIUBI|D ‘20§83 L "SHNS3 2NN} JO SAIEDIPUI 3¢ 10U Aew douBWIORd ISB "SSUIUIES 310 PUB SPUSPIAIP JO JUBWIISAAUIR] BY] APNJIUI
§}|Nsa. 353y 'S3NS34 30ueWIOHd S19MO| $334 AJOSIADE JO UOIIINPBP B "UINIBY [BIOL S, 3UBIID 3Y1 JUSS3IdaU PUE S33) AIOSIAPE-JO-550.3 Pa3uasa.d S.e S3NSaJ SUBLIOND :9IUBWIOMIJ

'VZ Hed AQVY W04 Ino Jo g way|
Ul pasojosip os|e 3.e saJnpado.d uolien|eA unQ sainpad0.d pue Adjjod Uoiien|eA US3ILIM JNO YIIM 3UBPIOIIE Ul 32un0s Sudiid Aued paiyy panosdde saeussije ue wody Suidd uielqo
1M J3|puey) ‘SnjeA 193jJel Jie) JO 9A1303]jaJ Jou s| papiac.d 3d1id 3y3 41 Jo 301ud e apiaoc.d 30U S30P D] JUBAS dY) U "32unos Suidud Juspuadapul ue ‘9q| Aq papiroid aue sadlid :uonenjep

"JUNOJ2E UBIPOISNI 3y3 03/wou spuny 1isodap o meJpyiim 03 A}IoYIne Aue aAey 10U S30p J3|puUBY) "UBIPOISND
P3ijljenb JnOA Woly 3A19231 NOA 3UO Y3 01 JUBWSILIS SIY} B1edWOD 03 NOA B8UN SM PUE JUBWIBIEIS SIY} Ul PRIII|SU SIBSSE [|B JO [043U0D SUIBIUIBW YUB] UBIPOISND paiyljenb inoA :Apoisn)

‘32130U
Inoyum awi Aue e papasiadns Jo pajepno awodaq Aew Ing ‘JUSWaILIS SIY1 JO B1P BY) JO SE B|qelja. 3q O} PAA3I|S] S3UN0S WOy PAUIRIGO SEM UJJ3Y PAUIEIUOD UOIBWIOUI
3YL "3J1Ape [e33] JO JUBLISIAUI I1J193dS SB PaN.IISU0d 3G 30U Pinoys pue Ajuo sasodind [eUOIIBWIOMU] 404 PAPIACID SI PUE [BIJUSPIJUOD SI JUSLWSIEIS AJYIUOW SIY) Ul PAUIBILOI LOITRWLIOU|

"W02°13SSBIB|PUBYI MMM
38 3ISqaM InO 3isIA Aew noA 1o JUSWIAIEIS SIY3 JO JUOL4 BY3 UO J3GWINU 3y3 Suljed Ag aAIIUISDIAaI IAISS JUBI|D NOA 983U ABW NOA ‘S3INSO|ISIP 3USIND INO JO AdOD € UIelqo
01 *(AQY W104) $34nS0[ISIP 1U9.4NI INO 935 dse3|d ‘Wil JNO INOGE UOIIBWLIOU [RUOHIPPE 04 "JBSIADE JUBWISAAUI PaJR3sI8al D3S UE S| (,J3]puey)),) U] ‘JUawageus|y 19ssy Jajpuey)

9000L# Junoddy
$34nso0jasiqg juepodwy pa3jepijosuo) AJuno) oudopu3p




MANCHESTER UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

At the Manchester Union Elementary School District
School Board meeting
on February 14, 2023 at 4:00 p.m.

Annual Hearing and Ratification of the
Comprehensive School Safety Plan for
2022-2023



RESOLUTION

MANCHESTER UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
19550 S. Highway 1, Manchester, CA 95459

RESOLUTION # 2223-3
STAYWELL HEALTH PLAN JPA

Fiscal year 2023-2024

IN ORDER TO insure the continued operations of the Staywell Health Plan and to support the
participating management unique to this plan:

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees committed itself to support the Staywell JPA by:

1. Requiring attendance of three representatives to the staywell Board

2. Enforcing all policies of the JPA in accordance with its by-laws

3. Maintaining the standard Staywell coverage and deductibles in accordance with the
current provider contract for all eligible employees

4. Supporting a district wellness committee to address employee wellness

I certify that the foregoing is a full day and true copy of the resolution adopting at a regular
meeting of the Manchester Union Elementary School District Board on February 14, 2023.

February 14, 2023

Official Board Signature

AGENDA ITEM #9.0

—



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5131.4 (a)
Students

" Campus Student Disturbances

The Governing Board desires to provide orderly campuses that create a positive school environment and

are conducive to learning. When students initiate or are involved in a campus disturbance that has the
potential to threaten the safety of students or staff, the Superintendent or designee may request law
enforcement assistance.

The Superintendent / Principal or designee shall establish at-eaehseheeta school disturbance response plan
thatis-intended-to for curbing disruptions which create disorder and may lead to riots, violence, or
vandalism at school or at school-sponsored events. In developing each school's plan, the Superintendent /

Principal or designee shall consult with local law enforcement authorities to planferpelicesuppertduring
sehoeldisruptions-create guidelines for law enforcement support and intervention. Eaeh-schoels

mmmmmwmm@

en#e#eeme%ee#seme#%a&s#&anee—aad—ma%m&ss—sehee#

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)
(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

Staff are encouraged to be alert to conditions at school that may lead to a disturbance, such as racial or
cultural conflict, student protests, or gang intimidation and confrontations. Staff who believe that a
disturbance is imminent, or who see a disturbance occurring, shall immediately contact the principal and
invoke the school disturbance response plan.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)

(cf. 5136 - Gangs)

(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

Students who participate in a campus disturbance say-shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance
with Board policy and administrative regulations.

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

AGENDA ITEM # OB Y%



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5131.4 (b)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE . i
32210 Willful disturbance of public school or meeting e m
32211 Threatened disruption or interference with classes ' o
32280-32288 School safety plans

35160 Authority of governing boards

38000-38005 Security patrols

44810 Willful interference with classroom conduct

44811 Disruption of classwork or sekeetextracurricular activities

48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

48907 Student exercise of free expression

51512 Prohibited use of electronic listening or recording device

PENAL CODE

243.5 Assault or battery on school property

403-420 Crimes against the public peace, especially:

415 Fighting; noise; offensive words

415.5 Disturbance of peace of school

416 Assembly to disturb peace; refusal to disperse

626-626.10 Crimes on school grounds

627-627.7 Access to school premises

653b Loitering about schools or public places

Management Resources:

CDEP Advisori

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Practical Information on Crisis Planning: A Guide for Schools and Communities, May 2003
WEB SITES = :

CSBA: http://www.csba.org B
California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/Is/ss
U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning:
http://www.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/emergencyplan

(6/90) 7/06
Policy Adopted: 9/9/03

Policy Amended: 2/14/23



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5131 (a)

Students

“onduct U L

The Governing Board believes that all students have the right to be educated in a safe and positive learning
environment free from disruptions. Students shall be expected to exhibit appr i‘tate conduct that does
not infringe upon the rights of others or interfere with the school program. on school grounds, going
to or coming from school, at school activities, or using district transport: :

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

ndards of conduct and discipli
Students and parents/

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall ensure t
developed consistent with Board policies and administrative
shall be notified of district and school rules related to conduct.

rs, mcludmg, t not limited to, physical
ist threats

lying of students or staff, including sexual
yazing or initiation activity, extortion, or any
- threatens to cause violence, bodily harm, or

2. Discrimin
harassment, hate-mc
other verbal wrltten

4, Willful defiar aff's authority
5. Damage to or theft of property belonging to students, staff, or the district

(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage)
(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

6. Obscene acts or use of profane, vulgar, or abusive language

(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)

AGENDATEM #4110



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5131 (b)

7. Possession, use, or being under the influence of tobacco, alcohol, or other prohibited
substances

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids)

nises, unless the pointer is

Penal Code 417.25 states that
on objects at a distance) at

firearm, may be a misdemeanor

***Note: Penal Code 417.27 prohibits students from possessing laser pointers on school
used for valid instructional or other school-related purpose, as provided in item #
aiming or pointing a laser scope (i.e., a portable device capable of projecting a 1
another person in a threatening manner, whether or not the laser scope is attacl
if intended to cause a person fear of bodily harm.*#*

structional or school-related
Penal Code 417.2

8. Possession or use of a laser pointer, unless for a v.
purpose with prior permission of the principal or desi

vices that

be prohibited

**Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48901.5, the district ma
operate through the transmission or receipt of radio waves. H
if essential for a student's health.***

##Note: Additionally, Education Code 48901.7, as added by AB 272 (
Governing Board to limit or prohibit student use-6fsmartphones while at s¢
control of an employee of the district, except u ied circumstances. S
Devices ***

9.

late the use of electronic sign
student use of such devices ma

tes of 2019), authorizes the
r while under the supervision and
P 5131.8 - Mobile Communication

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absenc
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Su
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board)

13.  Failure to remain on school premises in accordance with school rules

(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus)



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5131 (c)

Employees are expected to enforce standards of conduct and, when they observe or receive a report of a
violation of these standards, to appropriately intervene or seek assistance. As necessary, the employee
shall refer the matter to a supervisor or the principal or designee.

#Note: When school officials want to search a student or a student's belongmgs (e.g., backpack, purse, cell phone or
other mobile communication device, or computer) as part of an investigation of suspected student misconduct, the
legality of the search will depend on whether the search is "reasonable" (New Jersey v. T L.O); see BP/AR 5145.12 -
Search and Seizure. The "reasonableness" of a search depends on (1) whether there i dualized suspicion that the
search will turn up evidence of a student's violation of the law or school rules and 2 er the search is reasonably
related to the objectives of the search and not excessively intrusive in light of the s 's age, gender, and/or the
nature of the infraction. It is recommended that the district consult with legal ¢c ppropriate.***

ngs will turn up evidence

When a school employee suspects that a search of a student or a st d
‘ n accordance with

of the student's violation of the law or school rules, such a sear
BP/AR 5145.12 - Search and Seizure.

(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure)

district employee may confiscate the device. The employee shall s evice securely until itis
r designee, as appropriate.

tivities or other privileges

counselmg services, or denlal of partlc1pat|on ine ,
i ndent/PrmcnpaI or designee

in accordance with Board p

(cf 6159.
(cf. 6164.2 -

Students also may be subject to discipline, in accordance with law, Board policy, or administrative
regulation, for any off-campus conduct during nonschool hours which poses a threat or danger to the safety
of students, staff, or district property, or substantially disrupts school activities.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination
32280-32289 Comprehensive safety plan




Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5131 (d)

35181 Governing board authority to set policy on responsibilities of students
35291-35291.5 Rules

-44807 Duty.concerning conduct of students -
48900-48925 Suspension and expulsion
51512 Prohibition against electronic listening or recording device in classroom without permission
CIVIL CODE
1714.1 Liability of parents and guardians for willful misconduct of minor
PENAL CODE
288.2 Harmful matter with intent to seduce
313 Harmful matter
417.25-417.27 Laser scope or laser pointer
647 Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's pri
653.2 Electronic communication devices, threats to safety.
VEHICLE CODE
23123-23124 Prohibitions against use of electronic devi
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
300-307 Duties of students
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
20 USC 1681-1688 Title 1X, 1972 Education
COURT DECISIONS
J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District (2011
LaVine v. Blaine School District (2001, 9th Cir.)
Emmett v. Kent School Distri
Bethel School District No.-
New Jersey v. T.L.O. (198

misdemeanor

while driving

nvironmentffor All Students, Policy Brief, April 2010
ds, Policy Brief, July 2007

g: Policy Conside
A DEPARTMENT

National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

(3/10 3/12) 10/19
Policy Adopted: 2/14/23

Policy Amended:



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5141.4 (a)

Students

‘ Child AbuSERépeFting-PFeeedupes Prévention and Reporting -

the safety and well- bemg of dIStrICt students and desires to facilitate the prevention of and response to

child abuse and neglect. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall establish-regulationsforuse-by
districtemployeesinidentifyingandrepertingsuch-ncidents develop and implement strategies for

preventing, recognizing, and promptly reporting known or suspected child abuse and neglect.

The Superintendent/Principal or desighee may provide a student who is a victim of abuse with school-based
mental health services or other support services and/or may refer the student to resources available within
the community as needed.

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)
(cf. 5141.41 - Child Abuse Prevention)

(cf. 5142 — Safety)

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

Child Abuse Prevention

The district's instructional program shall include age-appropriate and culturally sensitive child abuse
prevention curriculum. This curriculum shall explain students' right to live free of abuse, include instruction
in the skills and techniques needed to identify unsafe situations and react appropriately and promptly,
inform students of available support resources, and teach students how to obtain help and disclose
incidents of abuse.

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

The district's program also may include age-appropriate curriculum in sexual abuse and sexual assault
awareness and prevention. Upon written request of a student's parent/guardian, the student shall be
excused from taking such instruction. (Education Code 51900.6)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall, to the extent feasible, seek to incorporate community
resources into the district's child abuse prevention programs and may use these resources to provide
parents/guardians with instruction in parenting skills and child abuse prevention.

Child Abuse Reporting

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall establish regulationsforuseby-district-employeesin
identifying-and-reporting-such-neidents: procedures for the identification and reporting of known and

suspected child abuse and neglect in accordance with law.

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

AGENDA ITEM # |2-O



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5141.4 (b)

Procedures for reporting child abuse shall be included in the district and/or school comprehensive safety
plan. (Education Code 32282)

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

District employees, who are mandated reporters as defined by law and administrative regulation, are

obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect in accordance with law,
Board Policy and administrative regulation. Employees shall not investigate any suspected incidents but
rather shall fully cooperate with agencies responsible for reporting, investigating and prosecuting cases of
child abuse and neglect.

(cf. 4131- Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 — Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 — Staff Development)

In. the event that training is not provided to employees mandated to report child abuse and neglect, the
Superintendent/Principal or designee shall report to the California Department of Education the reasons
that such training is not provided. (Penal Code 11165.7)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

32280-32288 Comprehensive school safety plans

33195 Heritage schools, mandated reporters

33308.1 Guidelines on procedure for filing child abuse complaints
44252 Teacher credentialing

44691 Staff development in the detection of child abuse and neglect
44807 Duty concerning conduct of students

48906 Notification when student released to peace officer

48987 Dissemination of reporting guidelines to parents

49001 Prohibition of corporal punishment

51220.5 Parenting skills education

51900.6 Sexual abuse and sexual assault awareness and prevention
PENAL CODE

152.3 Duty to report murder, rape, or lewd or lascivious act

273a Willful cruelty or unjustifiable punishment of child; endangering life or health
288 Definition of lewd or lascivious act requiring reporting
11164-11174.3 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

15630-15637 Dependent adult abuse reporting




Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5141.4 (c)

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4650 Filing complaints with CDE, special education students

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 . - S
11434a McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions

COURT DECISIONS

Camreta v. Greene (2011) 131 S.Ct. 2020

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve
Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve

WEB SITES

California Attorney General's Office, Suspected Child Abuse Report Form:
http://www.ag.ca.gov/childabuse/pdf/ss_8572.pdf

California Department of Education, Safe Schools: http://www.cde.ca.gov/Is/ss/ap
California Department of Social Services, Children and Family Services Division:
http://www.childsworld.ca.gov

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Child Welfare Information Gateway:
https://www.childwelfare.gov/can

(3/88 6/93 3/01 7/02 11/04) 12/14
Policy Adopted: 2/10/04

Policy Amended: 2/14/23



Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5141.4 (a)
Students

Child Abuse Repeorting-RProcedures-Prevention and Reporting

Definitions

Child abuse or neglect includes the following: (Penal Code 11165.5, 11165.6)

1. A physical injury or death inflicted by other than accidental means on a child by another person
2. Sexual abuse of a child, including sexual assault or sexual exploitation, as defined in Penal Code
11165.1

3. Neglect of a child as defined in Penal Code 11165.2

4. Willful ervetty-erunjustifiablepunishmentharming or injuring of a child or the endangering of
the person or health of a child as defined in Penal Code 11165.3

5. Unlawful corporal punishment or injury restltingina-traumatic-condition as defined in Penal
Code 11165.4

6. Abuse or neglect of a child in out-of-home care, including at school, as defined in Penal Code
111.65.5

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

Child abuse or neglect does not include:
1. A mutual affray between minors (Penal Code 11165.6)

2. An injury caused by reasonable and necessary force used by a peace officer acting within the
course and scope of his/her employment (Penal Code 11165.6)

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

3. An injury resulting from the exercise by a teacher, vice principal, principal, or other certificated
employee of the same degree of physical control over a student that a parent/guardian would be
privileged to exercise, not exceeding the amount of physical control reasonably necessary to
maintain order, protect property, protect the health and safety of students, or maintain proper and
appropriate conditions conducive to learning (Education Code 44807)

4. An ameunt injury caused by a school employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary

fora-schoolemployee to quell a disturbance threatening physical injury to persons or damage to
property, to protect himself/herself, or to obtain weapons or other dangerous objects within the

control of a student (Education Code 49001)




Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5141.4 (b)

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

5. Physical pain or discomfort caused by athletic competition or other such recreational activity
voluntarily engaged in by a student (Education Code 49001)

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

6. Homelessness or classification as an unaccompanied minor (Penal Code 11165.15)

Mandated reporters include, but are not limited to, teachers; instructional aides; teacher's aides or
assistants; classified employees; certificated pupil personnel employees; administrative officers or
supervisors of child attendance; athletic coaches, administrators, and directors; administrators and
employees of a licensed child day care facility; Head Start teachers; district police or security officers;
licensed nurses or health care providers; and administrators, presenters, and counselors of a child abuse
prevention program. (Penal Code 11165.7)

(cf.5141.41 Child Abuse Prevention)

Reasonable suspicion means that it is objectively reasonable for a person to entertain a suspicion, based
upon facts that could cause a reasonable person in a like position, drawing when appropriate on his/her
training and experience, to suspect child abuse or neglect. However, reasonable suspicion does not require
certainty that child abuse or neglect has occurred nor does it require a specific medical indication of child
abuse or neglect. (Penal Code 11166)

Reportable Offenses

#:¥Note: Penal Code 11166 specifies that a mandated reporter has a duty to report when acting in his/her professional
capacity or within the scope of employment. When a mandated reporter is acting in a private capacity, like other private
citizens, he/she has the discretion whether or not to make a report.***

A mandated reporter shall make a report using the procedures provided below whenever, in his/her
professional capacity or within the scope of his/her employment, he/she has knowledge of or observes a
child whom the mandated reporter knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or
neglect. (Penal Code 11166)

Any mandated reporter who has knowledge of or who reasonably suspects that a child is suffering serious
emotional damage or is at a substantial risk of suffering serious emotional damage, based on evidence of
severe anxiety, depression, withdrawal, or untoward aggressive behavior toward self or others, may make a
report to the appropriate agency. (Penal Code 11166.05, 11167)

Any district employee who reasonably believes that he/she has observed the commission of a murder,
rape, or lewd or lascivious act by use of force, violence, duress, menace, or fear of immediate and unlawful
bodily injury against a victim who is a child under age 14 shall notify a peace officer. (Penal Code 152.3,

288)




Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5141.4 (c)

Responsibility for Reporting

The reporting duties of mandated reporters are individual and cannot be delegated to another person.
Reporting the information to an employer, supervisor or the Superintendent/Principal or designee, school
counsellor, co-worker, or other person shall not be a substitute for making a mandated report to the
appropriate agency. (Penal Code 11166)

When two or more mandated reporters jointly have knowledge of a known or suspected instance of child
abuse or neglect, the report may be made by a member of the team selected by mutual agreement and a
single report may be made and signed by the selected member of the reporting team. Any member who
has knowledge that the member designated to report has failed to do so shall thereafter make the report.
(Penal Code 11166)

No supervisor or administrator shall impede or inhibit a mandated reporter from making a report. (Penal
Code 11166)

Any person not identified as a mandated reporter who has knowledge of or observes a child whom he/she
knows or reasonably suspects has been a victim of child abuse or neglect may report the known or
suspected instance of child abuse or neglect to the appropriate agency. (Penal Code 11166)

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

Reporting Procedures

1. Initial Telephone Report

s £F

ho do
>
7’

nrah
pTood

suchrepoerts-or-the-countywelfare department: Immediately or as soon as practicable after knowing or
observing suspected child abuse or neglect, a mandated reporter shall make an initial report by telephone
to any police department (excluding a school district police/security department), sheriff's department,
county probation department if designated by the county to receive such reports, or county welfare
department. (Penal Code 11165.9, 11166)

(Name of appropriate agency)

(Address)

(Phone number)




Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5141.4 (d)

When the initial telephone report is made, the mandated reporter shall note the name of the official
contacted, the date and time contacted, and any instructions or advice received.

2. Written Report

Within 36 hours of reeeiving knowing or observing the information concerning the incident, the mandated
reporter shall then prepare and either send, fax, or electronically submit to the appropriate agency a

written follow-up report hat, which includes a completed Department of Justice form (SS 8572). (Penal
Code 11166, 11168)

The Department of Justice form may be obtained from the district office or other appropriate agencies,
such as the county probation or welfare department or the police or sheriff's department.

Reports of suspected child abuse or neglect shall include, if known: (Penal Code 11167)

a. The name, business address, and telephone number of the person making the report and the
capacity that makes the person a mandated reporter

b. The child's name and address, present location, and, where applicable, school, grade, and class
C. The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the child's parents/guardians
d. The name, address, telephone number, and other relevant personal information about the

person who might have abused or neglected the child

e. The information that gave rise to the reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect and the
source(s) of that information

The mandated reporter shall make a report even if some of this information is not known or is uncertain to
him/her. (Penal Code 11167)

The mandated reporter may give to an investigator from an agency investigating the case, including a
licensing agency, any information relevant to an incident of child abuse or neglect or to a report made for
serious emotional damage pursuant to Penal Code 11166.05. (Penal Code 11167)

3. Internal Reporting

The mandated reporter shall not be required to disclose his/her identity to his/her supervisor, or the
Superintendent/Principal or designee. (Penal Code 11166)



Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5141.4 (e)

However, employees reporting child abuse or neglect to an appropriate agency are encouraged, but not
required, to notify the Superintendent/Principal or designee as soon as possible after the initial telephone
report to the appropriate agency. When so notified, the designee shall inform the
Superintendent/Principal.

The Superintendent/Principal or designee so notified shall provide the mandated reporter with any
assistance necessary to ensure that reporting procedures are carried out in accordance with law, Board
policy, and administrative regulation. At the mandated reporter's request, the Superintendent/Principal or
designee may assist in completing and filing the necessary forms.

Reporting the information to an employer, supervisor, principal, school counselor, co-worker, or other
person shall not be a substitute for making a mandated report to the appropriate agency. (Penal Code
11166)

Any person shall notify a peace officer if he/she reasonably believes that he/she has observed the
commission of any of the following offenses where the victim is a child under age 14: (Penal Code 152.3,
288)

e Murder
e Rape
e Lewd or lascivious act by force, violence, duress, or fear of immendiate and unlawful bodily injury

Training

Within the first six weeks of each school year, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall provide
training on mandated reporting requirements to district employees and persons working on their behalf
who are mandated reporters. Any school personnel hired during the school year shall receive such training
within the first six weeks of employment. (Education Code 44691; Penal Code 11165.7)

Training shall also include guidance in the appropriate discipline of students, physical contact with students,
and maintenance of ethical relationships with students to avoid actions that may be interpreted as child
abuse.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf.5145.7 — Sexual Harassment)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall use the online training module provided by the California
Department of Social Services (Education Code 44691) or the Keenan online training modules. If the
Keenan training moduels are used the Superintendent/Principal or designee must report this to the CDE.




Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5141.4 (f)

The training shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, training in identification and reporting of child
abuse and neglect. In addition, the training shall include information that failure to report an incident of
-known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect as required by law is a misdemeanor punishable by
imprisonment and/or a fine as specified. (Education Code 44691; Penal Code 11165.7)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall obtain and retain proof of each mandated reporter's
completion of the training: use of a sign-in sheet in the case of a group training or, submission of a
certificate of completion in the case of individual online training. (Education Code 44691)

In addition, at least once every three years, school personnel may receive training in the prevention of child
abuse, including sexual abuse, on school grounds, by school personnel, or in school-sponsored programs.
(Education Code 44691)

Victim Interviews by Social Services

***Note: Penal Code 11174.3 authorizes a representative from the Department of Social Services or another
government agency investigating suspected child abuse or neglect to interview a student during school hours, on school
grounds, concerning a report of child abuse or neglect that occurred at home or in an out-of-home care facility.
However, there is no clear guidance regarding the procedures to be followed if a social worker is accompanied by law
enforcement. In Greene v. Camreta, the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals had ruled that, absent exigent circumstances, a
social worker and sheriff could not question a student in school without obtaining a warrant, court order, or
parent/guardian consent. Subsequently, that ruling was vacated by the U.S. Supreme Court on appeal (Camreta v.
Greene) since the case was then moot. Districts should proceed with caution and consult with legal counsel as
necessary.***

Department of Social Services or another government agency is investigating suspected child abuse or
neglect that occurred within the child's home or out-of-home care facility, the student may be interviewed
by an agency representative during school hours, on school premises. Fhe-Child-shaltbegiventhe-The
Superintendent/Principal or designee shall give the student the choice of being interviewed in private or in
the presence of any adult school employee or volunteer aide selected by the student. (Penal Code 11174.3)

A staff member or volunteer aide selected by a child may decline to be present at the interview. If the
selected person accepts, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall inform him/her of the following
requirements: (Penal Code 11174.3)

1. The purpose of the selected person's presence at the interview is to lend support to the child
and enable him/her to be as comfortable as possible.

2. The selected person shall not participate in the interview.
3. The selected person shall not discuss the facts or circumstances of the case with the child.

4. The selected person is subject to the confidentiality requirements of the Child Abuse and
Neglect Reporting Act, a violation of which is punishable as specified in Penal Code 11167.5.



Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5141.4 (g)

If a staff member agrees to be present, the interview shall be held at a time during school hours when it
does not involve an expense to the school. (Penal Code 11174.3)

Release of Child to Peace Officer

When a child is released to a peace officer and taken into custody as a victim of suspected child abuse or
neglect, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall not notify the parent/guardian as required in other
instances of removal of a child from school, but rather shall provide the peace officer with the address and
telephone number of the child's parent/guardian. It is the responsibility of the peace officer or agent to
notify the parent/guardian of the situation.(Education Code 48906)

(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension by Law Enforcement)

Parent/Guardian Complaints

***Note: Education Code 48987 requires the district to disseminate guidelines, upon request, advising
parents/guardians of procedures for filing child abuse complaints. As required by Education Code 33308.1, the CDE
has prepared sample guidelines for this purpose, which were updated in March 2014 and are available on the CDE's
web site ¥

Upon request, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall provide parents/guardians with procedures

whereby-they-eanrepertfor reporting suspected child abuse occurring at a school site to appropriate
agencies. For parents/guardians whose primary language is not English, such procedures shall be in the

their primary language ef-the-parent/guardian and, when communicating orally regarding those

procedures, an interpreter shall be provided ferparents/guardians-whese-primarylanguageisotherthan
English. (Education Code 48987)

To file a complaint against a district employee or other person suspected of child abuse or neglect at a
school site, parents/guardians may file a report by telephone, in person, or in writing with any appropriate
agency identified above under "Reporting Procedures." If a parent/guardian makes a complaint about an
employee to any other district employee, that the employee receiving the information shall notify the
parent/guardian of procedures for filing a complaint with the appropriate agency. The employee also is
obligated pursuant to Penal Code 11166 to file a report himself/herself using the procedures described
above for mandated reporters.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

In addition, if the child is enrolled in special education, a separate complaint may be filed with the California
Department of Education pursuant to 5 CCR 4650.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Notifications




Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5141.4 (h)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall provide to all new employees who are mandated reporters

a statement that informs them of their status as mandated reporters, their reporting obligations under
Penal Code 11166, and their confidentiality rights under Penal Code 11167. The district also shall provide
these new employees with a copy of Penal Code 11165.7, 11166, and 11167. (Penal Code 11165.7,11166.5)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

Before beginning employment, any person who will be a mandated reporter by virtue of his/her position
shall sign a statement indicating that he/she has knowledge of the reporting obligations under Penal Code
11166 and will comply with those provisions. The signed statement shall be retained by the
Superintendent/Principal or designee. (Penal Code 11166.5)

Employees who work with dependent adults shall be notified of legal responsibilities and reporting
procedures pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 15630-15637.

The Superintendent or designee also shall notify all employees that:

1. A mandated reporter who reports a known or suspected instance of child abuse or neglect shall not
be held civilly or criminally liable for making a report and this immunity shall apply even if the mandated
reporter acquired the knowledge or reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect outside of his/her
professional capacity or outside the scope of his/her employment. Any other person making a report shall
not incur civil or criminal liability unless it can be proven that he/she knowingly made a false report or
made a report with reckless disregard of the truth or falsity of the report. (Penal Code 11172)

2. If a mandated reporter fails to timely report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child
abuse or neglect, he/she is may be guilty of a misdermeaner crime punishable by a fine and/or
imprisonment. (Penal Code 11166)

3. No employee shall be subject to any sanction by the district for making a report unless it can be
shown that he/she knowingly made a false report or made a report with reckless disregard of the truth or
falsity of the report. (Penal Code 11166)

(3/88 6/93 3/0111/10 12/14) 5/16
Policy Adopted: 2/10/04

Policy Amended: 2/14/23



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5144.1 (a)
Students

Suspension-And Expulsion/Due Pro"’.c'éés

The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in an orderly
school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and
promotes their learning and development. The Board shall develop rules and regulations setting the
standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary processes and procedures for
addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or expulsion.

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, and/or
implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law, in this policy, and in the
accompanying administrative regulation. :

Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when the behavior
is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district school or another school
district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the following: (Education Code 48900(s))

1. While on school grounds
2. While going to or coming from school
3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus

(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus)

4, During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity

District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, consistently,
equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Appropriate Use of Suspension Authority

Except when a student's act violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e), as listed in items #1-5 under "Grounds
for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-8" of the accompanying administrative regulation, or when the
student's presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only when other means of
correction have failed to bring about proper conduct. (Education Code 48900.5, 48900.6)

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(¢f. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

AGENDA ITEM # 50



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5144.1 (b)

A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating pattern of
misbehavior that could lead to on-campus or off-campus suspension.

No student in grades K-8 may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, except by a teacher pursuant
to Education Code 48910. (Education Code 48900)

Students shall not be suspended or expelled for truancy, tardiness, or absenteeism from assigned school
activities.

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

On-Campus Suspension

To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of the
reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent danger or threat to
anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been initiated, the
Superintendent/Principal or designee shall establish a supervised suspension classroom program which
meets the requirements of law.

Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised
suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper

conduct. (Education Code 48900.5)

Authority to Expel

A student may be expelled only by the Board. (Education Code 48918(j))

As required by law, the Superintendent/Principal shall recommend expulsion and the Board shall expel any
student found to have committed any of the following "mandatory recommendation and mandatory
expulsion" acts at school or at a school activity off school grounds: (Education Code 48915)

1. Possessing a firearm which is not an imitation firearm, as verified by a certificated employee,
unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a certificated
school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

2. Selling or otherwise furnishing a firearm
3. Brandishing a knife at another person
4. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058

5. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286,
288, 288a, or 289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4

6. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921

For all other violations listed in the accompanying administrative regulation, the Superintendent /Principal
shall have the discretion to recommend expulsion of a student. If expulsion is recommended, the Board



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5144.1 (c)

shall order the student expelled only if it makes a finding of either or both of the following: (Education
Code 48915(b) and (e))

-~ ~ .
- ES
- .

1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper

conduct
2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing danger

to the physical safety of the student or others
A vote to expel a student shall be taken in an open session of a Board meeting.

The Board may vote to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant to the requirements of
law and the accompanying administrative regulation. (Education Code 48917)

No student shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance. (Education Code 48900)
Due Process

The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and/or expulsion
by affording them their due process rights under the law. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall
comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and administrative regulation.
(Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918)

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Maintenance and Monitoring of OQutcome Data

The Superintendent /Principal or designee shall maintain outcome data related to student suspensions and
expulsions in accordance with Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, including, but not limited to, the
number of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each recommended expulsion, the
actions taken by the Board, the types of referral made after each expulsion, and the disposition of the
students after the expulsion period. For any expulsion that involves the possession of a firearm, such data
shall include the name of the school and the type of firearm involved, as required pursuant to 20 USC 7961.
Suspension and expulsion data shall be reported to the Board annually and to the California Department of
Education when so required.

In presenting the report to the Board, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall disaggregate data on
suspensions and expulsions by numerically significant student subgroups, including, but not limited to,
ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities,
foster youth, and homeless students. Based on the data, the Board shall address any identified disparities in
the imposition of student discipline and shall determine whether and how the district is meeting its goals
for improving school climate as specified in its local control and accountability plan.

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)



Manchester Union Elementary School District

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

212.5 Sexual harassment

233 Hate violence

1981-1981.5 Enrollment of students in community school
8239.1 Prohibition against expulsion of preschool student
17292.5 Program for expelled students

32261 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985
35145 Open board meetings

35146 Closed sessions (regarding suspensions)

35291 Rules (for government and discipline of schools)
35291.5 Rules and procedures on school discipline
48645.5 Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system
48660-48666 Community day schools

48853.5 Foster youth

48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion

48950 Speech and other communication

48980 Parental notifications

49073-49079 Privacy of student records

52052 Numerically significant student subgroups
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan
64000-64001 Consolidated application

CIVIL CODE

47 Privileged communication

48.8 Defamation liability

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

1985-1997 Subpoenas; means of production
GOVERNMENT CODE

11455.20 Contempt

54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

11014.5 Drug paraphernalia

11053-11058 Standards and schedules

LABOR CODE

230.7 Employee time off to appear in school on behalf of a child
PENAL CODE

31 Principal of a crime, defined

240 Assault defined

241.2 Assault fines

242 Battery defined

243.2 Battery on school property

243.4 Sexual battery

245 Assault with deadly weapon

245.6 Hazing

261 Rape defined

266¢ Unlawful sexual intercourse

286 Sodomy defined

288 Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14

288a Oral copulation

BP 5144.1 (a)



Manchester Union Elementary School District BP 5144.1 (a)

289 Penetration of genital or anal openings
_417.27 laser pointers

%~ 422.55 Hate crime defined

422.6 Interference with exercise of civil rights

422.7 Aggravating factors for punishment

422.75 Enhanced penalties for hate crimes

626.2 Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission
626.9 Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995

626.10 Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns

868.5 Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

729.6 Counseling

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18

921 Definitions, firearm

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1415(K) Placement in alternative educational setting

7961 Gun-free schools

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

11432-11435 Education of homeless children and youths

COURT DECISIONS

T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267

Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421

Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of Education and
Kenneth H. (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321

Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 118
Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807

John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001)

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997)

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997)

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997)

Management Resources:

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS

Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Attorney General's Office: http://www.oag.ca.gov

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-
2012-data-summary.pdf

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Healthy Students:
http://www?2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs

(12/17 10/18) 3/20

Policy Adopted: Date unknown
Policy Amended: 2/14/23



Manchester Union Elementary School District AR 5144.1 (a)

Students
Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Definitions

Suspension means removal of a student from ongoing instruction for adjustment purposes. However,
suspension does not mean any of the following: (Education Code 48925)

1. Reassignment to another education program or class at the same school where the student will
receive continuing instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Governing Board for students of
the same grade level

2. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the principal to advise students
3. Removal from the class, but without reassignment to another class or program, for the
remainder of the class period without sending the student to the Superintendent/Principal or

designee as provided in Education Code 48910

Expulsion means removal of a student from the immediate supervision and control or the general
supervision of school personnel. (Education Code 48925)

¢ Notice of Regulations

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent/Principal shall ensure that all students and
parents/guardians are notified in writing of all school rules related to discipline, including suspension and
expulsion. (Education Code 35291, 48900.1, 48980)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-8

**Note: The acts for which students may be suspended or expelled are specified in law, the following section, and the
sections below titled "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12," and "Additional Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12." The Board does not have authority to add to those enumerated acts.
However, the Board has authority to prohibit suspension or expulsion for certain acts for which suspension or expulsion
is permissible rather than mandatory. The Board may consider limiting the use of suspension and expulsion for such
offenses as part of the district plan to address school climate within the local control and accountability plan required
pursuant to Education Code 52060. In addition, pursuant to Education Code 48900.5, a district is not authorized to
suspend a student for certain specified violations unless other means of correction have failed to bring about proper
conduct. ¥¥*¥

Acts for which a student, including a student with disabilities, may be suspended or expelled shall be only
those specified as follows and in the sections "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-
12" below:



(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person; willfully
used force or violence upon another person, except in self-defense; or committed as an aider or
abettor, as adjudged by a juvenile court, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered
great or serious bodily injury (Education Code 48900(a) and (t))

2. Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous
object, unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained written
permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the principal or designee's
concurrence (Education Code 48900(b))

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

3. Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any
controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or
intoxicant of any kind (Education Code 48900(c))

(cf. 3513.4 - Drug and Alcohol Free Schools)
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)

4. Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in
Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold,
delivered, or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid, substance, or material and
represented same as such controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant (Education Code
48900(d))

5. Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion (Education Code 48900(e))

6. Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property (Education Code
48900(f))

7. Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property (Education Code 48900(g))

8. Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including, but
not limited to, cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew
packets, and betel, except that this restriction shall not prohibit a student from using or possessing
prescription products (Education Code 48900(h))

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)

9. Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity (Education Code
48900(i))

10.  Unlawfully possessed, offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as
defined in Health and Safety Code 11014.5 (Education Code 48900(j))

11.  Knowingly received stolen school property or private property (Education Code 48900(l))



12. Possessed an imitation firearm (Education Code 48900(m))

Imitation firearm means a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical properties to an
existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm. (Education Code
48900(m))

13. Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286,
288, 288a, or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4 (Education Code
48900(n))

14. Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness ina
school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness
and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness (Education Code 48900(0))

15.  Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma
(Education Code 48900(p))

16. Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing (Education Code 48900(q))

Hazing means a method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body, whether or not
the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious
bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current,
or prospective student. Hazing does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events. (Education
Code 48900(q))

17. Engaged in an act of bullying (Education Code 48900(r))

Bullying means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made
in writing or by means of an electronic act, directed toward one or more students that has or can
reasonably be predicted to have the effect of placing a reasonable student in fear of harm to self or
property; cause the student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on physical or mental health;
or cause the student to experience substantial interferences with academic performance or ability to
participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school. (Education Code
48900(r))

Bullying includes any act of sexual harassment, hate violence, or harassment, threat, or intimidation, as
defined in Education Code 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4 and below in the section "Additional Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12," that has any of the effects described above on a reasonable
student.

Bullying also includes an act of cyber sexual bullying by a student through the dissemination of, or the
solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording that depicts a nude, semi-
nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of an identifiable minor, when such
dissemination is to another student or to school personnel by means of an electronic act and has or can be
reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects of bullying described above. Cyber sexual bullying
does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational, political,
or scientific value or that involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.



Electronic act means the creation or transmission originated on or off the school site by means of an
electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless
communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication including, but not limited to: (Education
Code 48900(r))

a. A message, text, sound, video, or image

b. A post on a social network Internet web site, including, but not limited to, posting to or
creating a burn page or creating a credible impersonation or false profile for the purpose of causing a
reasonable student any of the effects of bullying described above.

Reasonable student means a student, including, but not limited to, a student who has been identified as a
student with a disability, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of the
student's age, or for a person of the student's age and disability. (Education Code 48900(r))

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

18.  Aided or abetted the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury on another person, as
defined in Penal Code 31 (Education Code 48900(t))

19.  Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property (Education Code
48900.7)

A terrorist threat includes any written or oral statement by a person who willfully threatens to commit a
crime which will result in death or great bodily injury to another person or property damage in excess of
$1,000, with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of
actually carrying it out. (Education Code 48900.7)

Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-8

A student in grades 4-8 shall be subject to suspension or recommendation for expulsion when it is
determined that the student:

1. Committed sexual harassment as defined in Education Code 212.5 (Education Code 48900.2)

Sexual harassment means conduct which, when considered from the perspective of a reasonable person of
the same gender as the victim, is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to have a negative impact upon the
victim's academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment.
(Education Code 212.5, 48900.2)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

2. Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate violence as
defined in Education Code 233 (Education Code 48900.3)



Hate violence means any act punishable under Penal Code 422.6, 422.7, or 422.75. Such acts include
injuring or intimidating a victim, interfering with the exercise of a victim's civil rights, or damaging a victim's
property because of the victim's race, ethnicity, religion, nationality, disability, gender, gender identity,
gender expression, or sexual orientation; a perception of the presence of any of those characteristics in the
victim; or the victim's association with a person or group with one or more of those actual or perceived
characteristics. (Education Code 233; Penal Code 422.55)

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

3. Intentionally engaged in harassment, threats, or intimidation against district personnel or
students that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably expected effect of
materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder, and invading the rights of school
personnel or students by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment (Education
Code 48900.4)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

Suspension from Class by a Teacher

*Note: The following section is optional and may be revised to reflect district practice. While Education Code
48900(k) prohibits a district from suspending students in grades K-8 for disruption or willful defiance, it still allows for a
teacher to suspend a K-8 student on these grounds. ***

A teacher may suspend a student from class for the remainder of the day and the following day for any of
the acts specified in Education Code 48900 and listed as items #1-18 under "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion: Grades K-8" above or for disruption or willful defiance at any grade level. (Education Code
48910)

When suspending a student from class, the teacher shall immediately report this action to the
Superintendent/Principal or designee and send the student to the Superintendent/Principal or designee for
appropriate action. If that action requires the continuing presence of the student at school, the student
shall be appropriately supervised during the class periods from which the student has been suspended.
(Education Code 48910)

As soon as possible after the teacher decides to suspend the student, the teacher shall ask the student's
parent/guardian to attend a parent-teacher conference regarding the suspension. A counselor or
psychologist may attend the conference if it is practicable, and the Superintendent/Principal shall attend if
either the parent/guardian or teacher so requests. (Education Code 48910)

A student suspended from class shall not be returned to class during the period of the suspension without
the approval of the teacher of the class and the Superintendent/Principal or designee. (Education Code
48910)

A student suspended from class shall not be placed in another regular class during the period of
suspension. However, a student assigned to more than one class per day may continue to attend other
regular classes except those held at the same time as the class from which the student was suspended.
(Education Code 48910)

The teacher of any class from which a student is suspended may require the student to complete any
assignments and tests missed during the removal. (Education Code 48913)



Suspension by Superintendent/Principal or their Designee

To implement disciplinary progedures, the Superintendent/Principal may, in writing, designate a
certificated employee to assist with disciplinary procedures when the Superintendent/Principal is absent
from the school site. : :

The Superintendent/Principal, or designee shall immediately suspend any student found at school or at a
school activity to have committed any of the acts listed in the Board policy under "Authority to Expel” for
which a recommendation of expulsion is required. (Education Code 48915(c))

The Superintendent/Principal or designee may impose a suspension for a first offense if it is determined
that the student violated any of items #1-5 listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-
8" above or if the student's presence causes a danger to persons. (Education Code 48900.5)

For all other offenses, a student may be suspended only when the Superintendent/Principal or designee
has determined that other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct. (Education Code
48900.5)

When other means of correction are implemented prior to imposing suspension or supervised suspension
upon a student, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall document the other means of correction
used and retain the documentation in the student's record. (Education Code 48900.5)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Length of Suspension

The Superintendent/Principal or designee may suspend a student from school for not more than five
consecutive school days. (Education Code 48911)

A student may be suspended from school for not more than 20 school days in any school year. However, if
a student enrolls in or is transferred to another regular school, an opportunity school, or continuation
school or class for the purpose of adjustment, the student may be suspended for not more than 30 school
days in a school year. The district may count suspensions that occur while a student is enrolled in another
school district toward the maximum number of days for which the student may be suspended in any school
year. (Education Code 48903, 48911, 48912)

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

These restrictions on the number of days of suspension shall not apply when the suspension is extended
pending an expulsion. (Education Code 48911)

Due Process Procedures for Suspension

Suspensions shall be imposed in accordance with the following procedures:

1. Informal Conference: Suspension shall be preceded by an informal conference conducted by
the Superintendent/Principal or designee with the student and, whenever practicable, the teacher,
supervisor, or school employee who referred the student to the principal. At the conference, the



student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action, including the other means of
correction that were attempted before the suspension as required pursuant to Education Code
48900.5, and the evidence against the student, and shall be given the opportunity to present the
student's version and evidence. (Education Code 48911)

" This conference may be omitted if the Superintendent/Principal or designee determines that an emergency
situation exists involving a clear and present danger to the lives, safety, or health of students or school
personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference, both the parent/guardian and student shall
be notified of the student's right to return to school for the purpose of the conference and the conference
shall be held within two school days, unless the student waives the right to it or is physically unable to
attend for any reason. In such a case, the conference shall be held as soon as the student is physically able
to return to school. (Education Code 48911)

2. Administrative Actions: All requests for student suspension are to be processed by the
Superintendent/Principal or designee. A school employee shall report the suspension, including the
name of the student and the cause for the suspension, to the Superintendent/Principal or designee.
(Education Code 48911)

3. Notice to Parents/Guardians: At the time of the suspension, a school employee shall make a
reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is
suspended, the parent/guardian shall also be notified in writing of the suspension. (Education Code
48911)

This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student. (Education Code 48900.8)
In addition, the notice may state the date and time when the student may return to school.

4. Parent/Guardian Conference: Whenever a student is suspended, school officials may request a
meeting with the parent/guardian to discuss the cause(s) and duration of the suspension, the school
policy involved, and any other pertinent matter. (Education Code 48914)

If school officials request to meet with the parent/guardian, the notice may state that the law requires the
parent/guardian to respond to such requests without delay. However, no penalties may be imposed on the
student for the failure of the parent/guardian to attend such a conference. The student may not be denied
reinstatement solely because the parent/guardian failed to attend the conference. (Education Code 48911)

5. Extension of Suspension: If the Board is considering the expulsion of a suspended student, the
Superintendent/Principal or designee may, in writing, extend the suspension until such time as the
Board has made a decision, provided the following requirements are followed: (Education Code
48911)

a. The extension of the original period of suspension is preceded by notice of such
extension with an offer to hold a conference concerning the extension, giving the student an
opportunity to be heard. This conference may be held in conjunction with a meeting requested
by the student or parent/guardian to challenge the original suspension.

b. The Superintendent/Principal or designee determines, following a meeting in which the
student and the student's parent/guardian were invited to participate, that the student's



presence at the school or at an alternative school would endanger persons or property or
threaten to disrupt the instructional process. (Education Code 48911)

C. If the student involved is a foster youth, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the
district liaison for foster youth of the need to invite the student's attorney and a representative
of the appropriate county child welfare agency to attend the meeting. (Education Code
48853.5, 48911, 48918.1)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

d. If the student involved is a homeless child or youth, the Superintendent/Principal or
designee shall notify the district liaison for homeless students. (Education Code 48918.1)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
In lieu of or in addition to suspending a student, the Superintendent/Principal or designee may provide
services or require the student to participate in an alternative disciplinary program designed to correct the

behavior and keep the student in school.

Suspension by the Board

The Board may suspend a student for any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion:
Grades K-8," and "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-8," above and within the
limits specified under "Suspension by Superintendent/Principal or Designee" above. (Education Code
48912)

When the Board is considering a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action (except expulsion)
against any student, it shall hold a closed session if a public hearing would lead to disclosure of information
that would violate a student's right to privacy under Education Code 49073-49079. (Education Code 35146,
48912)

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session)

The Board shall provide the student and parent/guardian with written notice of the closed session by
registered or certified mail or personal service. Upon receiving this notice, the student or parent/guardian
may request a public meeting, and this request shall be granted if made in writing within 48 hours after
receipt of the Board's notice. However, any discussion that conflicts with any other student's right to
privacy still shall be held in closed session. (Education Code 35146, 48912)

On-Campus Suspension

A student for whom an expulsion action has not been initiated and who poses no imminent danger or
threat to the school, students, or staff may be assigned to on-campus suspension in a separate classroom,
building, or site for the entire period of suspension. The following conditions shall apply: (Education Code
48911.1)

1. The on-campus suspension classroom shall be staffed in accordance with law.

2. The student shall have access to appropriate counseling services.



3. The on-campus suspension classroom shall promote completion of schoolwork and tests
missed by the student during the suspension.

4. The student shall be responsible for contacting the student's teacher(s) to receive assignments
to be completed in the supervised suspension classroom. The teacher(s) shall provide all assignments
and tests that the student will miss while suspended. If no such work is assigned, the person
supervising the suspension classroom shall assign schoolwork.

At the time a student is assigned to an on-campus suspension classroom, the Superintendent/Principal or
designee shall notify the student's parent/guardian in person or by telephone. (Education Code 48911.1)

Superintendent/Principal’s Authority to Recommend Expulsion

Unless the Superintendent/Principal determines that expulsion should not be recommended under the
circumstances or that an alternative means of correction would address the conduct, the
Superintendent/Principal shall recommend a student's expulsion for any of the following acts: (Education
Code 48915)

1. Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense
2. Possession of any knife or other dangerous object of no reasonable use to the student
3. Unlawful possession of any controlled substance as listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-

11058, except for (a) the first offense for the possession of not more than one ounce of marijuana,
other than concentrated cannabis, or (b) the student's possession of over-the-counter medication or
other medication prescribed by a physician

4. Robbery or extortion

5. Assault or battery, as defined in Penal Code 240 and 242, upon any school employee
In determining whether or not to recommend the expulsion of a student, the Superintendent/Principal, or
designee shall act as quickly as possible to ensure that the student does not lose instructional time.

(Education Code 48915)

Student's Right to Expulsion Hearing

Any student recommended for expulsion shall be entitled to a hearing to determine whether the student
should be expelled. The hearing shall be held within 30 school days after the Superintendent/Principal, or
designee determines that the student has committed the act(s) that form the basis for the expulsion
recommendation. (Education Code 48918(a))

The student is entitled to at least one postponement of an expulsion hearing for a period of not more than
30 calendar days. The request for postponement shall be in writing. Any subsequent postponement may be
granted at the Board's discretion. (Education Code 48918(a))

If the Board finds it impractical during the regular school year to comply with these time requirements for
conducting an expulsion hearing, the Superintendent/Principal or designee may, for good cause, extend the



time period by an additional five school days. Reasons for the extension shall be included as a part of the
record when the expulsion hearing is held. (Education Code 48918(a))

If the Board finds it impractical to comply with the time requirements of the expulsion hearing duetoa
summer recess of Board meetings of more than two weeks, the days during the recess shall not be counted
as school days. The days not counted during the recéss may not exceed 20 school days, as defined in
Education Code 48925. Unless the student requests in writing that the expulsion hearing be postponed, the
hearing shall be held not later than 20 calendar days prior to the first day of the next school year.
(Education Code 48918(a))

Once the hearing starts, all matters shall be pursued with reasonable diligence and concluded without
unnecessary delay. (Education Code 48918(a))

Rights of Complaining Witness

An expulsion hearing involving allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery may be postponed for one
school day in order to accommodate the special physical, mental, or emotional needs of a student who is
the complaining witness. (Education Code 48918.5)

Whenever the Superintendent/Principal or designee recommends an expulsion hearing that addresses
allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall give the
complaining witness a copy of the district's suspension and expulsion policy and regulation and shall advise
the witness of the right to: (Education Code 48918.5)

1. Receive five days' notice of the scheduled testimony at the hearing
2. Have up to two adult support persons present at the hearing at the time the witness testifies
3. Have a closed hearing during the time the witness testifies

Whenever any allegation of sexual assault or sexual battery is made, the Superintendent/Principal or
designee shall immediately advise complaining witnesses and accused students to refrain from personal or
telephone contact with each other during the time when an expulsion process is pending. (Education Code
48918.5)

Written Notice of the Expulsion Hearing

Written notice of the expulsion hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's
parent/guardian at least 10 calendar days before the date of the hearing. The notice shall include:
(Education Code 48900.8, 48918(b))

1. The date and place of the hearing

2. A statement of the specific facts, charges, and offense upon which the proposed expulsion is
based

3. A copy of district disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation



4, Notification of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation, pursuant to Education Code
48915.1, to provide information about the student's status in the district to any other district in
which the student seeks enroliment

This obligation applies when a student is expelled for acts other than those described in Education Code
48915(a) or (c).

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

5. The opportunity for the student or the student's parent/guardian to appear in person or be
represented by legal counsel or by a nonattorney adviser

Legal counsel means an attorney or lawyer who is admitted to the practice of law in California and is an
active member of the State Bar of California.

Nonattorney adviser means an individual who is not an attorney or lawyer, but who is familiar with the
facts of the case and has been selected by the student or student's parent/guardian to provide assistance at
the hearing.

6. The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing
7. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing
8.~ The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary

evidence on the student's behalf, including witnesses

Additional Notice of Expulsion Hearing for Foster Youth and Homeless Students

If the student facing expulsion is a foster student, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall also send
notice of the hearing to the student's attorney and a representative of an appropriate child welfare agency
at least 10 days prior to the hearing. (Education Code 48918.1)

If the student facing expulsion is a homeless student, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall also
send notice of the hearing to the district liaison for homeless students at least 10 days prior to the hearing.
(Education Code 48918.1)

Any notice for these purposes may be provided by the most cost-effective method possible, including by
email or a telephone call. (Education Code 48918.1)

Conduct of Expulsion Hearing

1. Closed Session: Notwithstanding Education Code 35145, the Board shall conduct a hearing to
consider the expulsion of the student in a session closed to the public unless the student requests in
writing at least five days prior to the hearing that the hearing be a public meeting. If such a request is
made, the meeting shall be public to the extent that privacy rights of other students are not violated.
(Education Code 48918)



Whether the expulsion hearing is held in closed or public session, the Board may meet in closed session to
deliberate and determine whether or not the student should be expelled. If the Board admits any other
person to this closed session, the parent/guardian, the student, and the counsel of the student also shall be
allowed to attend the closed session. (Education Code 48918(c))

If a hearing that involves a charge of sexual assault or sexual battery is to be conducted in public, a
complaining witness shall have the right to testify in closed session when testifying in public would threaten
serious psychological harm to the witness and when there are no alternative procedures to avoid the
threatened harm, including, but not limited to, a videotaped deposition or contemporaneous examination
in another place communicated to the hearing room by closed-circuit television. (Education Code 48918(c))

2. Record of Hearing: A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any
means, including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written
transcription of the proceedings can be made. (Education Code 48918(g))

3. Subpoenas: Before commencing a student expulsion hearing, the Board may issue subpoenas,
at the request of either the student or the Superintendent/Principal or designee, for the personal
appearance at the hearing of any person who actually witnessed the action that gave rise to the
recommendation for expulsion. After the hearing has commenced, the Board may issue such
subpoenas at the request of the student or the County Superintendent of Schools or designee. All
subpoenas shall be issued in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1985.2 and enforced in
accordance with Government Code 11455.20. (Education Code 48918(i))

Any objection raised by the student or the Superintendent/Principal or designee to the issuance of
subpoenas may be considered by the Board in closed session, or in open session if so requested by the
student, before the meeting. The Board's decision in response to such an objection shall be final and
binding. (Education Code 48918(i))

If the Board determines that a witness would be subject to unreasonable risk of harm by testifying at the
hearing, a subpoena shall not be issued to compel the personal attendance of that witness at the hearing.
However, that witness may be compelled to testify by means of a sworn declaration as described in item #4
below. (Education Code 48918(i))

4, Presentation of Evidence: Technical rules of evidence shall not apply to the expulsion hearing,
but relevant evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which
reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs. The decision of the Board to expel shall
be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed any of the acts pursuant to
Education Code 48900 and listed in "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-8," and
"Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-8," above. (Education Code 48918(h))

Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. Although no finding shall be based
solely on hearsay, sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses whose disclosure of
their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or
psychological harm. (Education Code 48918(f))

In cases where a search of a student's person or property has occurred, evidence describing the
reasonableness of the search shall be included in the hearing record.



5. Testimony by Complaining Witnesses: The following procedures shall be observed when a
hearing involves allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery by a student: (Education Code
48918, 48918.5)

a. Any complaining witness shall be given five days' notice before being called to testify.

b. Any complaining witness shall be entitled to have up to two adult support persons,
including, but not limited to, a parent/guardian or legal counsel, present during the testimony.

C. Before a complaining witness testifies, support persons shall be admonished that the
hearing is confidential.

d. The person presiding over the hearing may remove a support person who is disrupting
the hearing.
e. If one or both support persons are also witnesses, the hearing shall be conducted in

accordance with Penal Code 868.5.

f. Evidence of specific instances of prior sexual conduct of a complaining witness shall be
presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard unless the person conducting the hearing
determines that extraordinary circumstances require the evidence to be heard. Before such a
determination is made, the complaining witness shall be given notice and an opportunity to
oppose the introduction of this evidence. In the hearing on the admissibility of this evidence,
the complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by a parent/guardian, legal
counsel, or other support person. Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual
behavior of a complaining witness shall not be admissible for any purpose.

g. In order to facilitate a free and accurate statement of the experiences of the complaining
witness and to prevent discouragement of complaints, the district shall provide a
nonthreatening environment.

(1) The district shall provide a room separate from the hearing room for the use of the
complaining witness before and during breaks in testimony.

(2) At the discretion of the person conducting the hearing, the complaining witness
shall be allowed reasonable periods of relief from examination and cross-examination
during which the complaining witness may leave the hearing room.

(3) The person conducting the hearing may:

(a) Arrange the seating within the hearing room so as to facilitate a less
intimidating environment for the complaining witness

(b) Limit the time for taking the testimony of a complaining witness to normal
school hours, if there is no good cause to take the testimony during other hours

(c) Permit one of the support persons to accompany the complaining witness to
the witness stand



6. Decision: The Board's decision as to whether to expel a student shall be made within 40 school
days after the student is removed from school, unless the student requests in writing that the
decision be postponed. (Education Code 48918(a))

Final Action by the Board

Whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in closed or open session by the Board or is waived through
the signing of a stipulated expulsion agreement, the final action to expel shall be taken by the Board in
public. (Education Code 48918(j))

The Board's decision is final. If the decision is to not expel, the student shall be reinstated immediately. If
the decision is to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion, the student shall be reinstated under the
conditions of the suspended expulsion.

Upon ordering an expulsion, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be reviewed for readmission.
For a student expelled for any "mandatory recommendation and mandatory expulsion" act listed in the
section "Authority to Expel" in the accompanying Board policy, this date shall be one year from the date the
expulsion occurred, except that the Board may set an earlier date on a case-by-case basis. For a student
expelled for other acts, this date shall be no later than the last day of the semester following the semester
in which the expulsion occurred. If an expulsion is ordered during summer session or the intersession
period of a year-round program, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be reviewed for
readmission not later than the last day of the semester following the summer session or intersession period
in which the expulsion occurred. (Education Code 48916)

At the time of the expulsion order, the Board shall recommend a plan for the student's rehabilitation, which
may include: (Education Code 48916)

1. Periodic review, as well as assessment at the time of review, for readmission
2. Recommendations for improved academic performance, tutoring, special education
assessments, job training, counseling, employment, community service, or other rehabilitative

programs

Written Notice to Expel

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the student
or parent/guardian. This notice shall include the following:

1. The specific offense committed by the student for any of the causes for suspension or
expulsion listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-8," or "Additional

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-8" (Education Code 48900.8)

2. The fact that a description of readmission procedures will be made available to the student and
parent/guardian (Education Code 48916)

3. Notice of the right to appeal the expulsion to the County Board (Education Code 48918)

4. Notice of the alternative educational placement to be provided to the student during the time
of expulsion (Education Code 48918)



5. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in which the
student seeks to enroll of the student's status with the expelling district, pursuant to Education Code
48915.1 (Education Code 48918)

S

Decision to Suspend Expulsion Order

In accordance with Board policy, when deciding whether to suspend the enforcement of an expulsion
order, the Board shall take into account the following criteria:

1. The student's pattern of behavior

2. The seriousness of the misconduct
3. The student's attitude toward the misconduct and willingness to follow a rehabilitation
program

The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion shall be governed by the following:

1. The Board may, as a condition of the suspension of enforcement, assign the studentto a
school, class, or program appropriate for the student's rehabilitation. This rehabilitation program
may provide for the involvement of the student's parent/guardian in the student's education.
However, a parent/guardian's refusal to participate in the rehabilitation program shall not be
considered in the Board's determination as to whether the student has satisfactorily completed the
rehabilitation program. (Education Code 48917)

2. During the period when enforcement of the expulsion order is suspended, the student shall be
on probationary status. (Education Code 48917)

3. The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order may be revoked by the Board if the
student commits any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-8," or
"Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-8," above or violates any of the district's
rules and regulations governing student conduct. (Education Code 48917)

4, When the suspension of enforcement of an expulsion order is revoked, a student may be
expelled under the terms of the original expulsion order. (Education Code 48917)

5. Upon satisfactory completion of the rehabilitation assignment, the Board shall reinstate the
student in the district. Upon reinstatement, the Board may order the expunging of any or all records
of the expulsion proceedings. (Education Code 48917)

6. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall send written notice of any decision to suspend
the enforcement of an expulsion order during a period of probation to the student or
parent/guardian. The notice shall inform the parent/guardian of the right to appeal the expulsion to
the County Board, the alternative educational placement to be provided to the student during the
period of expulsion, and the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in
which the student seeks to enroll of the student's status with the expelling district, pursuant to
Education Code 48915.1(b). (Education Code 48918(j))



7. Suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order shall not affect the time period and
requirements for the filing of an appeal of the expulsion order with the County Board. (Education
Code 48917)

Appeal

The student or parent/guardian is entitled to file an appeal of the Board's decision with the County Board.
The appeal must be filed within 30 days of the Board's decision to expel, even if the expulsion order is
suspended and the student is placed on probation. (Education Code 48919)

If the student submits a written request for a copy of the written transcripts and supporting documents
from the district simultaneously with the filing of the notice of appeal with the County Board, the district
shall provide the student with these documents within 10 school days following the student's written
request. (Education Code 48919)

Notification to Law Enforcement Authorities

Prior to the suspension or expulsion of any student, the Superintendent/Principal or designeé shall notify
appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities of any student acts of assault which may have
violated Penal Code 245. (Education Code 48902)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall notify appropriate city or county law enforcement
authorities of any student acts which may involve the possession or sale of narcotics or of a controlled
substance, or of any student acts involving the possession, sale, or furnishing of firearms, explosives, or
other dangerous weapons in violation of Education Code 48915(c)(1) or (5) or Penal Code 626.9 and 626.10.
(Education Code 48902)

Within one school day after a student's suspension or expulsion, the Superintendent/Principal or designee
shall notify appropriate county or district law enforcement authorities, by telephone or other appropriate
means, of any student acts which may violate Education Code 48900(c) or (d), relating to the possession,

use, offering, or sale of controlled substances, alcohol, or intoxicants of any kind. (Education Code 48902)

Placement During Expulsion

The Board shall refer expelled students to a program of study that is: (Education Code 48915, 48915.01)
1. Appropriately prepared to accommodate students who exhibit discipline problems

2. Not provided at a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at any elementary
school, unless the program is offered at a community day school established at any of these

3. Not housed at the school site attended by the student at the time of suspension

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

When the placement described above is not available and when the County Superintendent so certifies,
students expelled for only acts described in items #6-12 under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion:
Grades K-8" and items #1-3 under "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-8" above



may be referred to a program of study that is provided at another elementary school. (Education Code
48915)

The program for a student expelled from any of grades K-6 shall not be combined or merged with programs
offered to students in any of grades 7-8. (Education Code 48916.1) '

Readmission After Expulsion

Prior to the date set by the Board for the student's readmission:

1. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall hold a conference with the parent/guardian
and the student. At the conference, the student's rehabilitation plan shall be reviewed and the
Superintendent/Principal or designee shall verify that the provisions of this plan have been met.
School regulations shall be reviewed and the student and parent/guardian shall be asked to indicate
in writing their willingness to comply with these regulations.

2. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall transmit to the Board a recommendation
regarding readmission. The Board shall consider this recommendation in closed session. If a written
request for open session is received from the parent/guardian or adult student, it shall be honored to
the extent that privacy rights of other students are not violated.

3. If the readmission is granted, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall notify the student
and parent/guardian, by registered mail, of the Board's decision regarding readmission.

4. The Board may deny readmission only if it finds that the student has not satisfied the
conditions of the rehabilitation plan or that the student continues to pose a danger to campus safety
or to other district students or employees. (Education Code 48916)

5. If the Board denies the readmission of a student, the Board shall determine either to continue
the student's placement in the alternative educational program initially selected or to place the
student in another program that serves expelled students, including placement in a county
community school.

6. The Board shall provide written notice to the expelled student and parent/guardian describing
the reasons for denying readmittance into the regular program. This notice shall indicate the Board's
determination of the educational program which the Board has chosen. The student shall enroll in
that program unless the parent/guardian chooses to enroll the student in another school district.
(Education Code 48916)

No student shall be denied readmission into the district based solely on the student's arrest, adjudication
by a juvenile court, formal or informal supervision by a probation officer, detention in a juvenile facility,
enrollment in a juvenile court school, or other such contact with the juvenile justice system. (Education
Code 48645.5)

Maintenance of Records

The district shall maintain a record of each suspension and expulsion, including its specific cause(s).
(Education Code 48900.8)



Expulsion records of any student shall be maintained in the student's mandatory interim record and sent to
any school in which the student subsequently enrolls upon written request by that school. (Education Code
48918(k))

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall, within five working days, honor any other district's request
for information about an expulsion from this district. (Education Code 48915.1)

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

(12/17 10/18) 3/20
Policy Adopted: 4/8/97

Policy Amended: 2/1/23



Manchester Union Elementary School District

19550 South Highway 1 Manchester, CA 95459 = (707) 882-2374 = www.mcoe.us

SARC

2@21*22

Schoo Accountczb Mg-
| Repcr’t*CGfd :
_Publi shed in.

Manchester Elementary School

Grades K-8
CDS Code 23-65573-6025134

Kristin Larson Balliet, Superintendent/Principal
mansupt@muesd.us

19550 South Highway 1
Manchester, CA 95459
(707) 882-2374

www.mcoe.us



Manchester Elementary Schod!

Principal’s Message

Manchester Union Elementary School District (MUESD) has the unique distinction of being a small, one-
school district serving the rural community of Manchester, which spans 65 square miles in Northern Califor-
nia. Located on the Mendocino Coast, with close proximity to the Pacific Ocean, our school is approximately
a three-and-a-half hour drive north of San Francisco, and two-and-a-half hours northwest of Santa Rosa.

With an enrollment of under 40 students and boasting three multi-grade classrooms (TK-2, 3-5, and 6-8),
we are a small school. Our classrooms are staffed by exceptional teachers whose instruction is supported
by part-time classroom aides. This multi-grade classroom structure allows for an excellent student-to-adult
ratio to support academic success. Another benefit is the opportunity for cross-grade level interaction, peer
mentoring and the building of positive relationships.

Our school has a family feel. Parent participation is an integral part of the school program from participating
in engaged partners meetings to providing a book fair to supporting and running fundraisers to driving and/
or chaperoning field trips.

Our community loves our school too! The people in our small, rural community represent a wide range of
social, economic and educational backgrounds. Most work in agriculture, the timber industry, or in service-
oriented jobs, while others work remotely from home or are enjoying retirement on the coast. Manchester
Elementary School nurtures and accommodates our students' diverse experiences and perspectives, and
benefits from a tradition of community involvement and volunteerism at our school. Volunteers assist in the

classrooms and some even conduct fundraisers to support field trips and other educational enrichment for

the students.

Academic learning at Manchester Elementary is based on the 4 C's of the Common Core: Communication,
Collaboration, Critical Thinking and Creativity, and we have added a fifth C of our own: Caring. We teach read-
ing and mathematics in grade-level groupings, and provide intervention to students who require additional
assistance. The school works with the Lions Club on the Spectrum of Reading program, and our local Poet
Laureate to further enrich our students’ learning experience.

Manchester Elementary students matriculate to Point Arena High School, and we receive consistent feed-
back from the staff that our students stand out due to their kindness, integrity and academic preparedness.
Because of Manchester's excellent reputation, approximately 30% of our students are attending the school
on interdistrict transfers.

Our student population is diverse. To honor and celebrate this diversity, we enjoy Culture Days where stu-
dents learn about world cultures, encouraging and developing acceptance and appreciation for all people.
Additionally, students enjoy School Activity days, in which we learn about and celebrate art, music, poetry
and agriculture.

Beyond academics, we focus on caring and kindness for all, self-esteem building and conflict resolution
throughout the school year. Students participate in daily chores at the school, such as putting up the flags,
picking up playground equipment, and recycling and composting for the garden. Students make cards for
each holiday for our local Senior Center Meals on Wheels Program. Although the district is small and remote,
the school provides a place of learning, a place to gain culture and a place to have fun with others. Manches-
ter Elementary School is a great place to be!

Parental Involvement

Parent participation is always welcomed and encouraged. Parents volunteer in the classrooms, chaperone
field trips, and serve on the Site Council, which serves as an umbrella organization for all our engaged part-
ners groups. We hold regular engaged partners meetings to provide a forum for parent comments on the
Local Control and Accountability Plan.

For more information on how to become involved at the school, please contact Superintendent/Principal
Kristin Larson Balliet at kballiet@muesd.us.

School Safety

The school safety plan was last reviewed, updated and discussed with the school faculty and Site Council in

September 2022. The board of trustees will review the update in February 2023. Key elements of the plan
include monthly safety drills, crisis intervention, a disaster plan and emergency procedures. Due to the pan-
demic, a section titled COVID-19 Health and Safety Procedures and Protocols has been added to the plan.

é l “Manchester Elementary School is a great place to be!”

School Accountability
Report Card

In accordance with state and federal
requirements, the School Accountability
Report Card (SARC) is put forth annually
by all public schools as a tool for parents
and interested parties to stay informed of
the school's progress, test scores

and achievements.

School Mission Statement

We strive to create a safe and unique
learning environment where all learn-

ers are challenged to reach their highest
potential; the most up-to-date materials
and technology are used; each person’s
learning modality is taken into consider-
ation; students are given the tools to meet
the challenges of any future opportunity
that presents itself to them; a love for
lifelong learning is cultivated; and respect,
responsibility, tolerance, diversity and high
standards are valued.

School Vision Statement

The school will provide inspired and
enhanced learning in a safe, aesthetic and
nurturing environment for all members of
the Manchester Community.

Governing Board
Frances Robbings, President
Erin Piper, Clerk

Diana Weston-Williams, Member




' Mantheéter Elementary School

Enrollment by Student Group - Enrollment by Student

The total enrollment at the school was 30 students for the 2021-22 school year. The pie chart displays the GrOUp
percentage of students enrolled in each group.

Demographics

Demographics

 2021-22 Schaol Year

Two or More ! o
Races i Female 46.70%
' 33% S— _— , ;
gh;j Male | 5330% |
. (] i i
A\ ' Non-Binary 0.00%

; English learners - 33.30%
Foster youth 0.00%
63.3% . Homeless . 0.00%
Migrant 0.00%
Socioeconomically
| Disadvantaged | S0 i

Class Size Distribution

The bar graph displays the three-year data for average class size, and the table displays the three-year data
for the number of classrooms by size. The number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each
size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is
reported by subject area rather than grade level.

 Students with Disabilities = 20.00%

Enrollment by Grade

, The bar graph displays the total number
- of students enrolled in each grade for the
®19-20 ©920-21 m21-22 2020-21 school year.

2021-22 Enrollment by Grade

Average Class Size

Number of Classrooms by Size
- ' : éaié’;z‘ai' - 20001 amis




Suspensions and Expulsions

This table shows the school, district, and state suspension and expulsion rates collected between July through
June, each full school year respectively.

Suspenssons and Expuissons

Manchester ES  ManchesterUESD california

00%

5 Suspension rates v
00% | 00% 00% | 00% | 01%

Note Data collected dunng the 2020—21 school year may not pe'réb’lekto earlier yeé}é of this collection due to |
] | differences in learning mode instruction in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. !

Expulsmn rates

This table shows the school, district, and state suspension and expulsion rates collected between July through
February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Suspensrons and Expulsnons

Manchester ES 7 ‘Manchester UESD € iifomiai '

Suspension rates O O% ' 0.0% 2. 5%

| 0.0% 0 1%
NoteThe2019—20 suysrprenéion's and expuiéions rate data are notcomparableto other kyearb data because the 2019-20 l
- school year is a partial school year due to the COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons |
_in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-20 school year compared to other school years.

~ Expulsion rates f 0. O%

Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
Suspensnons aﬂd Expuls:ons by Student Group

. Suspensmn ;Rate "

Al Students » V 0.0% N 0.0%

,’ Fema';ﬁ R SO ,,,OO% N N— Wo 0%,»
gMak__\ . Ll o i ,OO% . i
ENon B";ary, R — e OVO%, S 0% S
:’Amerlcan Indlan or Alaska Native . R O O% | ) | ’O 0%
’,,Aﬂan SR RS 00% S — WOO% .
Black or Afrlcan Amerlcan . R O% - 0.0% |
{Fmpmmov, S I 00% S SR WOO% S
Hlspamc,6;,La,.,t,l;‘oww,. il e e el e OO% i i ,oo% .
Natwe Hawauan o;' Pac:flc Islanderw e 00% o o “0 0%

Two or More Races I 0.0% “ - 0.0% .
‘.Whne : TN S 00% : S 00% S
Engllsh Learners : N o OO% 00%

:,F;;ter Youth, I SR S 00% — 0% .
Homeless | 7 - 0. 0% 0.0%

| seeloeconom|cally Dlsadvantaged S OO% o 00%

: Students Recelvmg Mlgrant Education Serwces Bl 0.0% 0.0%

Students wnth Disabilities 0.0% ! 0.0%

Professional Development Days

_ Number of school days
dedicated to staff development
and continuous improvement

1 2020-21 i 4
2021-22 5
zozz 23 3

“Academic learning at Manchester
Elementary is based on the 4 C's of
the Common Core: Communication,
Collaboration, Critical Thinking and
Creativity, and we have added a fifth C of
our own: Caring.”




California Physical Fitness Test

Each spring, all students in grades 5, 7 and 9 are required to participate in the California Physical Fitness Test
(PFT). The Fitnessgram is the designated PFT for students in California public schools put forth by the State
Board of Education. Due to changes to the 2021-22 PFT administration, only participation results are required
for the five fitness areas.

Encouraging and assisting students in establishing lifelong habits of regular physical activity is the primary
goal of the Fitnessgram. The table shows the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness
components for the most recent testing period. For more detailed information on the California PFT, please
visit www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/pf.

California Physical Fitness Test

Percentage of Students Participating In Each Of The Five Fitness Components

5 % 100% | 100% 100% 100% 100%
7 | 100% % 100% 100% 100% 100%

Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

‘St'u'den’t quilp: -

Manchester Elementary School

 California School
Dashboard
The California School Dashboard (Dash-

_ board) https’//www.ceschooldashboard. |
_ org/ reflects Califomia’s new accountabil-

. Enroliment  Count  Rate
II Students - o | 3 ' 34 B 6 17.6%
e | T
o o e T R e
| Aberivan bidn or AlskaNative. L. 0 | 0 T 00% |
o e S e B
Blackor African American 0 - - 1 1 ” 1 - 1000% ‘ ]
o : - - S
Hlspamcor SRR o R S s S
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander | 0 0 S Coo%
TwoorMore e e o e
EnghshLeamers R T T e
L S N AP vt
Home'ess TR T TR
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged | 23 2 6 | oa73%
geﬁsﬁ;t:hcewmgMlgramEdu,cgmnm - ——E T
Students with Disabilities 7 7 1 14.3%

ity and contintious improvement system
and provides information about how

LEAs and schools are mesting the needs
of California’s diverse student popula-

tion. The Dashboard contains reparts that
display the performance of LEAs, schools,

_and student groups on a set of state and

local measures to assist in identifying

_ strengths, challenges, and areas in need of
improvement. .




Ma'nchester Elementary School

SARC Reporting in the 2020-21 School Year Only

Where the most viable option, LEAs were required to administer the statewide summative assessment in ELA
and mathematics. Where a statewide summative assessment was not the most viable option for the LEA (or

for one or more grade-level[s] within the LEA) due to the pandemic, LEAs were allowed to report results from

a different assessment that met the criteria established by the State Board of Education (SBE) on March 16,
2021. The assessments were required to be:

+ Aligned with CA CCSS for ELA and mathematics;
+ Available to students in grades 3 through 8, and grade 11; and
*  Uniformly administered across a grade, grade span, school, or district to all eligible students.

Options

The CAAs could only be administered in-person following health and safety requirements. If it was not viable
for the LEA to administer the CAAs in person with health and safety guidelines in place, the LEA was directed
to not administer the tests. There were no other assessment options available for the CAAs. Schools adminis-
tered the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics, other assessments that meet
the SBE criteria, or a combination of both, and they could only choose one of the following:

«  Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments;
+  Other assessments meeting the SBE criteria; or

+  Combination of Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments and other assess-
ments.

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
(grades 5, 8 and high school)

The table below shows the percent of students meeting or exceeding the State standard on the CAASPP
- California Science Test (CAST) and the California Alternate Assessment for Science (CAA for Science) for
grades 5, 8, and once in high school (i.e, grade 10, 11 or 12).

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding State Standard

28.50%

Science i 29.47%

CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students
taking and completing a state-administered assessment

The table below shows the percent of students meeting or exceeding the State standards on the California
Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and

California Alternate Assessments (CAAs) for English language arts/literacy (ELA) and mathematics for grades

3-8 and 11.

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding State Standard

Mahéhesterr!is . Manchester UESD Califéfmg’

- English language arts/literacy 27% | % L 4T%

Mathematics | * - 25% * 33%

** Scores are not shown when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

* Data for 2020-21 are not comparable to other year data due to the COVID-19 pandemic during the 2020-21 school
year. Where the CAASPP assessments in ELA and/or mathematics is not the most viable option, the LEAs were allowed
to administer local assessments. Therefore, the 2020-21 data between school years for the school, district, state are not
an accurate comparison. As such, it is inappropriate to compare results of the 2020-21 school year to other school years.

Statewide Assessments

Statewide assessments (i.e, California
Assessment of Student Performance and
Progress [CAASPP] System includes the
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments
for students in the general education
population and the California Alternate
Assessments [CAAs] for English language
arts/literacy [ELA} and mathematics
given in grades three through eight and
grade eleven. Only eligible students

may participate in the administration of
the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with
alternate achievement standards, which
are linked with the Common Core State
Standards [CCSS] for students with the
most significant cognitive disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the
following assessments and student
participation requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessments and CAAs for ELA
in grades three through eight and
grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative As-
sessments and CAAs for mathe-
matics in grades three through eight
and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and
CAAs for Science in grades five,
eight, and once in high school (i.e,,
grade ten, eleven, or twelve).

CAASPP by Student Group:
Science, English Language
Arts and Mathematics

The tables on the following pages display
the percentage of students that met or ex-
ceeded state standards in science, English
language arts/literacy and mathematics
for the school by student groups.

The “percentage met or exceeded” is
calculated by taking the total number of
students who met or exceeded the stan-
dard on the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment plus the total number of stu-
dents who met the standard on the CAA
divided by the total number of students
who participated in both assessments.

Note: The number of students tested
includes all students who participated in
the test whether they received a score

or not. However, the number of students
tested is not the number that was used to
calculate the achievement level percent-
ages. The achievement level percentages
are calculated using only students who
received scores.



CAASPP Test Results by Student Group: Science (grades 5 and 8)
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding State Standards

Science

s
All students B3 - o K K%

Female * * ; = 2 o
e - ; .

;kAmerican Indian or Alaska Native 2 < 2 e .
Asian B3 P | ' o - - k

! Black‘ or African American = o * ‘ & <
Filipino B < F B A B3

:Hi;panié or Latino V T - % - ' ’ . | .
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander - o - - ] B 7 ES

' Two or more races v 2 > % y o o
White B3 B3 B3 B3 -

i Englisﬁ Learners k B 2 - ":‘ - | k & 0 ’ ~:;
Foster Youth B o B3 2 -
Homeiess . o & ! - | - . = .:.’
Military % < < %
Socioeconomically disadvantaged o B o | » |
Students receiving Migrant Education services o B3 < < B

Students with Disabilities B3 B3 | B ’ B 4 -

* Scores are not shown when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect
student privacy.




Manchester Elementary School

CAASPP Test Results by Student Group: English Language Arts (grades 3-8)
For students taking and completing a state-administered assessment.

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding State Standards

English Language Arts
All students 16 15 93.75% 6.25% 26.67%
. Female - & - - £
Male 12 11 91.67% 8.33% 18.18%7 o
t Americaﬁ Indian or Alaska Nativé - B - : 7 KX 4
Asian - g ES o - ,
' Black or African American B - 9 KX o
Filipino B3 B3 kS ES -
,'4 Hispanic or Latino o o Y - - -
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 23 < B 2 B
| Two or more races < % - 2 B
White B3 - ES & ES
; ﬁnglish Learners B - - RN &
Foster Youth ES KX - ES o
| Homeless V ES KX KX - o
Military X - - R X
Soéioéconorﬁically disédvantaged 2 - < * B
Students receiving Migrant Education services < o < B B2 .
. Students with Disabilities o o B < B

++ Scores are not shown when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in

student privacy.

this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect




Manchester Elementary School

CAASPP Test Results by Student Group: Mathematics (grades 3-8)

For students taking and completing a state-administered assessment.

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding State Standards

Mathematics

i

All students 16 16 100.00% 0.00% 25.00%
Female - & o - -
Male 12 12 100.00% 0.00% 25.00%
- American Indian or Alaska Native o > < % B3
Asian RS B3 ES K -
k Black or African American 3 o B B RS
Filipino < < KX - K
~ Hispanic or Latino < < % - <+
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander o o B3 B3 B3
Two or more races > - ’ - & >
White < < 2 B3 B2
English Learners - S - - K3
Foster Youth B3 B3 23 B3 K
' Homeless & - £ - EX
Military < 23 & 2 %
Socioeconbmically disadvantaged & < & & o
Students receiving Migrant Education services < < - < <
| Students with Disabilities 2 e B 3 < |

* Scores are not shown when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect

student privacy.




Textbooks and Instructional Materials

All students have access to sufficient textbooks and instructional materials in the core academic subject ar-
eas. Textbooks are from the most recent local governing board-approved list.

MUESD completed a new adoption for TK-2 in history/social science in October 2022 and will consider
extending this adoption to 3-5 in the coming year. MUESD also completed a new adoption for 6-8 math in
September 2022.

Additionally, we are in the process of a new adoption for English language arts, to be completed in 2023 and
will also be considering new science and history/social science adoptions by 2024.

Textbooks are selected by staff after a thorough review of current, state-adopted materials, and then the
board and public are notified of the opportunity to review the materials and provide input. The board adopts
a textbook series based on staff recommendation.

Supplemental instructional materials that support the Common Core State Standards are also purchased to
compliment these textbooks. Several online programs/applications are also being utilized to support supple-
mental student instruction.

The most recent public hearing to adopt a resolution on the sufficiency of instructional materials was during
the board meeting on September 13, 2022.

Textbooks and instructaonal Matenals List

ZSub;ect » . Textbook 7

English language arts Language Arts, Houghton Mifflin (K 5) 2003

i Enghsh le‘ng‘ua“o_’:;e ar’ts‘ ‘ Language Arts, McDougal Littell (6-8) ééOZ
Mathematics - manin foss 5 2013
’Mkat’hel’rylatie; B!g Ideas Math (6- 8) 2022
Scienee Supplementegi\r/ft?mutr:za(cKhz)r use of NGSS ; 20077 o
i : e SU,PP'ement}:?ilﬁ*‘wegaﬁrsise of NGSS A
History/social science California Studies Weekly, Inc. (K-2) 2022

| I-Iylksto‘rky/’s’oelel’ scvenmt’:e Houghton Mifflin (3 5) - ‘ "2007
Ai;';ory/soeial sc‘iencve | Holt (6-8) | 2006

Manchester Elementary School

Quality of Textbooks

The following table outlines the criteria required for choosing textbooks and instructional materials.

Quality of Textbooks

' Crltena ' Yés}Ne

Yes

Are the textbooks adopted from the most recent state- approved or local v

| governing-board-approved list?

Public Internet Access

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly accessible (e.g., the Califor- -

nia State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and public locations is generally provided on a first-come,
first-served basis. Other use restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a work-
station may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available on a workstation,
and the ability to print documents.

Availability of Textbooks
and Instructional Materials

The following lists the percentage of
pupils who lack their own assigned text-
books and instructional materials.

Percentage of Students
Lacking Materials by Subject

2022-23 School Year
Reading/language arts 0%
| Mathomets. | o |
?S-cience’ - | 0%
| History/social sience | 0%
Vlsual ana perfermi’n’g arts O%
ot | o
g Health 0%

Currency of Textbooks

This table displays the date when the
most recent hearing was held to adopt a
resolution on the sufficiency of instruc-
tional materials.

Currency of Textbooks

2022»23 Schao! Year

- Data collection date

9/13/2022




Manchester Elementary School

School Facility Good Repair Status

The table shows the results of the school's most recent inspection using the Facility Inspection Tool (FIT) or
equivalent school form. This inspection determines the school facility's good repair status using ratings of
good condition, fair condition or poor condition. The overall summary of facility conditions uses ratings of
exemplary, good, fair or poor. !

School Facility Good Repair Status

 ltemsinspected = ' : . . Repair Status |

Systems: Gas leaks, sewer, mechanical systems (heating, ventilation and HVAC) Good
Interior: Interior surfaces (floors, ceilings, walls and window casings) Good
| Cleanliness: Pest/vermin control, overall cleanliness Good
Electrical: Electrical systems Good
Restrooms/fountains: Restrooms, sinks and drinking fountains A Good
- Safety: Fire safety, emergency systems, hazardous materials Good .
Structural: Structural condition, roofs Good The following is a list of federal- and
| S— . . - S — e - S . - ‘ State“funded programs that are provided
| External: Windows/doors/gates/fences, playgrounds/school grounds g Good to students:
' + Titlel

Exemplary + Title Il (Teacher and Principal Training

. Date of the most recent school site inspection | 10/11/2022 . Title iV

+ Special Education

» Rural Education Achievement Pro-
gram (REAP)

» Elementary and Secondary School
Emergency Relief (ESSER) II

» ESSERIN

+ Expanded Learning Opportunities
Grant (ELO-G)

+ lottery
+ Transportation

School Facilities

Built in 1976, Manchester Elementary School has a playground with basketball and volleyball courts, as well
as a large playing field.

We keep the school buildings and grounds regularly maintained. The custodian cleans daily, facility mainte-
nance does minor repairs weekly and a groundskeeper maintains the grounds. Maintenance and the admin-
istration conduct monthly inspections as part of compliance with insurance policies.

Our school staff and yard supervisors monitor students and keep them safe on grounds before, duringand =~
after the school day.

The school has three regular classrooms, a resource classroom, a computer lab and a library.

Through funds received from Proposition 39, the school has recently had all electrical lighting retrofitted with
LED inside and outside. The office heater and air-conditioning unit were replaced in the spring of 2018. Also,
during the summer of 2018, trees to the south of the school were removed and a new fence installed along
the south boundary of the playground. In the spring of 2019, a new roof was installed along with a 36-panel
solar system.

“To honor and celebrate this diversity, we enjoy Culture Days where students learn about
world cultures, encouraging and developing acceptance and appreciation for all peaple.”




Teacher Preparation and Placement

The teacher data displayed in this SARC is from the 2020-21 and the 2021-22 school years. This table displays the number and percent of teacher authoriza-
tion/assignment as well as the total number and percent of teaching positions at the school, district, and state levels. For questions concerning the assignment
of teachers outside their subject area of competence or the credential status of teachers, visit the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing website at

https://www.ctc.ca.gov/.

Authortzat on/A srgnment

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentlaled for

School
_Number _

School
_ Percent

District
_Number

Percent

State
Percent

Total Teaching Positions

Teacher Preparanon and P!acement

Authcrxzatmn/As gnment

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed for
Subject and Student Placement (properly assigned)

| Intern Credential Holders Properly Assngned

( lneffectwe" under ESSA)

Credentlaled Teachers Ass;gned Out-of-Fleld
. (“out-of-field” under ESSA)

Unknown

Teachers Wlthout Credentlals and Mlsa55|gnments

36

100.0%

100.0%

Subject and Student Placement (properly assngned) 36 100.0% 3.6 100.0% 228,366.1 83.1%
Intern Credentlal Holders Properly Asmgned 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% [ 42059 | 1.5%
Teachers Wlthout Credentlals and Mlsa55|gnments
( lnef‘fectlve" under ESSA) 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 11,216.7 4.1%

f Credentlaled Teachers Assigned Out-of—Fleld .

' (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% 12,1158 4.4%
Unknown 0.0 0. 0% 0.0 0.0% 18,854.3 6.9%

36 | 2747591  100.0%

State

Percent |

i Total Teachmg Positions

# Data not avallable from the state at thls tlme

Note: The data in these tables is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who
each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as a position that an educator is assigned to based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is

defined as the services that an educator is authorized to provide to students.

The data source is the California State Assignment Accountability System (CalSAAS) provided by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing. For information on the CalSAAS, visit the
CALPADS web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/sp/cl/calpadsupdflash201.asp.

For more information on the definitions listed above, refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp.




Méhchestér Elementary School

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments onsiered “iefectie’ under 552

This table displays the number of authorization/assignments of teachers as well as the total number of
teachers without credentials and misassignments at the school level. For questions concerning the permits,
waivers, and misassignment of teachers, visit the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing website at
https://www.ctc.ca.gov/.

Teachers Without C:edentiais and Mzsass;gnments

AuthonzatwnlAsslgnment

Permits and Walvers 0.0 l &
;‘M,sass,gnmems S e 00 : :;
Vacant osiions Sl L 00 : : N .

Total Teachers Wlthout Credentlals and Musassngnments 0.0 A g L

e Data not avaclable from the state at this time.

Credent|a|ed TeaCherS ASSIgﬂEd OUt-Of-FIe|d (considered "out-of-field" under ESSA)

This table displays the number of teachers and the total out-of-field teachers at the school level.

For more information on the definitions listed above, refer to the California Commission on Teacher Creden-
tialing’s Administrator's Assignment Manual at https://www.ctc.ca.gov/credentials/manuals.

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.0 &
' Local Assignment Options | 00 ; &
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.0 A

# Data not available from the state at this time.

Class Assignments
This table displays the number of teachers and the total out-of-field teachers at the school level.

Misassignment and vacant teacher position data should be available in the district's personnel office.

Class Assignments

- Misassignments for English Learners (a percentage of all the classes | 0.0% .
| with English learners taught by teachers that are misassigned) e

' No credential, permit or authorization to teach (a percentage of all ,
 the classes taught by teachers with no record of an authorization to 0.0% | &
teach) ! |

# Data not available from the state at this time.

S8 A
- Pupils to Academic
counselors

o i

The data source is the California State Assignment Accountability System (CalSAAS) provided by the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing. For information on the CalSAAS, visit the CALPADS web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/sp/cl/calpadsup-
dflash201.asp.

For more information on the definitions listed above, refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at https://
www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp.

Academic Counselors and
School Support Staff

This table displays information about aca-
demic counselors and support staff at the
school and their full-time equivalent (FTE).

Ratio of Pupils to
Academic Counselors and
School Support Staff Data

2021-22 School Year

- Counselor (academic,

- social/behavioral or career 0.00
development)

' Library media teacher | 000
(Inbranan) boo |
lerary medla services 000

- staff (paraprofessional)

- Psychologist 001
| Social worker 0.15
Nurse 0.00
i Speech/language/hearing 005
speC|a||st ’
 Resource specnahst ! 0.00
(nonteachmg) :

-+ Not applicable.



Manchester Elementary School

Financial Data School Financial Data

The financial data displayed in this SARC is from the 2020-21 fiscal year. The most current fiscal information The following table displays the school’s
available provided by the state is always two years behind the current school year and one year behind most average teacher salary and a breakdown
other data included in this report. For detailed information on school expenditures for all districts in Califor- of the school's expenditures per pupil
nia, see the California Department of Education (CDE) Current Expense of Education & Per-pupil Spending from unrestricted and restricted sources.
web page at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/ec. For information on teacher salaries for all districts in California, see

the CDE Certificated Salaries & Benefits web page at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs. To look up expenditures and SChOOl Financial Data
salaries for a specific school district, see the Ed-Data website at www.ed-data.org. .

2020 21 F:sr.al Year

District Financial Data | Total expenditures $22.578
. o : . , ' per pupil ’

This table displays district teacher and administrative salary information and compares the figures to the S

state averages for districts of the same type and size based on the salary schedule. Note: The district salary Expendltures per pupll  $5649

data does not include benefits. : | from restricted sources

: | Expenditures per pupil
Salary Data ‘ , - from unrestricted sources $16929

. Annual average

'Maqéhester,UESD . "Sirr;ilafv"Size;l Dis_irivqtj, ‘

AR | teacher salary ; $51.895
Beginning teacher salary & 46844
| Rers teaChersalary e ! S @ R — e S
,H;éhest reachersatry S st e @ i o N
Average el;mentary schaal prlrlapal salary’ e 9 T . H1 1;457

Average middle school prlnapal salary o 122115

: Supermtendent salary | k H@ ’ 1362967 o
Teacher salaries: percenlage kaf bleget L 21% - | 30% N
:lAdmlmstratlve salarles. percentage of budget o 10% e 6% -

Financial Data Comparison

This table displays the school's per-pupil expenditures from unrestricted sources and the school's average
teacher salary and compares it to the district and state data.

Financial Data Comparison

. Expenditures
Per Pupil From

Unrestricted Source ]

Manchester ES $16,929 $51 895
 Manchester UESD , $16,929 4 $s1 895 ‘ ‘
Callfor‘nla $6,594 - $74,053 |

Supplemental/restricted expenditures
come from money whose use is controlled
by law or by a donor. Money that is desig-
nated for specific purposes by the district
or governing board is not considered
restricted. Basic/unrestricted expenditures
are from money whose use, except for
general guidelines, is not controlled by
law or by a donor.

! School and dlstrlct percentage cllfference ! * L

School and California: percentage difference +156.7% -29.9%

& Data not available.
@ The principal and superintendent are combined as one position.

@ The percentage difference does not apply to single-site districts.

Data for this year's SARC was provided by the California Department of Education and school and district offices. For additional School A((oumﬂmlgty Rgpgv‘ Card
information on California schools and districts and comparisons of the district, the county e, please visit
DataQuest at http://dg.cde.cagov/dataquest DataQuest is an online ides reports for accountability, test data,

enroliment, gmdumes dropouts, course enroliments, sta‘f’ng and data reg ;7 arners. Per Education Code Section 35256, P SCl"OOlV
each school district shall make hard copies of its annually updated report card aaas!au e, upon request, on or before February 1. l§“0¥§530”S

& Achievement
www.sic-uscom | 800.4879234

All data accurate as of January 2023,




" PACIFIC ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION CENTER

PO Box 2376 Fort Bragg, CA 95437
(707) 9611659~ -\t LQQ&AW&Q%\Q e

- PEEC - :
The Pacific Environmental Education Center is a'mon-profit resrdent outdoor school Iocated on the beau- "

-tiful Mendocino coast. PEEC offers a coastal ecology program pnmanly for fifth through exghth grade stu-
dents to supplement classroom study.” .
‘Mendocino is an excellent choice for
a study .site due to-the bioclogic and
geologrc features found nowhere else.
: PEEC utilizes the avallablhty of sev- -
- eral superb tidepool areas rich in an
abundance and diversity.of intertidal
life to: focus on the study of marine bi-
ology. The unique wave-cut terraces
of the: Jughandle Ecological Staircase
provide an opportunity’ to. view -’
500,000 years of plant succession and
’~501l development We will- walk the*
staircase | explonng the terraces of
time, beginning in soils-leached of nu-
trients. and barely supporting "a -
gnarled pygmy forest, through mag-
. nificent Tedwood. forests, to the rich
_grassland- soils of the headlands. .

PROGRAM : :
The intent of our program is to begin where classroom study must end: F1rst hand ﬁeld expenence provides.

’a.umque learmng opportunity normially unobtainable in a standard school curriculum.
. The program s emphasis is on the mterdependence and mterrelahonshlp of human bemgs and the physical
environment in which they live, taught a with hope of developmg w1thm students an env1ronmenta1 etluc and

a respect for the natural world.
- PEEC mcorporates a vanety of ﬁeld study sites in the Mendocmo

‘area with an emphasis: on:
Tidepool :
Redwood forest
- Pygmy forest -~ .
Coastal Headlands
Sand Dunes

stuary
We will supplement the above study with follow-up prograrns,':
campfire activities and slide show. Alternative schedules have

been planned in the event of inclement weather.

AGENDA ITEM# [ 0




STAFF : :
~ ‘The PEEC staff is composed of environ-
~ mental educators who have been trained. in
~ the natural history of the Mendocino area.
They are well versed in many educational
- strategiés such as environinental-learning
games, nature walks, stories, music ‘and-In- -
dian lore. They have extensive training in "
such. diverse areas-as marine biology, envi-
_ronmental education, plant and ammal sci- -
ences, geology, and forest ecology. -
"The staff has a high regard for the natural
_environment and corhmunicates this appre-
dation through the activities they teach.
- The staff to student ratio is 1:10.- Counseling
and first aid skills are also part of the staff'
trammg

. PEECis located at Mackerncher State Park three m1les north of - FESPEEC® 2
Fort Bragg.. e 7 |
- Students;, teachers and. chaperones will be housed in ten-cabms oo aarts, a
during their stay. : — | - :
‘The Spring- Ptogram is a series of 3, 4 or 5.day sessions ava1l- N e ."® FT.BRAGG .
able from March 1 to mid June. The fall program is from mld‘ < s -
.September to early November. = — - -/\/‘/
Reservations are on a first come, first. served ba51s. A $§8&i<>00 .. : . )
deposit is réquired béfore we can confirm your reservations. | =
“Tuition Fees includes the cost of instruction, meals (Monday EA A
" dinner through Friday lunch), lodging in tent-cabins, campground P
.-fees and swimming at the local recreation cénter pool. N , .
‘Group Size is limed to'a maximurn of 70 students. There will be . % g MENDOCINO

a $10 per student fee for groups of less than 30.students. * - .

Transportation throughout the week will be provided by your:
school unless other arrangements are made with PEEC. Local
transportation is avallable. : :




Contract for Services

This agreement between Manchester Union Elementary and
Pacific Environmental Education Center (PEEC), a 501©3 non-profit California corporation, is
entered into for the purposes of providing educational services for an outdoor education
program to be conducted on the Mendocino Coast, on behalf of said school by Pacific
Environmental Education Center.

PEEC will provide:

1. Outdoor School Staff of one site director and staff naturalists at an approx. ratio
of 1 per every 10-12 students.

Room and Board for students, teachers, parent chaperones and program staff.
Supplies and Materials as required for implementation of the program.
Insurance covering accident and sickness for all students in attendance.

Extra Vehicle to transport supplies and to serve as an emergency vebhicle on site.

kW

School to provide:

=

One Teacher per class.
Transportation between school and PEEC as well as between PEEC study sites.

3. Chaperones in the ratio of one chaperone for every 8-10 students.
Additional chaperones will be required to pay full student price.
4. Covid Testing for all participants prior to arrival
5. Liability Insurance for program activities naming Pacific Environmental
Education Center as an additional insured on said school’s policy.

N

Fee Schedule L <F
fov0 Jecanse of swe 5T cxoope 1. |
Deposit- A deposit of 5/1090 per week will reserve your approved program dates. This amount
will be applied toward student tuition fees. It may also be carried cver for the following year’s
deposit upon request. The deposit amount will be refundable only upon written notice to the

director 16 weeks prior to the arrival date of school.

1st Payment- % of the estimated student and chaperone fees are due 21 days prior to the date
of arrival. This fee is refundable only upon cancellation of the week’s program by PEEC.

2™ payment- Final Payment should be calculated based on the estimated final number of
students and chaperones submitted by the Wednesday before programming (when PEEC must
order food). Please either mail the final payment the Wednesday before or bring on the day of
arrival. Any underpayments will be billed and overpayments will be refunded. Any late
payments will accrue an additional 1% per week if more than 7 days late.



Contract for Services (Page 2)
PEEC trip for Spring 2023

School: Manchester Union Elementary Telephone:
School Address:
Teacher: Principal:

Program Date: May 10-12, 2023

Approximate number of students: Grade attending:

e e :\\‘3 /—-.
Fee per student: 5-day $275, 4-day $240, 3-dav€2?5 _\, Fee per chaperone: $140/$120/$100

=

If a 5 day group, would your school like a pool night at C.V. Starr? ves no
*$200 rental fee

A05 X 9 sfu dents= | B45 3 chaperones = 300
 Estimated Total Fee: & ] 145

\
Deposit status: @ SDK) clue_ w\%—H/\ T es -.ﬁne_e\, amm%—m&

Estimated 1% payment: Due: 4 / /9 / 2>
Estimated final payment: Due: 5/ / /C’/ R5
Students will arrive by: School Bus Charter Bus__ Private Vehicles __>_<&
School Signature Date PEEC Signature Date

Please complete and sign this contract. Return it to the PEEC office by 324322, /'L/ 7 / 13
We will review and return your copy promptly.

Pacific Environmental Education Center
P.O. Box 2376
Fort Bragg, CA 95437



MANCHESTER UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MEAL COUNT COLLECTION PROCEDURES

ELIGIBILITY
All state agency prototype forms will be used in the eligibility process.

- Applications are distributed to all households in the “first day” informational packets,
which are handed or mailed to all the families of enrolled students. Students enrolling
for the first time receive application / eligibility information as a routine part of the
enrollment process.

Applications are returned to school by students or parents, or are mailed to the school
office.

All families are notified in writing and forwarded in the mail as to the approval or denial of
the application.

BENEFIT ISSUANCE

Eligibility is transferred from the application to a master roster, taken from attendance
records, containing all of the names of students. Rosters are coded (Free roster code =
1000, Reduced roster code = 2000, Full price roster code = 3000) according to the
eligibility and also indicate date of eligibility.

Changes to the roster are made immediately upon changes of status. Rosters are
maintained on file for five years.

PAYMENT FOR MEALS/NONPROGRAM FOODS

Manchester Union Elementary School District participates in the California Universal
Meals Program. The District provides a breakfast and/or a lunch to students who
request a meal, free of charge for each school day.

Students are given the opportunity to pre-pay nonprogram foods through regular
encouragement in person, to parents, and in newsletters or meetings. Payment is
accepted when the morning lunch and milk count is taken or may be forwarded to the
school office.

School staff account for the delivered meal when it is physically accepted by the student.
Staff check the pre-count by referencing the student’'s name on the printout from the
classroom count taken via our electronic student information system, then notate the
delivered meal on that printout at the point of delivery to the student.

MEDIUM OF EXCHANGE

Each of the Manchester School classrooms will have access to a working device and
log-in information for the Schoolwise electronic student information system. Teachers will
indicate which students want breakfast and/or lunch by recording this next to the
student’s name when taking roll. Those who wish to have only milk may order milk only,

AGENDA mem # (& - U



though this same process. Breakfasts and lunches will be prepared based on the first
count. Students entering school late will go to the office to check in and, if necessary,
ask to be placed on the breakfast, lunch or milk list for the day. (For confidentiality
purposes, the codes for the categories of full, reduced, or free services will only be used
for accounting purposes and will not be printed on the classroom roster.)

In the accounting process, there are not mediums of exchange for the students to
handle.

At the point of services, the adult serving breakfasts or lunches will use the printed
document from the original breakfast and lunch count to record the positive count for
each meal served. The child will give their name and the adult will then check the roster
for the child’s name and then give them the breakfast, lunch, or milk. Once the child has
the breakfast, lunch, or milk and steps away to consume it, the adult serving the meal
will circle “breakfast,” or “lunch” or “milk” for that day for the child who just received the
meal, indicating it has been served to them.

ACCURACY OF COUNTS

Reimbursable meals are tallied by counting the number of circled “breakfast,” “lunch,” or
“milk” that have been circled, indicating a meal has been served. Balance points will be
audited by reviewing daily the number of meals prepared to those served.

All adults involved will be trained and monitored to ensure that only those complete
meals taken by students are marked as being served. Milk may be purchased
separately by all students but this will not claimed as part of the meal count.

Adult meals will be tracked through a separate roster indicating orders and service and
will not be claimed for reimbursement.

A la carte meals will not be offered.
Students will not have the opportunity to earn meals.

During field trips, the lunch roster will be taken along and checked off after the students
receive their lunches from school personnel.

REPORTS AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Edit checks of the meal counts will be taken daily by the district office which will include
comparisons of enroliment/attendance versus meal counts. The difference between
those lunches prepared and those served will also be examined, The edit will take place
prior to the end of the business day by the business manager and/or the superintendent.

The information recorded in the roster folder will be used in reporting the number of
lunches issued This information will be reviewed, according to eligibility category and
recorded daily onto master account ledgers in the District office.

Site monitoring will be performed daily by the business manager and/or superintendent
with regard to monitoring internal controls.



